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DECISION AFTER REJECTION

Administrative Law Judge John DeCure, Office of Administrative Hearings, State of
California, heard this matter on May 12, 2016, in Los Angeles, California. Bora McCutcheon,
Deputy Attorney General, represented Complainant. Respondent Albert Farah Daher
(Respondent) was present and represented himself. Evidence was received, argument was
heard, the record was closed and the matter was submitted for decision on May 12, 2016,

This matter involves Respondent's application for a pharmacy technician registration.
Respondent, a former licensed pharmacist and pharmacy owner, had both his pharmacy and
pharmacist’s licenses revoked in January 2014. He is presently seeking to reestablish himself in
the pharmacy profession, first by becoming a licensed pharmacy technician with the current
application at issue, then later by becoming a pharmacist again.

On August 8, 2016, pursuant to section 11517 of the Government Code, the California
State Board of Pharmacy (“Board”) issued an Order rejecting the June 13, 2016, Proposed
Decision of the ALJ in the above-entitied matter. On September 16, 2016, the Board issued an
Order reflecting that the transcript had been received and the deadline for submission of written
argument was set for October 17, 2016. Both parties timely submitted written argument.

The Board, having reviewed and considered the entire record, including the transcript,
exhibits and written arguments, now issues this decision.

FACTUAL FINDINGS

1 On February 23, 2015, Respondent submitted an Application (Application) to the
Board for a pharmacy technician registration. On March 9, 2015, the Complainant denied the
Application. Respondent timely appealed the denial and this matter ensued.

2. On November 23, 2015, Complainant Virginia Herold, Executive Officer of the
Board, filed the Statement of Issues in her official capacity.
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3. The Statement of Issues alleges a single cause for denial: that Respondent’s
application for a pharmacy technician’s license is subject to denial because he commiitted
unprofessional acts while holding his individual pharmacist’s license and as sole owner and
pharmacist-in-charge of Jay Scott Drugs’ Retail Pharmacy (Jay Scott Drugs), and those acts
constituted grounds for revocation of those licenses. As evidence of those acts, Complainant
referenced and attached to the Statement of Issues the Board’s 47-page Decision After
Nonadoption in the Matter of the First Amended Accusation Against Jay Scott Drugs, Albert
Farah Daher, et al, Board Case Number 3482, effective January 27, 2014 (the 2014 Decision).

The 2014 Decision and Respondent’s Prior Misconduct

4. On March 12, 1985, the Board issued original pharmacist license number RPH
39189 to Respondent Daher. On June 27, 1995, the Board issued original permit number PHY
40912 to Jay Scott Drugs, authorizing Respondent Daher to do business under that name.
Respondent Daber had been the pharmacist-in-charge at Jay Scott Drugs since June 1, 1998.
Effective January 27, 2014, Respondent’s licenses as a pharmacist and pharmacy were revoked
as a result of the 2014 Decision. '

a. The 2014 Decision was issued after a hearing held over approximately 16 days
between October 2012 and June 2013, In that Decision, the Board found that respondents there
(including Respondent and Jay Scott Drugs) violated pharmacy laws and regulations by filling
prescriptions for illegitimate purposes for controlled substances for approximately 20 patients.
As noted above, during that time, Respondent was the pharmacist-in-charge and owner of Jay
Scott Drugs. Respondent and the other pharmacists knew or should have known the controlled
substances were procured for illegitimate purposes and chose to turn a blind eye in the face of
obtaining profits.

The 2014 Decision also found violations based on recurring issues with a number of
patients receiving controlled substances, including: repeated, consistent controlled substance
prescriptions for the same combination of drugs in the same dosage, same quantity, and with the
same directions issued to a large number of generally younger patients (under 30 years old) and
to many types of patients regardless of age or gender. The drugs prescribed were popular
combinations with drug addicts, and included Norco (hydrocodone/APAP), Xanax, Soma,
Lorcet, Oxycontin, and Valium. The patients paid in cash either exclusively or almost
exclusively, and traveled significant distances from their homes to obtain the prescriptions. Drug
" combinations that should have been closely monitored were not evaluated, the drugs’ prescribers
were not contacted, and there were no communications with patients about their drug therapies.
These were “red flags” that triggered the Jay Scott Drugs’ pharmacists’ corresponding
responsibility, a legal duty, to assure the proper prescribing and dispensing of a controlled
substance, (Health & Safety Code, § 11153.)

Respondent Daher denied any wrongdoing prior to the 2014 Decision. He and Jay Scott
Drugs were found to have favored profits over public safety by continuously filling suspect
prescriptions without question, and failing to intervene despite “red flags” as described above.
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b. The 2014 Decision focused on prescriptions issued by two physicians, Bernard N.
Bass, M.D. (Bass), and, to a lesser extent, Massoud Bamdad, M.D. (Bamdad), which were filled
by Jay Scott Drugs and its pharmacists. Bass treated the vast majority of the patients at issue in
the 2014 Decision and issued the majority of their prescriptions. Unrelated to the instant
disciplinary matter, and at different times, each physician admitted to improperly prescribing
controlled substances. Each physician faced disciplinary action against their medical licenses
and criminal prosecution for his prescribing practices, among other things. Those actions were
noted in the 2014 Decision to establish that the prescribing practices of Bass and Bamdad were
below the standard of care for physicians. The 2014 Decision analyzed the prescriptions issued
by Bass and Bamdad independent of the physicians’ professional misconduct and viewed as
received from the perspective of a reasonable and prudent pharmacist.

c. In March and April 2008, several of Bass or Bamdad’s patients died, many from
drug overdoses. Respondent, as a pharmacist and through his pharmacy, Jay Scott Drugs, had
dispensed medications to six of the deceased patients: A.S., L.G., AW.,D.L,, D.K. and A.C.
These were just a few tragic individual cases discussed in the 2014 Decision. While all of the
findings in the 2014 Decision were considered, some illustrative factual facts about the prior
misconduct are summarized here.

d. A.S. died at the age of 22 on March 20, 2008, from hydrocodone intoxication,
after Respondent Daher had dispensed an unauthorized prescription for hydrocodone/APAP
early. Empty prescription bottles for hydrocodone and alprazolam, which were dispensed by
Respondent Daher on March 18, 2008, were found on A.S.’s night stand next to his bed. A.S.
was a drug addict. A.S.’s mother testified that she believed Respondent’s dispensing of
medication furthered her son’s drug addiction. Jay Scott Drugs filled 90 prescriptions for A.S.
between January 5, 2007, and March 18, 2008. Those prescriptions included 3,875 tablets of
hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 mg (generic for Norco), 1,860 tablets of alprazolam 2 mg (generic
for Xanax), and 405 tablets of carisoprodol (generic for Soma). Of the 90 prescriptions,
Respondent Daher personally dispensed 79 of them. Respondent had also issued a refill on one
prescription that contained no authorization for a refill. In one four day period, Respondent
Daher deviated from the prescriber’s directions by providing A.S. with 250 tablets of
hydrocodone/APAP (10/325 mg), 120 tablets of alprazolam (2 mg) and 30 carisoprodol (350
mg) tablets. This was enough hydrocodone/APAP to take 62 tablets per day, more than 4 times
the 12 tablets daily dosage directed by the prescriber; it was enough alprazolam to take 30
tablets per day, more than 7 times over the 4 per day maximum dose directed by the prescriber;
and it was enough carisoprodol to take more than 7 times the 1 per day dose directed by the
prescriber. A.S. lived over 40 miles away from Jay Scott Drugs. A.S. paid cash for his
prescriptions. (2014 Decision, FF 28-37.)

In responding to 22-year-old A.S.’s death during the investigation, Respondent
explained,

“I did not sell [A.S.] his medication in a dark alley, he walked into
my store. We regret his death but ultimately he is responsible for his own
actions ... Were his parents aware of his drug addiction? Did they do
anything about it?”
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e. L.G. died at the age of 21 on April 13, 2008, from oxycodone and
methamphetamine intoxication. Although Respondent did not dispense those specific drugs to
L.G., it dispensed approximately 105 prescriptions to L.G. from September 20, 2006, to March
28, 2008. Those 105 prescriptions included dispensing 4,625 tablets of hydrocodone/APAP
10/325 mg (generic for Norco), 2,160 tablets of alprazolam 2 mg (generic for Xanax), and 2,200
tablets of carisoprodol (generic for Soma). Respondent himself dispensed 75 of the 105
prescriptions. At least one prescription was dispensed carly. L.G. paid for his prescriptions in
cash. L.G. lived more than 25 miles away from Jay Scott Drugs. (2014 Decision, FF 38-43.)

f. A.W. died at the age of 31 on April 11, 2008, due to morphine, hydrocodone, and
diazepam intoxication. Jay Scott Drugs dispensed 12 prescriptions to her from February 6, 2008,
to March 25, 2008. In that 48 day period, Jay Scott Drugs dispensed 500 tablets of
hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 mg (generic for Norco), 300 tablets of diazepam 10 mg (generic for
Valium), and 240 tablets of carisoprodol 350 mg (generic for Soma). Respondent Daher
personally filled 9 of the 12 prescriptions. A.W. lived over 25 miles away from Jay Scott Drugs.
(2014 Decision, FF 44-49.)

g. D.L. died at the age of 25 on April 10, 2008, caused by toxicity from cocaine,
Soma, Ambien, and Valium toxicity. D.L.’s last prescription filled by Respondent Daher on
March 24, 2008, included 80 tablets of carisoprodol 350 mg (generic for Soma), 30 tablets of
Ambien 10 mg, and 60 tablets of Valium 10 mg. Jay Scott Drugs filled 30 prescriptions for D.L.
between May 2, 2007 and March 24, 2008. Those 30 prescriptions included 2,375 tablets of
hydrocodone APAP 10/325 mg (generic for Norco), 120 tablets of Valium 10 mg, 520 tablets of
carisoprodol (generic for Soma), and 90 tablets of Ambien. Of the 30 prescriptions Jay Scott
Drugs filled for D.L., Respondent Daher personally dispensed 23 of them. D.L. lived over 45
miles away from Jay Scott Drugs. Respondents had no record of D.L.’s prior use of Suboxone.
Suboxone is commonly prescribed to treat opioid addicts; it is uncommonly used to treat pain.
Respondents argued that if they had known of the prior Suboxone use, it would have been
inappropriate for them to presume it had been used for addiction, and that it was the prescriber’s
discretion to dispense the medications he or she deems medically appropriate. (2014 Decision,
FF 50-58.)

h. A.C. died at approximately 23 years old on April 13, 2008, from multiple drug
effects, including significantly high oxycodone levels. He died in an in-patient rehabilitation
center where he had been admitted for opiate addiction. A.C.’s last prescription dispensed by
Respondent Daher on April 10, 2008, included 90 tablets of oxycodone 30 mg. A.C.’s father
testified that A.C. was addicted to drugs. Jay Scott Drugs filled and dispensed eight medications
to A.C. from December 11, 2007, to April 10, 2008. During this period, Respondent Daher
personally dispensed 270 tablets of oxycodone and 240 tablets of Xanax 2 mg to this patient.
A.C. lived over 40 miles from Jay Scott Drugs. A.C. would buy Oxycontin one day and return
the next day to pick up the Xanax portion of his prescription from Jay Scott Drugs. This was an
approximate 86-mile round trip. A.C. paid cash for all of these prescriptions. The prescribing
physician, Bambdad, was a family practitioner. Respondents did not maintain any written
records supporting consultations with Bamdad regarding A.C.’s diagnoses and whether the
drugs prescribed appeared to be warranted. Respondents argued at bearing that nothing in
Bamdad’s prescribing pattern for A.C. required any such consuitations. (2014 Decision, FF 97-
104.)
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1. D.K. died, at the age of 32, on March 14, 2008. The cause of death was Lobar
Pneumonia. Respondents filled and dispensed 61 prescriptions to D.K. between December 7,
2006, and March 11, 2008; 47 of those prescriptions were for the generic drugs for Norco,
Xanax and Soma. During this time period, Respondents dispensed 3,000 tablets of
hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 mg (generic for Norco), 1,200 tablets of alprazolam 2 mg (generic
for Xanax), and 90 tablets of carisoprodol (generic for Soma) to D.K.. Of the 47 prescriptions,
Respondent Daher personally dispensed 33 of them. D.K. lived in Newbury Park,
approximately 42 miles from Jay Scott Drugs. D.K. had asthma. There was no evidence that
anyone at Jay Scott Drugs questioned whether Dr. Bass’ prescribed drug combination, which
experts testified was known to cause respiratory depression, was safe for someone with D.K.’s
respiratory condition. (2014 Decision, FF 59-62.)

j- The 2014 Decision specifically contained the following Factual Findings about
Respondent, addressing his responsibility for the violations':

Respondent Daher

119. Respondent Daher came to the United States from Lebanon
in 1978. He attended the Oregon State University (OSU), School of
Pharmacy and graduated in 1983. He worked as a pharmacist for Kaiser
Permanente and CVS before opening his first pharmacy in Glendale in
1987. Respondent Daher purchased Respondent JSD in 1995; he was and
is the P.I.C. Respondent Nabhan started with Respondent JSD in 1987
and Yamasaki, in 1991, Respondent Daher is married and has four
children. He keeps close ties with OSU. He has set up a family
scholarship foundation at the OSU pharmacy program, providing
internship opportunities for its students. Respondent Daher has acted as
preceptor for students for the last five years.

120. Respondent Daher explained that one reason Respondents
got so much pain medication business was their prices. He stated that he
sells 125 tablets of 10/325 mg Norco for approximately $40, while large
chain pharmacies, like CVS, charge more than $90 for the same
medication. The evidence was unclear whether these prices were the
prices when Respondent JSD first opened or currently. Respondent JSD
was a larger, independent pharmacy with a great volume of business for
medications and durable medical equipment.

121.  In his deposition in another case, dated May 5 2011,
Respondent Daher agreed Respondent JSD had 600 patients® from Bass
and approximately 90 of those patients resided in Ventura County. He
disputed that most of the patients were young, asserting that from his

! The 2014 Decision refers to Jay Scott Drugs as “JSD'; footnotes in the original text appear below the paragraphs
quoted for clarity,
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accounting of the 90 patients from Ventura County, 30 patients were under
26 years of age, 30 patients were between 26 and 30 years old, and 30
patients were over 30 years old. There was no independent evidence to
establish Respondent Daher’s age descriptions, but there was also
insufficient evidence to conclude that any sizeable population of
Respondent JSD was under 30, While the evidence established that some
of the patients at issue in this matter were under 30 years of age, of the 17
patients discussed herein (with the exception of N.C., who was likely well
over 30), nine patients were under 30 years of age.

4Respondent Daher agreed that this amounted to an estimated
$1.7 million dollars that Respondent JSD filled for Dr. Bass’ patients
over a two-year period.

122. Respondent Daher did not feel that the patients exhibited
evidence of being drug addicts improperly seeking pain medications.
Respondent Daher did not agree that the fact that several patients were
members of a motorcycle gang should have prompted concern in and of
itself. He believed that those paying cash were simply part of the many
individuals in the community who are uninsured.

123.  According to Respondent Daher, Respondents were
conscious that the patient demand increased in 2007 and 2008 and
developed policies to ensure they practiced pharmacy within the law and
did not contribute to medication abuse. Complainant argued that
Respondents developed these policies after the Board began to investigate
the instant matter. The evidence did not establish when Respondents
developed the policies or when they came into effect.

124. Respondents’ undated, written policy for filling pain
management prescriptions was signed by each Respondent, but undated.
The policy included the following requirements, among others: 1) check
prescriptions with physwlans 2) check physician licenses; 3) patients
must be present and must sign for their own prescriptions unless they sign
a release in the presence of the patient and authorized person; 4) educate
patients on the dangers of medications; 4) require patients to read and sign
the auxiliary warning labels; 5) use professional judgment when patients
use multiple pain doctors and call each doctor and disclose that fact; 6) no
early refills unless the patient is going to surgery, leaving town
(documented), and 7) prescriptions must be filled in order and recorded
daily into a book, and numbered for retrieval.

125. Respondents had additional policies. They kept Pain
Management Prescriptions Policy and Procedures guidelines for receiving
schedule II drugs, schedule III-IV drugs, recording of receivables,
inventory, prescription filling, prescription pick-up, and early refills, With
regard to prescription filling, the policy had various requirements,
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including that: 1) Respondents should ask all out-of-area patients why they
are filling their prescriptions at Respondent JSD; 2) Respondents should
check patient identification with their fraud detection unit;’ 3)
Respondents should contact the physician office on all schedule 1T through
V prescriptions; 4) If the dose is out of the ordinary, contact the physician
and request a diagnosis; and 5) If a different person is to pick up a
prescription, both persons must be present the first time and Respondent
must photocopy and keep a copy of the patient’s and designated
individual’s identifications with signatures and an explanation.

> Respondents purchased and used a machine at the pharmacy
that verified identification cards and driver licenses.

126.  As to early refills, Respondents’ policies provided that
prescriptions could generally be refilled two days ahead of the
prescription’s finish date. Respondents argued that the early refills
described herein were dispensed using their professional discretion in each
case.

127.  As to physician license verification, Respondent Daher
asserted that all physician licenses were to be checked monthly and
printed. If they found that the California Medical Board had placed a
prescribing physician’s license on probation, they were to stop filling the
prescription regardless of reason for probation. All physicians were to be
telephoned and questioned about their practice, Respondents were to stop
filling prescriptions from any physician suspected of any pattern of
wrongful activity.

128. Despite the computer error alleged by Respondents in this
case, in January 2007, Respondent Daher asserted that he did “not spare
any expense on making sure that my records are kept up-to-date.”
Respondent Daher also testified that, with regard to patient prescription
history records showing his initials “AID” as the dispensing pharmacist, it
“could have been me” or he speculated that Respondent JSIY’s staff may
have used his initials because he was “there every day” as the pharmacist-
in-charge. Respondent Daher did not explain why those records would not
be kept “up-to-date” or accurate as he asserted in other testimony. These
inconsistencies and lack of explanation cast doubt on Respondent Daher’s
credibility. Generally, Respondent Daber asserted that he and the other
Respondents did nothing wrong. He and Respondent Nabhan each spoke
with Bass after Respondent Nabhan initially contacted Bass with his
concern about the high doses of narcotic medication. Respondent Daher
also spoke to Bass after B.G’s mother wrote him a note saying “Don’t fill
my son’s prescription.” Bass convinced Respondents that he was a
legitimate pain physician treating chronic pain sufferers and that his
prescriptions were, therefore, legitimate. Respondent Daher did not feel
he could or should impose his own concerns regarding the medication
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combinations or quantities on the physician. He trusted Bass based on
Bass’ representations and did not believe the amounts of medications
Respondents dispensed were so great as to require him to stop dispensing.
Respondent Daher asserted that all Respondents counseled patients
regularly as to the dangers of the medications and to complying strictly
with the dosage instructions. He did not observe any actions or words
from the patients that made him believe the patients were addicted to
narcotics or other drugs, e.g., the patients were incoherent. He did not
observe any actions or words by the patients that made him believe the
patients were improperly obtaining the prescriptions for illegitimate
purposes. Respondent Daher explained that his criteria for refusing to fill
a prescription included suspicious behavior like the patient claiming he or
she was “shorted” or lost tablets, or patients coming to the pharmacy with
multiple prescriptions from multiple doctors. Respondent Daher
explained how Respondents kept the auxiliary warning labels from each
prescription, placed them on paper, and had each patient sign next to each
label, memorializing Respondents’ counseling. Respondents offered
numerous such documents into evidence.

129. Respondents’ initial belief that Bass was a pain specialist
may have been reasonable if no other “red flag” indicators were present.
However, as explained later, a physician’s self-described pain
management specialty does not relieve Respondents from further
reasonable inquiry into the prescriber when “red flags”, including
consistently high volumes of addictive medications and questionable
prescribing paiterns, emerge.

130. Respondents presented numerous prescriptions and other
documents on which they documented communications with various
physicians other than Bass and Bamdad, where Respondents were
verifying diagnoses, confirming drug choices, or otherwise clarifying
prescriptions. For example, Respondent Nabhan documented his own
verifications and clarifications on October 26, 2007, for Vicedin E.S., on
June 26, 2008, for 10/325 mg. Norco, on June 10, 2008, for duplicate
prescriptions for 10/650 Lorcet and 2 mg, Xanax, and other similar
communications with physicians other than Bass or Bamdad on May 9,
2008 (diagnosis verification for MS Contin), May 14, 2008 (diagnosis
verification for Oxycontin, Xanax, and Cymbalta), May 22, 2008
(diagnosis verification for Norco and Motrin), June 13, 2008 (diagnosis
verification for Oxycontin), September 30, 2008 (prescription clarification
for MS Contin and Lortab), and November 5, 2008 (diaghosis verification
for Oxycontin and Actiq). However, little weight was given to this
information as supportive of Respondents’ claims since there was no
evidence® that such communications with prescribers happened for the
patients in this case. This information only demonstrates that Respondents
were aware that such communications were an important part of pharmacy
practice and that they were able to document such communications for
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some of their patients, but failed to provide any evidence that they did so
for these patients in this case.

§ Other than the instance mentioned in Factual Finding 128
above, Respondents have either failed to provide any other examples of
specific inquiry prior to dispensing medications or admitted that they did
not inquire because they deferred to Bass’ expertise.

131.  Generally, Respondent Daher asserted that he and the other
Respondents regularly reviewed the patients’ drug therapies, their
medication records, and their patient profiles, as kept by Respondents at
Respondent JSD, before dispensing the prescribed medications to each.
Respondent Daher’s assertion was similar to Respondent Nabhan’s
assertions. (Factual Finding 137.) The patient profiles that Respondent ;
kept showed the patients’ prescription history, including medication :
quantities, estimated day’s supply, dates of filling/dispensing, payment
method, prescriber and patient identification among other things.

However, Respondents’ self-serving, bare assertions that the reviews were
conducted according to their alleged usual and customary practice are
insufficient to prove that they were done in this case.

132.  Respondent Daher presented character witnesses who :
testified that he is known in his community as a generous, truthful, caring |
and trustworthy person and pharmacist. He is a practicing and faithful
Roman Catholic. Respondents were cooperative with the Board’s
investigation.

k. In igsuing the 2014 Decision, the Board carefully analyzed Respondent’s
misconduct and weighed the appropriate consequence of the violations and what would be
required to protect the public. In reaching its conclusion that outright revocation was
appropriate for Respondent Daher’s licenses, the Board issued the following Legal Conclugions:

24.  In corresponding responsibility cases, pharmacists and
pharmacies must determine whether a prescription for a controlled
substance was issued for a legitimate medical purpose whenever the
surrounding circumstances indicate that such an inquiry should be made. 7
This means that Complainant was required to establish that circumstances
were present that would cause a reasonable and prudent pharmacist to
question whether a prescription for a controlled substance was issued for a
legitimate medical purpose and to show that the Respondents failed to
make the required inquiry. Complainant established by clear and
convincing evidence that Respondents actions in dispensing large volumes
of controlied substances to patients without inquiry fell below the standard
of care of a reasonably prudent pharmacist and that Respondents failed to
meet their corresponding responsibility. During the times at issue from
2006 to 2008, Respondent JSD, through its licensed personnel, had the
duty to determine whether certain prescriptions for controlled substances
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were issued for legitimate medical purposes. The evidence established
that Respondents ignored, dismissed, or made nothing of many factors
contained within patient records and information that should have raised
their concerns about the legitimacy of the patients’ prescriptions.

25.  Bass’ prescribing patterns were obvious. The prescriptions
for all of the patients at issue were for significant quantities of generics for
Norco, Xanax, and Soma and to a lesser extent, Lorcet, Oxycontin, and
Valium, when considering that Bass was prescribing them at a consistent
time interval (approximately every 15 days) without interruption. The
prescribed medications were for controlled substances that have
significant addictive qualities. Respondents undoubtedly knew that
persons with drug addiction generally sought these kinds of controlled
substances. Respondents believed that the patients were chronic pain
sufferers and that Bass was a pain specialist. However, there was no
evidence to support their conclusions. Respondents asserted that it was
reasonable for them to defer to Bass® presumed expertise and discretion,
and that after general discussions with Bass, their concerns were
adequately answered to continue dispensing the prescriptions. However,
other factors, together with the significant quantity of medication, should
have raised Respondents’ suspicions that Bass’ prescriptions, or at least,
the patients’ intentions, were illegitimate. Bass issued virtually the same
drug regimen to each patient over a significantly long time. One would
reasonably expect that a pain specialist would modify the drugs, doses,
strengths, or quantities within each patient’s overall treatment time and
between different patients. Respondents’ choice to ignore these factors
readily ascertainable within each patient’s prescription profile constituted
a failure to exercise their professional judgment.

26.  Respondents incorrectly dismissed the distances traveled by
the majority of the patients and their cash payments that were also factors
that should have raised Respondents’ suspicions. [Respondents’ experts’]
opinions, that the distances of 30 and more miles were not great distances
to travel to purchase the medications, bordered on the absurd. The
distances of virtually every patient at issue here were unreasonably long
and should have raised Respondents’ concerns. Similarly, the majority of
the patients paying with cash should have alerted Respondents to possible
illegitimate prescriptions. Lastly, dispensing similar prescriptions to
family members, and at the same time, should have also raised
Respondents’ suspicions, The failure of these factors to prompt
Respondents to suspect possibly illegitimate prescriptions for patients with
addictions constitutes Respondents’ failure to exercise their professional
judgment, The opinions of [complainant’s expert] as to these factors and
conclusions were more persuasive than those of [respondents’ experts].
These factors should have prompted Respondents to, at the least, contact
Bass and verify his diagnoses, his general treatment plans, and question
him regarding the quantities and dosages for each patient at issue here.
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Under these circumstances, a reasonably prudent pharmacist would have
made inquiries to the prescriber regarding the drug regimen for these
patients and whether other treatment methods had been tried, including
using or switching to medications that were less addictive. Respondents
correctly asserted that the standard of care does not require them to make
such inquiries as to every patient with every pain medication prescription,
but the factors discussed in Legal Conclusions 25 and 26 provided enough
data to alert the prudent, reasonable pharmacist to inquire further
regarding the patients herein, as [complainant’s expert] opined. Had
Respondents communicated with Bass, they might have elicited
questionable responses that would have prompted them to question Bass’
prescribing practices overall or questioned the patients’ intentions. Had
Respondents received responses that they deemed adequate to continue
dispensing, the question would then have been whether Bass’ responses
were reasonable. Respondents might well have fulfilled their professional
responsibilities by inquiring and assessing Bass’ responses without further
action. As it stands, however, Respondents chose to defer to Bass’
judgment in the face of obviously concerning prescribing patterns that
could not and should not have been ignored or dismissed as within the sole
discretion of the prescriber. In this way, Respondents did not engage their
corresponding responsibility to ensure the legitimacy of the prescriptions
at issue. Respondents’ failures constitute unprofessional conduct and
resulted in the furnishing of excessive quantities of highly addictive
controlled substances to numerous patients.

27. The evidence showed that similar “red flags” for
Bamdad’s patient, A.C, were present. A.C. started visiting Respondent
JSD at the age of 22, always paid cash for OxyContin and Xanax, and
traveled approximately 40 miles from his residence to pick up his
prescriptions. The evidence showed that A.C. would buy OxyContin one
day and return the next day to pick up the Xanax portion of his
prescription from Jay Scott Drugs. This was an approximate 86-mile
round trip. Similar to Dr. Bass’ patients, Respondents had no
documentation of consultations with Bamdad regarding A.C.’s diagnosis,
medication conditions, or the legitimate medical purpose for the
prescriptions.

Consistent with [complainant’s expert] opinion, when the foregoing
“flags” emerged, Respondent Daher should have questioned Bamdad
before dispensing. A reasonable pharmacist would have had suspicions
about Bamdad’s patient and practices in light of the foregoing and made
inquiries. Respondents’ failure to contact Bamdad as to his prescription
practices and the continuous dispensing of the prescriptions fell below the
standard of care and constituted unprofessional conduct. In light of the
foregoing, Respondents had an obligation not to defer to Bamdad, but the
evidence showed Respondent Daher provided little or no oversight over
the prescriptions and continued to frequently dispense consistent and
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virtually uninterrupted quantities of controlled substances to A.C,
Respondent Daher and Respondent JSD’s actions in dispensing controlled
substances to A.C., therefore, fell below the standard of care of a
reasonably prudent pharmacist and Respondents failed to meet their
corresponding responsibility.

28.  Cause exists to discipline Respondents’ pharmacy and
pharmacist licenses for failing to exercise their professional judgment,
pursuant to Business and Professions Code sections 4300, 4302, and 4301,

~subdivisions (d), (j), and (o), Health and Safety Code section 11153, and

California Code of Regulations, title 16, Section 1761 as set forth in
Factual Findings 1-161, and Legal Conclusions 1-4, 6, 8, 11-17, 24- 27.
Additionally, Respondent Daher, as the Pharmacist-in-Charge, was legally
responsible for the violations consistent with Business and Professmns
Code section 4113,

29.  Cause exists to discipline Respondents’ pharmacy and
pharmacist licenses for engaging in unprofessional conduct pursuant to
Business and Professions Code sections 4300, 4301, and 4302, as set forth
in Factual Findings 1-161 and Legal Conclusions 1-17, and 24-27.
Additionally, Respondent Daher, as the Pharmacist-in-Charge, was legally
responsible for the violations consistent with Business and Professions
Code section 4113,

Factors Considered for the Appropriate Measare of Discipline

30.  According to the Board’s Disciplinary Guidelines,
violations are examined and categorized to determine the appropriate
disciplinary penalty (Category I through Category IV). In this matter, the
most serious violations include Category 111 violations for violations of
corresponding responsibility under Health and Safety Code section 11153.
In those cases, the Board recommends the maximum penalty of
revocation, (See Manual of Disciplinary Guidelines and Model
Disciplinary Orders at p.15 and p. 77.) However, a determination that
cause exists to revoke Respondents’ pharmacy and pharmacist licenses
does not end the inquiry. The Board has compiled a list of factors to
evaluate whether a licensee has been rehabilitated from prior misconduct.
That list, found on page 3 of the Board’s A Manual of Disciplinary
Guidelines and Model Disciplinary Orders (Revised 10/2007), is
incorporated by reference into the Board’s regulations.’* The criteria
considered here include: actual or potential harm to the public; actual or
potential harm to any consumer; number and/for variety of current
violations; nature and severity of the acts under consideration; aggravating
evidence; mitigating evidence; rehabilitation evidence; whether the
conduct was negligent or intentional and the financial benefit to the
respondent from the misconduct.
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“Cal. Code Regs., tit 16, § 1760.

31, Actual or potential harm to the public; actual or potential
harm to any consumer. Protection of the public is the Board’s highest
priority. The Board fulfills its public mandate by, among other things,
imposing discipline. As the record establishes, the drugs were dispensed
to these patients without regard for patient health and safety or public
safety. The evidence established that some of the patients in this case
(A.S., B.G. and A.C.) were addicts. Respondents’ violations contributed
to the addiction of these patients and put other patients at risk of harm
from addiction, overdose or death. Further, patients did overdose on
medications that were being regularly filled by Respondents. Their cause
of death was, in part, if not entirely, attributable to consuming drugs
prescribed by Bass or Bamdad, and dispensed by Respondents.
Respondents’ misconduct was a contributing factor in the overdoses, as
drug overdose was a likely and foreseeable consequence of Respondents’
misconduct.

32.  In particular, Respondents’ misconduct contributed to the
drug addiction of A.S., which led to his untimely death at the age of 22 by
overdosing on drugs dispensed by Jay Scott Drugs. (Factual Findings 28-
37.) Similatly, Respondents’ misconduct contributed to the drug addiction
of the four other patients who died from drug overdoses, whether or not
any of the drugs consumed that directly caused their demise were
dispensed by Jay Scott Drugs. If Respondents contributed to the drug
addiction, they contributed to the end result; death.

33.  Number and Variety of Current Violations. 1t is very
important that the Board’s licensees comply with the standards of
pharmacy practice and applicable pharmacy laws. The five causes for
discipline proven demonstrate that Respondents failed to abide by those
standards and laws and acted without due regard for public health or
safety. Respondents provided large quantities of controlled substances
and at doses and frequencies that fell below the standard of care, The
public is protected when pharmacists are knowledgeable about their
responsibilities and act as patient advocates in the discharge of those
duties.

34.  Nature and Severity of the Acts. Respondents’ violations
are serious and demonstrate a fundamental disregard for the public’s
health and safety. In this case, Respondents chose not to exercise clinical
judgment, to communicate and listen, to assess the patients’ drug therapies
or the effect the drug was having on the patients, to interact with the
prescribers, to understand the true nature of the prescriptions or to
intervene when there were “red flags.” Instead, Respondents appeared to
choose profits over patient safety by continuously filling suspect
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prescriptions without question. This misconduct is serious and warrants
revocation.

As explained by the California Court of Appeal in Vermont &
100" Medical Arts Pharmacy v. Board of Pharmacy (1981) 125
Cal.App.3d 19, 25:

“A profession is a vocation or occupation requiring
special and advanced education and skill predominately
of an intellectual nature. The practice of pharmacy, like
the practice of medicine, is a profession.

For this reason, society entrusts to persons in these
professions the responsibility for control over a force
which, when properly used, has great benefit for
mankind, but when abused is a force for evil and human
destruction.

It follows that society cannot tolerate the presence of
individuals within these professions who abdicate their
professional responsibility and permit themselves to be
used as a conduit by which these controlled substances
reach the illicit market and become that force of evil to
which we allude,”

35. Aggravation/Mitigation/Whether the Conduct was
Negligent or Intentional. In aggravation, the Board considered that
Respondents Daher, Yamasaki and Nabhan were all experienced
community pharmacists who should have recognized the “red flags”
presented to them. As a board that inctudes community pharmacists, the
Board finds it inconceivable that when presented with these facts, over and
over again over many months, Respondents did not immediately contact
the prescribers, ask questions, and document those inquiries in the
patients’ records. Respondents’ own evidence showed they were capable
of doing this for other patients, but Respondents failed to produce any
credible evidence that they did so in this case. [...] In mitigation,
Respondents had no previous record of discipline, At best, their violations
demonstrate that Respondents fell below the standard of care of what a
reasonably prudent pharmacist would do under the same or similar
circumstances. However, at worst, Respondents’ misconduct exhibits a
reckless disregard for the public health and safety.

36. Rehabilitation Evidence. Respondents did not present any
rehabilitation evidence. Respondents all consistently denied they did
anything wrong in this matter, They expressed no remorse for their
misconduct. Respondent Daher, in particular, appeared to place blame on
the patients for their drug addictions and deaths. These failures to accept
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any responsibility and minimize the patients as human beings are of
concern to the Board. Respondent Daher, Yamasaki, and Nabhan’s
denials, lack of understanding of their responsibilities as pharmacists, and
their lack of remorse demonstrate that Respondents are not able to practice
with safety to the public.

37.  Financial Benefit to the Respondent from the Misconduct.
The evidence shows that Respondent JSD received huge financial gains
from dispensing controlled substances, particularly from Bass.
Respondent ISD was paid approximately $1.7 million dollars in cash for
Bass’ prescriptions. Respondent Daher admitted his financial interest in
continning to dispense these types of prescriptions in communications
with the Board’s staff. On April 16, 2008, Respondent Daher wrote
Inspector Bayley a letter indicating that he was experiencing a “slow down
of our business” and might have to lay off employees if he did not
continue to fill prescriptions from doctors like Bass.

Relationship of Prior Discipline to Duties as a Pharmacy Technician

5. a. The job duties of a pharmacy technician involve assisting the pharmacist
to follow the Pharmacy Law and exercising good judgment. A pharmacy technician is often the
first person to receive a prescription and enter it into the pharmacy’s computer, and may be in a
position to raise a concern about a prescription to the pharmacist, including a patient’s history of
prescriptions at the pharmacy or irregularities in the prescription itself. The pharmacy
technician may retrieve drug inventory; count, pour or mix pharmaceuticals; place drug product
in a container; affix labels to the container; perform packaging or repackaging; after it has been
filled by the pharmacist, accept payment and hand over a refilled prescription to a patient (if no
pharmacist consultation has been requested); return medications to inventory; and may speak
with doctors’ offices about prescriptions, among other things. (Bus. & Prof. Code § 41135,

16 C.C.R. § 1793.2.) The pharmacy technician has access to the pharmacy’s drug inventory,
which may include controlled substances. Prescription drugs are those that, generally because of
their toxicity or other potentiality for harmful effect, are not safe for use except under the
supervision of a practitioner licensed by law. (21 U.S.C. § 353, subd: (b).) Controlled
substances are drugs that have a potential for abuse; pharmacies, pharmacists and pharmacy
technicians are particularly closely regulated in their handling of controlled drugs because of the
risk they pose to the public. (See Health & Saf. Code, § 11000 ef seq.; 21 U.S.C. § 801 et seq.)
A pharmacy technician’s ability to exercise good judgement and to assist the pharmacist in
following the law is essential for the protection of patients and for the proper functioning of the
pharmacy itself,

5. b. Inspector Bayley testified on behalf of the Board. She explained the
Board's findings against Respondent in the 2014 Decision in the context of his current
application. Inspector Bayley testified that Respondent acting as a pharmacy technician
represents a risk of harm to consumers should Respondent become registered as a pharmacy
technician. In the 2014 Decision, Respondent refilled many prescriptions without proper
consideration or care, and failed to heed numerous obvious “red flags” that should have made
him question the validity of the prescriptions. Because Respondent exercised poor judgment in

15
DECISION AFTER REJECTION (Case No. 5585)




this regard before, Inspector Bayley opined that his judgment today is still a concern. Since a
pharmacist must rely upon a pharmacy technician in many ways, including access to drugs,
access to prescriptions, access to databases containing prescriptions, access to patients and
patient records, Respondent's prior lack of good judgment represents an ongoing, present danger
to the public.

Current Rehabilitation

6. Respondent stated he was not contesting the Board’s denial of his license
application, but was only asking for a second chance and seeking the Board’s mercy. He staied
that he loves pharmacy practice and deeply regrets his prior misconduct. Respondent seeks to
rebuild his pharmacy career as soon as possible.

7. Respondent presented evidence of continuing education. He completed a one-
year course in ethics and professionalism through the Institute for Medical Quality. (Exhibit B.)
He volunteered 100 hours of service to Western Pacific Med Corp (WPMC), a provider of
narcotic treatment programs in Southern California licensed by the California Department of
Health Services, Drug Enforcement Administration, and the Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Service Administration. WPMC’s president and chief executive officer submitted a reference
letter on Respondent's behalf, opining that if Respondent is given the opportunity to work in
pharmacy again, “he will make positive contributions to patients served.” (Exhibit C.) From
March 2014 through April 2016, Respondent completed 162 courses of Continuing Pharmacy
Education (CPE) totaling 239 hours of CPE earned. Of these courses, Respondent earned over
50 hours on the subject-matter of controlled substances and opioids. (Exhibit D.) Respondent
completed a Board-sponsored six-hour course entitled “Joint Training by the Board of Pharmacy
and U.S. Drug Enforcement Administration.” (Exhibit E.)

8. Multiple letter-writers submitted character-reference letters on Respondent's
behalf, all praising Respondent’s good personal and professional character. (Exhibits F-K.)

9. Respondent presently “volunteers”™ part-time as a clerk at Pax Pharmacy in
Duarte, which is owned and operated by his son, Michael Daher, a licensed pharmacist. If
Respondent obtains a pharmacy technician license, he will work for his son.

10.  Complainant challenges whether Respondent was truly remorseful for his past
misdeeds and presently understood his wrongdoing, In his appeal of the denial of his license, he
stated, “... the Board imposed discipline for a prescription refill resulting from a record keeping
error...” Respondent admitted that he made unprofessional decisions, exercised unprofessional
judgment, and committed unprofessional conduct. Respondent said he “filled prescriptions 1
shouldn't have filled,” and failed to coordinate with the prescribing physicians as he should have
done. (Respondent’s testimony.) He stated that he deeply regretted his conduct, and inaction,
because patients were hurt as a result,

LEGAL CONCLUSIONS

1. Cause exists to deny Respondent’s Application, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code (Code) section 480, subdivision (a)}(3)(A), in conjunction with California
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Code of Regulations, title 16 (Regulation), section 1770, on grounds that it would be against the
public interest to grant Respondent a license based on the acts he committed as found in the
2014 Decision, which if done by a licentiate of the business or profession in question, would be
grounds for suspension or revocation of a license, as set forth in Factual Findings 4 and 5.

2. Regulation section 1770, which applies to pharmacy technician applications,
provides that an act is “substantially related” if “to a substantial degree it evidences a present or
potential unfitness ... to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in a
manner -consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare.””"

3. Respondent’s multiple acts of misconduct found in the 2014 Decision fall within
this definition of substantial relationship to the duties of a pharmacy technician. Respondent's
many transgressions in that case were some of the most egregious violations by a pharmacist. In
particular, Respondent’s access as a pharmacy technician to prescription medications,
particularly controlled substances, could pose a danger considering his previous poor judgment.

4, As noted above, during the 2012-2013 hearing, Respondent consistently denied
any wrongdoing, displayed a lack of understanding of his responsibilities as a pharmacist,
expressed no remorse for his misconduct, and placed blame on the patients for their drug
addictions and deaths. For example, in responding to 22-year-old A.S.’s death, Respondent
explained,

“Idid not sell [A.S.] his medication in a dark alley, he walked into
my store. We regret his death but ultimately he is responsible for his own
actions ... Were his patents aware of his drug addiction? Did they do
anything about it?”

Respondent Daher defended his actions and the actions of the other respondents by
claiming that there had been a data or computer error based on a computer transition that
explained why unauthorized refills were provided. During the original investigation, no such
defense was presented. In addition, the 2014 Decision’s findings reflect that respondents failed
to establish that, if indeed a computer transition had occurred, it would have caused the record
keeping error in this circumstance. The finding further concluded that “Respondents’
explanation was not credible.”

The Board took these factors into account, and ultimately decided that Mr. Daher should
not continue to hold a pharmacist’s license, not even under probationary conditions. In so doing,
the Board told him that, in part, its decision was based on the fact that Respondent denied that
what he did was wrong, and that he expressed no remorse for his misconduct. (2014 Decision,
Legal Conclusion 36, quoted above.)

5. After the hearing in this matter, the ALJ found that Respondent was remorseful
and showed rehabilitation and recommended granting the license. Significant weight is given to
the ALJ’s demeanor and credibility finding, however, the Board is not bound by the ALJ's
determination of whether the applicant is qualified for licensure. (In re Glass (2014) 58 Cal.4th
500, 520-21; In re Gossage (2000) 23 Cal.4th 1080.) In this case, other evidence compels the

17
DECISION AFTER REJECTION (Case No. 5585)




Board to reject the conclusion that Respondent has overcome the rehabilitation hurdle created by
his prior misconduct.

6. Regulation section 1769, subdivision (b), provides that when considering the
denial of a facility or personal license under Section 480 of the Code, the board, in evaluating
the rehabilitation of the applicant and his present eligibility for licensing or registration, will
consider specific criteria, as follows:

a. The nature and severity of the act(s) or offense(s) under consideration as grounds
for denial. As discussed above, Respondent’s misconduct in the 2014 Decision was very
serious, evidenced a disregard for public safety, and contributed to the death of patients. It is
hard to imagine more serious misconduct in the practice of pharmacy.

7 b. Evidence of any act(s) committed subsequent to the act(s) or crime(s) under
consideration as grounds for denial under Section 480 [of the Code]. No such evidence was
presented.

c. The time that has elapsed since commission of the act(s) or crime(s). The

unprofessional conduct in the practice of pharmacy underlying the 2014 Decision occurred
between five and eight years ago. Respondent’s statements during the investigation, lack of
remorse, and attempt to place blame on a computer error at the hearing on the 2014 Decision,
however, occurred only two to three years before Respondent filed his application.

d. Whether the applicant has complied with any terms of parole, probation,
restitution or any other sanctions lawfully imposed against the applicant. Respondent is not
subject to parole, probation, restitution orders, or sanction orders.

e. Evidence, if any, of rehabilitation submitted by the applicant. Respondent

provided many character reference letters from persons attesting to his good character. Even had
they all testified in person, the testimony of character witnesses does not suffice by itself to
establish rehabilitation. (fn re Menna (1995) 11 Cal.4th 975, 988.) Respondent also provided
evidence of course work and volunteer hours he has completed, and the ALJ found that he
displayed a high degree of motivation to improve the quality of his work as well as his
professional knowledge. Given that Respondent planned to reapply for licensure as soon as
possible, his education and volunteer efforts are not persuasive indicators. Where serious
misconduct is involved, positive inferences about the applicant’s character are more difficult to
draw, and negative character inferences are stronger and more reasonable. (In re Gossage
(2000) 23 Cal.4th 1080, 1098.) Respondent’s motivation may be attributable to a desire return
to his former position and income. He “volunteers” for his son, but that is also a benefit to his
family, and his son, who he hopes will hire him if he is licensed. The Board found his desire for
profit to be a motivating factor in his prior misconduct. His expression of remorse and his desire
to return to the practice does not in and of itself demonstrate rehabilitation; it may also reflect a
desire to return to his prior financial success within the practice of pharmacy. Remorse does not
establish rehabilitation, however, and in any event, the probative value and weight of this
evidence is diminished because the remorse was not expressed around the time his misconduct
was identified, when it might have been most meaningful to the patients and their families, but
rather seemed timed to coincide with his effort to return to some sort of pharmacy practice. (In
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re Menna (1995) 11 Cal.4th 975, 991; In re Glass (2014) 58 Cal.4th 500, 525.) Respondent also
continued, as recently as in his appeal from the letter denying his application for a pharmacy
technician license, to attribute his misconduct to a “record keeping error,” Such statements
reflect a lack of responsibility for prior misconduct.

8. A return to practice on the basis of rehabilitation usually involves a substantial
period of exemplary conduct following the applicant’s misdeeds. (In re Gossage (2000) 23
Cal.4th 1080, 1096; Kwasnik v. State Bar (1990) 50 Cal.3d 1061, 1071-1072.) “The more
serious the misconduct and the bad character evidence, the stronger the applicant’s showing of
rehabilitation must be.” (Gossage, supra, citing In re Menna, 11 Cal.4th 975, 987 [additional
citations omitted].) Respondent filed this application shortly after his pharmacist license was
revoked. He did not demonstrate a substantial period of exemplary conduct following his
misconduct.

0. Respondent has failed to show that his rehabilitation efforts overcome the gravity
and nature of his prior unprofessional conduct.

ORDER

Respondent’s application for a pharmacy technician's registration is denied.

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on January 16, 2017.
It is so ORDERED on December 16, 2016,

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OFF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President

By
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BEFFORE THE

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Statement of Issues
Against:

ALBERT FARAH DAHER,

Pharmacy Technician Registration Applicant,

Case No. 5585
OAH No. 2016010267

Respondent.

TO ALL PARTIES AND THEIR ATTORNEY OF RECORD:

ORDER SETTING DATE FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN ARGUMENT

The administrative record of the hearing in the above-entitled matter having now become
available, the parties are hereby notified of the opportunity to submit written argument in
accordance with the Order Rejecting the Proposed Decision dated August 8, 2016.

Written argument shall be filed with the Board of Pharmacy, 1625 N. Market Bivd,, Suite
N-219, Sacramento, California, 95834 on or before October 17, 2016. No new evidence may

be submitted,

IT IS SO ORDERED this 16" day of September 2016,

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D,
Board President




BEFFORE THE

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Statement of Issues
Against:

ALBERT FARAH DAHER,

Pharmacy Technician Registration Applicant,

Case No. 5585
OAH No. 2016010267

Respondent.

TO ALL PARTIES AND THEIR ATTORNEY OF RECORD:

ORDER SETTING DATE FOR SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN ARGUMENT

The administrative record of the hearing in the above-entitled matter having now become
available, the parties are hereby notified of the opportunity to submit written argument in
accordance with the Order Rejecting the Proposed Decision dated August 8, 2016.

Written argument shall be filed with the Board of Pharmacy, 1625 N. Market Bivd,, Suite
N-219, Sacramento, California, 95834 on or before October 17, 2016. No new evidence may

be submitted,

IT IS SO ORDERED this 16" day of September 2016,

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D,
Board President




BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Statement of Issues Case No. 5585
Against: ‘
OAH No. 2016010267
ALBERT FARAH DAHER, .

Pharmacy Technician Registration Applicant

Respondent.

ORDER REJECTING PROPOSED DECISION

Pursuant to section 11517 of the Government Code, the Proposed Decision of the
Administrative Law Judge in the above-entitled matter is rejected. The California State Board of
Pharmacy (hereinafter "board") will decide the case upon the record, including the transcript(s)
of the hearing, and upon such written argument as the parties may wish to submit.

Although the right to argue is not limited, the board is particularly interested in whether
the proposed decision, including its factual findings and order, is appropriate. The parties will be
notified of the date for submission of such argument when the transcript of the above-mentioned
hearing becomes available.

It is so ORDERED on August 8, 2016.
BOARD OF PHARMACY

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

C

By

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President




BEFORE THE BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Statement of Issues

Against: - Case No. 5585
ALBERT FARAH DAHER, OAH No. 2016010267
Pharmacy Technician Registration Applicant,
Respondent.
PROPOSED DECISION

Administrative Law Judge John DeCure, Office of Administrative Hearings, State of
California, heard this matter on May 12, 2016, in Los Angeles, California.

Bora McCutcheon, Deputy Attorney General, represented Complainant. Respondent
Albert Farah Daher (Respondent) was present and represented himself. Evidence was
received, argument was heard, the record was closed and the matter was submitted for
decision on May 12, 2016.

This matter involves Respondent’s application for a pharmacy technician registration.
Respondent, a former licensed pharmacist and pharmacy owner, had both his pharmacy and
pharmacist’s licenses revoked in January 2014. He is presently seeking to reestablish
himself in the pharmacy profession, first by becoming a licensed pharmacy technician with
the current application at issue, then later by becoming a pharmacist again.

FACTUAL FINDINGS

1. On February 23, 2015, Respondent submitted an Application (Application) to
the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, State of California (Board), for a
pharmacy technician registration. On March 9, 2015, the Board denied the Application.
Respondent timely appealed the Board’s decision and this matter ensued.

2. 1. On November 23, 2015, Complainant Virginia Herold, Executive
Officer of the Board, filed the Statement of Issues in her official capacity.

3. The Statement of Issues alléges a single cause of action: that Respondent’s
Application is subject to denial because he committed acts while holding his individual




pharmacist’s license and as sole owner and pharmacist-in-charge of Jay Scott Drugs’ Retail
Pharmacy (Jay Scott), and those acts constituted grounds for revocation of those licenses. As
evidence of those acts, the Board referenced its Decision and Order in the Matter of the
Accusation Against Jay Scott Drugs, Albert Farah Daher, et al, agency case number 3482,
effective January 27, 2014 (the prior Decision).

The Prior Decision

4. Between 2008 and 2011, Board Inspector Sarah Bayley repeatedly inspected
Jay Scott and determined that Respondent and two other pharmacists named in the
Accusation violated pharmacy laws and regulations involving filling and dispensing of
controlled substances Respondent and the other pharmacists knew or should have known
were procured for illegitimate purposes. The violations occurred during the time-period the
matter was investigated. The evidence showed recurring issues with a number of patients
receiving controlled substances, including: repeated, consistent controlled substance
prescriptions for the same combination of drugs in the same dosage, same quantity, and with
the same directions issued to a large number of generally younger patients and to many types
of patients regardless of age or gender. The drugs prescribed were popular combinations
with drug addicts, and included Norco (hydrocodone/APAP), Xanax, Soma, Lorcet,
OxyContin, and Valium. The patients paid in cash either exclusively or almost exclusively,
and traveled significant distances from their homes to obtain the prescriptions. Drug
combinations that should have been closely monitored were not evaluated, the drugs’
prescribers were not contacted, and there were no communications with patients about their
drug therapies. Several patients died of drug overdoses. One prescribing physician was
criminally prosecuted for his prescribing practices and had his physician’s and surgeon’s
certificate revoked by the Medical Board of California. Respondent denied any wrongdoing.
He and Jay Scott were found to have favored profits over public safety by continuously
filling suspect prescriptions without question, and failing to intervene when there were “red
flags” as described above. Respondent consistently denied any wrongdoing, displayed a lack
of understanding of his responsibilities as a pharmacist, expressed no remorse for his
misconduct, and placed blame on the patients for their drug addictions and deaths.

The Issue of Rehabilitation

5(a). Inspector Bayley testified on behalf of the Board, reiterating the Board’s
findings against Respondent in the prior Decision in the context of his current application.
Inspector Bayley outlined the job duties of a registered pharmacy technician. A pharmacy
technician is often the first person to receive a prescription and enter it into the pharmacy’s
computer. The pharmacy technician also retrieves drug inventory, prepares prescriptions,
returns medications to inventory, takes phone calls from doctors’ offices, handles requests
for refills, discusses new prescriptions and any prescription-related problems with patients,
and works alone when the pharmacist is on a break, among other things. Due to this variety
of duties, a supervising pharmacist must rely on the pharmacist technician’s exercise of good
judgment at all times.




5(b). Inspector Bayley noted that a pharmacy technician may process prescription
refills, which represents a risk of harm in this matter, should Respondent become registered
as a pharmacy technician. In the prior Decision, Respondent refilled many prescriptions
without proper consideration or care, and while failing to heed numerous “red flags” that
should have made him question the validity of the prescriptions. Because Respondent
exercised poor judgment in this regard before, Inspector Bayley opined that his judgment
today would still be of concern. Since a pharmacist must rely upon a pharmacy technician in
several ways, including the handling of refill requests, Inspector Bayley believed
Respondent’s prior lack of good judgment could represent an ongoing, present danger to the
public. '

6. Respondent stated he was not contesting the Board’s denial of his license
application, but was only asking for a second chance and seeking the Board’s mercy. He
loves pharmacy practice and deeply regrets his prior misconduct. Respondent seeks a
probationary pharmacy technician registration license only, so that he may be supervised by
the Board and by a licensed pharmacist. Respondent believes these two levels of oversight

will provide a further measure of safety while Respondent begins to rebuild his pharmacy
career. '

7. Respondent presented substantial evidence of rehabilitation through
continuing education. He completed a one-year course in ethics and professionalism through
the Institute for Medical Quality. (Exhibit B.) He volunteered 100 hours of service to
Western Pacific Med Corp (WPMC), a provider of narcotic treatment programs in Southern
California licensed by the California Department of Health Services, Drug Enforcement
Administration, and the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Service Administration.
WPMC’s president and chief executive officer submitted a reference letter on Respondent’s
behalf, opining that if Respondent is given the opportunity to work in pharmacy again, “he
will make positive contributions to patients served.” (Exhibit C.) From March 2014 through
April 2016, Respondent completed 162 courses of Continuing Pharmacy Education (CPE)
totaling 239 hours of CPE earned. Of these courses, Respondent earned over 50 hours on the
subject-matter of controlled substances and opioids. (Exhibit D.) Respondent completed a
Board-sponsored six-hour course entitled “Joint Training by the Board of Pharmacy and U.S.
Drug Enforcement Administration.” (Exhibit E.)

8. Multiple letter-writers submitted character-reference letters on Respondent’s
behalf, all praising Respondent’s good personal and professional character. (Exhibits F-K.)

9. Respondent presently volunteers part-time as a clerk at Pax Pharmacy in
Duarte, which is owned and operated by his son, Michael Daher, a licensed pharmacist. If
Respondent obtains a pharmacy technician license, he will work for his son.

10.  Board counsel cross-examined Respondent vigorously, challenging whether he
was truly remorseful for his past misdeeds and presently understood his wrongdoing.
Respondent admitted that he made unprofessional decisions, exercised unprofessional
judgment, and committed unprofessional conduct. Respondent said he “filled prescriptions I




shouldn’t have filled,” and failed to coordinate with the prescribing physicians as he should
have done. (Respondent’s testimony.) He deeply regretted his conduct, and inaction,
because patients were hurt as a result. In sum, Respondent displayed appropriate, sincere
remorse and insight into his misconduct. .

LEGAL CONCLUSIONS

1. Cause exists to deny Respondent's Application, pursuant to Business and
Professions Code (Code) section 480, subdivision (a)(3)(A), in conjunction with California
Code of Regulations, title 16 (Regulation), section 1770, on grounds that it would be against
the public interest to grant Respondent a license based on the acts he committed as found in
the prior Decision, which if done by a licentiate of the business or profession in question,

would be grounds for suspension or revocation of a license, as set forth in Factual Findings 4
and 5.

2. Regulation section 1770, which applies to pharmacy technician applications,
provides that an act is “substantially related” if “to a substantial degree it evidences a present
or potential unfitness . . . to perform the functions authorized by his license or registration in
a manner consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare.”

3. Respondent’s multiple acts of misconduct found in the prior Decision fall
within this definition of substantial relationship to the duties of a pharmacy technician.
Respondent’s many transgressions in that case were extremely serious. Inspector Bayley
credibly noted that in particular, Respondent’s ability to refill prescriptions independently as
a pharmacy technician could pose a danger, considering his previous poor judgment.

4. Despite this substantial relationship, Respondent presented as humble and
sincerely remorseful. He is highly motivated to learn and improve, as evidenced by the

extensive course work he has completed, much of which is directly related to his misconduct
in the prior Decision.

3. Regulation section 1769, subdivision (b), provides that when considering the
denial of a facility or personal license under Section 480 of the Code, the board, in evaluating
the rehabilitation of the applicant and his present eligibility for licensing or registration, will
consider specific criteria, as follows:

a. The nature and severity of the act(s) or offense(s) under consideration as
grounds for denial. Respondent’s misconduct in the prior Decision was very serious,
evidenced a disregard for public safety, and contributed to the death of patients.

b. Evidence of any act(s) committed subsequent to the act(s) or crime(s) under

consideration as grounds for denial under Section 480 [of the Code]. No such evidence was
presented.




C. The time that has elapsed since commission of the act(s) or crime(s) referred
to in subdivision (1) or (2). The acts leading to the prior Decision are somewhat remote in
time, having occurred between five and eight years ago. This is a fact which would usually
favor an applicant.

d. Whether the applicant has complied with any terms of parole, probation,
restitution or any other sanctions lawfully imposed against the applicant. Respondent is not
subject to parole, probation, restitution orders, or sanction orders.

e. Evidence, if any, of rehabilitation submitted by the applicant. Respondent
provided many character reference letters from persons attesting to his good character. He
provided remarkably extensive evidence of course work he has completed, displaying a high
degree of motivation to improve the quality of his work as well as his professional

knowledge. He was a candid witness who expressed sincere remorse for his prior
misconduct.

6. Considering these factors, the evidence indicates Respondent has gained
appropriate insight into his previous misdeeds and has re-trained himself with-a particular
focus on proper prescribing practices relevant to controlled substances. His sense of caution,
discretion, and humility is evidenced by his request for a probationary license only, which he
would use while practicing as a pharmacy technician at his son’s pharmacy. Such continuing
oversight would address Inspector Bayley’s concern regarding Respondent exercising sound
judgment in a pharmacy setting. All of this suggests he is engaged in a steady, deliberate
process of becoming sufficiently rehabilitated. He has proven himself an appropriate
candidate for probationary licensure as follows.

ORDER

Respondent’s application for a pharmacy technician’s registration is granted.
However, the registration is revoked, the revocation is stayed, and Respondent is issued a

probationary pharmacist technician registration for three years upon the following terms and
conditions:

1. Obey All Laws

Respondent shall obey all state and federal laws and regulations. Respondent shall
report any of the following occurrences to the board, in writing, within 72 hours of such
occurrence: an arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the
Pharmacy Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled
substances laws; a plea of guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal criminal proceeding
to any criminal complaint, information or indictment; a conviction of any crime; discipline,
citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency which involves
Respondent’s pharmacist technician registration or which is related to the practice of
pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling, distributing, billing, or charging for any




drug, device or controlled substance. Failure to timely report such occurrence shall be
considered a violation of probation.

2. Report to the Board

Respondent shall report to the board quarterly, on a schedule as directed by the Board
or its designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed. Among
other requirements, Respondent shall state in each report under penalty of perjury whether
there has been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Failure to submit
timely reports in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any
period(s) of delinquency in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period
of probation. Moreover, if the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall

be automatically extended until such time as the final report is made and accepted by the
board.

3. Interview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, Respondent shall appear in person for
interviews with the Board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determined
by the board or its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior
notification to board staff, or failure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled interviews with

the Board or its designee during the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of
probation.

4. Cooperate with Board Staff

Respondent shall cooperate with the Board's inspection program and with the Board's
monitoring and investigation of Respondent compliance with the terms and conditions of his
probation. Failure to cooperate shall be considered a violation of probation.

5. Continuing Education

Respondenf shall provide evidence of his efforts to maintain skill and knowledge as a
pharmacy technician as directed by the Board or its designee.

6. Notice to Employers

During the period of probation, only where applicable, Respondent shall notify all
present and prospective employers of the decision in case number 5585 and the terms,
conditions and restrictions imposed on Respondent by the decision, as follows:

Within 30 days of the effective date of this decision, and within 15 days of
Respondent undertaking any new employment, in that event only Respondent shall cause his
direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-charge (including each new pharmacist-in-charge employed
during Respondent’s tenure of employment) and owner to report to the Board in writing
acknowledging that the listed individual(s) has/have read the decision in case number 5585,




and terms and conditions imposed thereby. It shall be Respondent’s responsibility to ensure
that his employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit timely acknowledgment(s) to the Board.

If Respondent should work for or become employed by or through a pharmacy
employment service, he must notify his direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-charge, and owner at
every entity licensed by the Board of the terms and conditions of the decision in case number
5585 in advance of Respondent commencing work at each licensed entity. A record of this
notification must be provided to.the Board upon request.

Furthermore, within 30 days of the effective date of this decision, and within 15 days
of Respondent undertaking any new employment by or through a pharmacy employment
service, in that event Respondent shall cause his direct supervisor with the pharmacy
employment service to report to the Board in writing acknowledging that he or she has read
the decision in case number 5585 and the terms and conditions imposed thereby. It shall be

Respondent’s responsibility to ensure that his employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit timely
acknowledgment(s) to the Board. '

Failure to timely notify present or prospective employer(s) or to cause that/those

employer(s) to submit timely acknowledgments to the Board shall be considered a violation
of probation.

"Employment" within the meaning of this provision shall include any full-time, part-
time, temporary, relief or pharmacy management service as a pharmacist or any position for
which a pharmacist license is a requirement or criterion for employment, whether the
respondent is an employee, independent contractor or volunteer.

7. No Supervision of Interns

During the period of probation, Respondent shall not supervise any intern pharmacist.
Assumption of any such unauthorized supervision responsibilities shall be considered a
violation of probation.

8. Probation Monitoring Costs

Respondents shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as determined
by the Board each and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable to the Board on a
schedule as directed by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the
deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation.

9, Status of Licenses

Respondent shall, at all times while on probation, maintain an active, current
pharmacy technician registration with the Board, including any period during which
suspension or probation is tolled. Failure to maintain an active, current registration shall be
considered a violation of probation.




If Respondent’s registration expires or is cancelled by operation of law or otherwise
at any time during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof due to tolling or
otherwise, upon renewal or reapplication Respondent’s registration shall be subject to all
terms and conditions of this probation not previously satisfied.

10. License Surrender While on Probation/Suspension

Following the effective date of this decision, should Respondent cease practice due to
retirement or health, or be otherwise unable to satisfy the terms and conditions of probation,
Respondent may tender his registration to the Board for surrender. The Board or its designee
shall have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other action it
deems appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal acceptance of the surrender of the
registration, Respondent will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions of probation.

This surrender constitutes a record of discipline and shall become a part of the Respondent’s
license history with the Board.

Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent shall relinquish his pocket and wall
registration to the Board within 10 days of notification by the Board that the surrender is
accepted. Respondent may not reapply for any license or registration from the Board for 3
years from the effective date of the surrender. Respondent shall meet all requirements
applicable to the license sought as of the date the application for that license is submitted to
the board, including any outstanding costs.

11. Notification of a Change in Name, Residence Address, Mailing Address or
Employment

Respondent shall notify the Board in writing within 10 days of any change of
employment. Said notification shall include the reasons for leaving, the address of the new
employer, the name of the supervisor and owner, and the work schedule if known.
Respondent shall further notify the Board in writing within 10 days of a change in name,
residence address, mailing address, or phone number.

Failure to timely notify the Board of any change in employer(s), name(s), address(es),
or phone number(s) shall be considered a violation of probation.

12. Tolling of Probation

Except during periods of suspension, Respondent shall, at all times while on
probation, be employed as a pharmacy technician in California for a minimum of 120 hours
per calendar month. Any month during which this minimum is not met shall toll the period
of probation, i.e., the period of probation shall be extended by one month for each month
during which this minimum is not met. During any such period of tolling of probation,
Respondent must nonetheless comply with all terms and conditions of probation.

Should Respondent, regardless of residency, for any reason (including vacation) cease
practicing as a pharmacy technician for a minimum of 120 hours per calendar month in




California, Respondent must notify the Board in writing within 10 days of the cessation of
practice, and must further notify the Board in writing within 10 days of the resumption of

practice. Any failure to provide such notification(s) shall be considered a violation of
probation.

It is a violation of probation for Respondent's probation to remain tolled pursuant to
the provisions of this condition for a total period, counting consecutive and non-consecutive
months, exceeding 36 months.

“Cessation of practice" means any calendar month during which Respondent is not
practicing as a pharmacy technician for at least 120 hours, as defined by Business and
Professions Code section 4000 et seq . "Resumption of practice" means any calendar month
during which Respondent is practicing as a pharmacy technician for at least 120 hours as a
pharmacist as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4000 et seq.

13. Violation of Probation

If Respondent has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the Board
shall have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent, and probation shall automatically be
extended, until all terms and conditions have been satisfied or the Board has taken other
action as deemed appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a violation of probation, to
terminate probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed.

If Respondent violates probation in any respect, the Board, after giving Respondent
notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry out the disciplinary
order that was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not required for those
provisions stating that a violation thereof may lead to automatic termination of the stay
and/or revocation of the license. If a petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed
against Respondent during probation, the Board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the
period of probation shall be automatically extended until the petition to revoke probation or
accusation is heard and decided. '

14. Pharmacy Self-Assessment Mechanism

Within the first year of probation, Respondent shall complete the Pharmacist Self-
Assessment Mechanism (PSAM) examination provided by the National Association of
Boards of Pharmacy (NABP). Respondent shall submit a record of completion to the Board
demonstrating he has completed this examination. Respondent shall bear all costs for the
examination. Continuing education hours received for this examination shall not be used as
part of the required continuing education hours for renewal purposes.

Failure to timely complete the PSAM or submit documentation thereof shall be
considered a violation of probation.

Respondent shall waive any rights to confidentiality and provide examination results
to the board or its designee.




15. No New Ownership of Licensed Premises

Respondent shall not acquire any new ownership, legal or beneficial interest nor serve
as a manager, administrator, member, officer, director, trustee, associate, or partner of any
business, firm, partnership, or corporation licensed by the Board. Violation of this restriction
shall be considered a violation of probation.

16. Ethics Course

Within 60 calendar days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent shall enroll
in a course in ethics, at Respondent’s expense, approved in advance by the Board or its
designee. Failure to initiate the course during the first year of probation, and complete it
within the second year of probation, is a violation of probation.

Respondent shall submit a certificate of completion to the Board or its designee
within five days after completing the course.

17. Completion of Probation

Upon written notice by the Board or its designee indicating successful completion of
probation, Respondent’s registration will be fully restored.

Dated: June 13, 2016

DocuSigned by:
yﬂkﬂ 9&6%0
17FD47F60FO0543E...
JOHN E. DECURE
Administrative Law Judge
Office of Administrative Hearings
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KAMALA D, HARRIS .

Attorney General of California
ARMANDO ZAMBRANO

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

il NANCY A, KAISER

Deputy Attorney General

State Bar No. 192083
300 So, Spring Street, Suite 1702
Los Angeles, CA 90013
Telephone; (213) 897-5794
Facsimile; (213) 897-2804

Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

.Applicant

Tn the Matter of the Statement of Issues | Case No, 5585
Against:

ALBERT FARAH DAHER

STATEMENT OF ISSUES
Pharmacy Technician Registration . '

Respondent.

Complainant alleges:’

PARTIES

1, . Virginia Herold (Complainaﬁt) brings this Statement of Issues solely in her official
capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs,

2.  Onor about March 9, 2015, the Board of Pharmacy, Deparlmén’z of Consumer Affairs
received an application for a Pharmacy Technician Registration from Albert Fargh Daher '
(Respondent). “On or about February 23, 2015, Albert Farah Daher certified under penalty of
perjury to the truthfulness .of all statements, answers, and representations in the application. The
Board denied the application on July 9, 20185, _

3.  Onor about March 12, 1985, the Board of Pharmacy issﬁed Pharmacist License .
Number RPH 39189 to Albert Farah Daher (Respondent baher). The Pharmacist License wés
revoked effective January 27, 2014, as set forth in paragraph 5 below.

1
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4, Onor about June 27, 1995, the Board of Pharmacy issued Retail Pharmacy License
Number PHY 40912 to Jay Scott Drugs (Respondent), located at 220 North Glenoaks, Bu:banlc,
California, Albert Farah Daher was the sole owner of Jay Scott Drugs and was the thmacls.tqn-.
Chatge of Jay Scott Drugs from 1998 to January 27, 2014, The Retail Pharmaoy License was
1ev0ked effective January 27, 2014, as set forth in paragraph 5 below.

DISCIPLINARY HISTORY

5, OnDecember 27, 201 3, pursuant to the Decision in the disciplinary actlon titled In
the Matter of the Accusation Against: Jay Scott Drugs, Albert Farah Daher, et al., Case No,
3482, the Board revoked Respondent's Pharmacist License Number RPH 39189 and Jay Scott
Drugs’ Retail Pharmacy License Number PHY 40912, with Respondent as sole owner and
Pharmacist-in-Charge, effectiye January 27, 2014, for Respondent’s violations of the followiﬁg:

8. Business and Profcssi'oqs Code Sections 4301, subdivision (o), and 4063 .
(Unpl;ofessional Conduct - Refill of I’res.criptions without Pre_spriber'.s Authorizatién)‘;

b. ‘ Business and Professions Code Sections 4301, subdivision (o), and 4306.5,
subdivision (¢), and California Code of Regulations, ﬁtle 16, sections 1707.3 or 1761 ‘
(Unprofessional Conduct - Failure to Review Drug Therapy and Patient Medic;ation Record);

c.  Business and Professions Code Section 4301, subdiv.isions (d), (§) and (o), Health and

Safety Code section 11153, and California Code of Regulaﬁons, title 16, section 1761,

- subdivision (b) (U nprofessiohal Conduct - Failure to Exercise Professional

J udgmcn’{f’ Corresponding Responsibility);
d.  Business and Professions Code Section 4301 (Unprofessmnal Conduct)
A true and correct copy of the Decision is attached hereto as Exhibit A.
JURISDICTION

6.  This Statement of Issues is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Boa1d)
Depariment of Consumer Affalrs, under the authority of the following laws, All section

references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated,

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Case No. 5585)
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| reinstate a license, the board shall give consideration to evidence of rehabilitation; However,

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

7, Section 480 of the Code states, in part;
"(a) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the grounds that the apphoant has
one of the following;: ‘

“(3) (A) Done any act that if done by a licentiate of the business or professmn in questxon,
would be grounds for quspemmn or revocation of hccnse

“B) The board may deny a license pursuant to this subdivision only if the c.rime or act is
sﬁbstantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or profession for
which application is made.”

8.  Section 4300 prox)ides in pertinent part, that every license issued by the Board is
subject to discipline, including suspensidn of revocation.

9,  Section 4301 states, in part:

"The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is gullty of unprofessional

conduet or whose license has been procured by frand or misrepresentation or issued by mistake.

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following;
“(p) Actions or conduct that would have Warranteci denial of a license.”

10, Section 4313 of the Code states:

"In determining whether to grant an application for licensure or whether to discipline or

public protection shall take priority over rehabilitation and, where evidence of rehabilitation and
publi¢ protection are in conflict, public protection shall take precedence.”

REGULATORY PROVISIONS

11. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1770, states:
"For the purpose of denial, suspension, or revocation of a personal or facility license
pursuant to Division 1.5 (commencing with Section 475) of the Business and Professions Code, a

crime or act shall be considered substantially related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a

3
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licensee or registrant if to a substantial degree it evidences present or potential unfitness of a
licensee or registrant to perform the functions suthorized by his license ot registration in a manner
consistent with the public health, safety, or welfare."

CAUSE FOR DENIAIL

{(Acts Warranting Revocation of Licensure: Accusation No. 348-2)

11. Respondent’s application is subject to denial pursuant to sections 4301, subdivision
(), and 480, subdivisions (a)(3)(A) and (a)(3)(]§), in conjunction with California Code of
Regulations, title 16, section 1770, in that he cpmmitted acts while holding Pharmacist License
Number RPH 39189 and Jay Scott Drugs’ Retail Pharmeacy License Number PH%I 40912, as sole
ownet and Pharmacist-in-Charge, which were grounds for revocation of the licenses, as set forth
in paragraph 5 above.

PRAYER |

WHEREFORE, Complainant requésts that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that following the hearing,. the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

1.  Denying the application of Albert Farah Daher for a Pharmacy Technician
Registration;

2. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED: ///23//5 /)Mzm,a_/

“VIRGINIA HEROLD
Bxecutiyé Officer
Board of Pharmacy
Department of Consumer Ai‘fans
State of California
Complainant

L.A2015501880
11998582.doc -
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EXHIBIT A

Decision in In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Jay Scott Drugs,
Albert Farah Daher, et al., Case No. 3482

STATEMENT OF ISSUES (Case No. 5585)




BEFORE THE
~BOARD OF PHARMACY .
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the First Aménde'd
Accusation Against:

; . JAY SCOTT DRUGS,
| | P.LC. ALBERT DAHER, .

* Agency Case No. 3482 .
| ~ Retail Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 40912 OAH Case No. 2011020500

ALBERT FARAH DAHER .
" Pharmacist License No. RPH.39189

AHMAD SHAT! NABHAN -
Pharmacist License No. RPH 41754

and

- JUN YAMASAKI
Pharmacist License No RPH 19983

: Respondéﬁts.

" DECISION AFTER NONADOPTION -

e ' Damel Juarez Admlmstratlve law Judge Oﬁlce of Admmlstratlve Hearmgs :
!_ ' heard this matter on October 30 and 31, and November 1, 5-7, and 13- '16 2.012 and
May 28 and 24, and June 4—7 2013, in Los'Angeles, Cahforma

“Nancy A. Kaiser, Deputy Attorney General, represented Virginia K. Heroid
(Complamant) Exeou’uve Officer of the Board of Pharmaoy (Board)..

Gregory P. Matzen, Esq., and Fneden’chal, Heﬁeman;& Klem_, and Daniel R.
Friedenthal, Esq., represented Jay Scott Drugs (Respondent JSD), -Albert Farah Daher
(Respondent Daher), Ahmad Shati Nabhan (Respondent Nabhan), and Jun Yamasaki




(Respondent Yamasaki). Respondents were each present on the first day of hearing.
During the-hearing, Respondents Nabhan and Yamasakt requested leave to attend to
their employment duties;while having: Respondent ‘Daherpresent on every day of

hearing. Respondents Nabhan ‘and-Yamasaki made ‘themselves available for -
. examination as needed by both parties. The Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) made no

negative findings against Respondents from the requested and permlt’ted absences of
Respondents Nabhan and Yamasaki.

The ALJ left the record open to allow the partles to file ciosmg briefs by July 12,
2013. The partles filed closing briefs ‘nmely

The parties su_bml‘cted the matter for decision by the ALJ on July 12, 2013,

The proposed decision of the ALJ was submitted to the Board of Pharmacy on
August 14, 2013. After due consideration thereof, the Board of. Pharfacy. declined to
adopt said proposed decision and theréafter on Septetnber 25, 2013-issued an Order
of Non-adoption. On September 25, 2013, the Board also issued an Order Fixing Date
for Submission of Written Arguments. Thereafter, Respondents requested additional
time-fo submit written arguments. On October 45,:2043;"anOrder Extending Time for

Providing Written Argument was issued granting-the parties until November 8, 2013 to
submit written arguments. .

Wiritten argument-naving been received.from ComplainantandRespondents,
the time for filing written argument in this matter-Having‘éxpired; and the-entire record,
including the transcript of said hearing having been read and considered, the Board of

‘Pharmacy pursuant fo Section 11517 of the Government Code hereby makee the
following decision:

| STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Complainant alleges that Respondente -excessively dispensed controlled
substances to numerous patients, resulting in violations of pharmacy law, and in some
cases, patient deaths or the exacerbation of drug.addictions. Reference to the patients’
is limited fo initials to preserve their privacy. The patients are: A.S., J.5,, N.V,, S.R.,
B AN Dl DK ABGE DS, EGAW,-C G T RGP -SSP G.C. Jr. -NC FR,
J.C.,andA.C. The: alieged causes for. d(soxphne aret. 1) renlhng presonphons thhout
presonber authorization; 2) failing to-review driig therapies-and patient tmedication

records; 3) failing to exercise professionaljudgment; 4) failing to review patient profiles
prior to-dispensing prescriptions; and, 5) unprofessional conduct. Comp}amant seeks .
‘the revocation of each Respondent’s Board zssued hoense and: the oosts of
investigation and prosecution. =~

Respondents deny the al!ega’nons asserting that fhey: oonsndered each patient's
prescription before dispensing -and exsrcised-their professional judgment accordingly.
Respondents seek i€ dismissal of the Accusation.




FACTUAL FINDINGS

Jurisdiction

1. Complalnan’t ﬂled the Flrst Amended Accusatlon on February 24, 20'12
The original Accusation was filed on August 4, 2010. Respondents Nabhan and
Yamasaki filed Notices. of- Defense on August 21, 2010, and.August 23, 2010,-
respectively. Respondents JSD and Daher filed a Notice of Defense on August 30,
2010-(Respondents’ counsel flled this Notice of Defense on all Respondents behalf).

. Llcense Certlﬁcatlon .

2. On June 27, 1995, the Board issued original permlt number F’HY 40912
to Respondent JSD, authorizing Respondent Daher to do business as “Jay Scott
Drugs.” Respondent Daher has been the pharmacist-in-charge (P.1.C, ) at Jay Scott
Drugs since June 1,-1998. At.hearing, evidence of licensure established that .
Respondent JSD's permrt expired.on-June 1, 2013. Subsequently, Respondent JSD

" renewed its permit and it is currently set to.expire on June 1, 2014.. Evenif- - ..
- Respondent JSD had not renewed its permit, however, the Board retains. Jurrsdrctron

over all ‘of Respondents’. licenses for purposes of this action, pursuant to Blsiness and
Professrons Code seotlon 4300 1.

3. On March 12 1985, the Board issued original pharmacrst hcense number
. RPH 39189 fo- Respondent Daher lt expires on January 31, 2015, unless renewed

4. On April 20, 1988 ’che Board issued original pharmacrst hcenee number
RPH 41754 1o Respondent Nabhan; it explres on May 31, 2015 unjess. renewed

" 5. " On July 28 1956 the Board issued ongmal pharmacrst hcense number )
- RPH 19883 1o Respondent Yamasakr 1t expires on March 31 2014, un\ess renewed

The Board's !nspectlon—-—Overall Fmqus

6. Board Inspeotor Sarah Bayley (Bayley) rnspec’ced Responden’[ JSDon-

- - yarious-occasions-between-2008-and-2014 and-determined-that-Respondenis-violated - - .

pharmacy laws and regulations involving the filling and dispensing .of -controlled .

substances that Respondents knew.or should have known were far lliegltlma’re
purposes - : .

7. She received a Doctor of Pharmacy degree from the University of
Soeuthern California in 1994. Frem 1994 to 2000, Bayley was a Staff
Pharmacist/Diabetes Care Pharmacist at Sav-On Pharmacy in Hawaiian- Gardens
California. Bayley has been-a Board Inspector since 2000. During her time as an
inspector for the Board, Bayley has performed approximately six hundred (600)
investigations; thirty (30) of those cases involved allegations of a pharmacist failing to




properly exercise his or her corresponding responsmﬂlty in dispensing control&ed

. substances

.8, During Bayley’s reviews, she found recurring issues with a nnfnge? of
patients who received controlied substarices. THe characteristics.included, among

" other things, repeated consnstentprescnptlons for controlled substances for the.same

combination of drugs'in'the same dosage, same quantity; and with the. same directions

1o a large number-of geherally younger patients and to many types -of patients
- regardiess-of age orgender. The drugs'are described in detail later. According-to

Bayley and as alleged by Complainant, these drugs, in combination, were a popular
combination sought by drug addicts. Bayley also found that the patients at-issue- paid
in cash exclusively; or almost exclusively, and traveled significant distances from their

- homes to obtaln the medlcatlons whlcn ehou\d have ralsed “ﬂags for Respondents

9 Bayley opmed tha’t a prudent pharmacts’t wouid questlon Dr Bass .
prescribing pattem of isstiihg prescnptlons forthesame dosagde; quantity and drug
cormbinations over a longiperiod-of time-for different types of patients . This was. .
par’clculariy true forthose comibinations that should be closely‘ronitored: specxflcally,
thdse drug-combiriatidis that include sedatives, #in‘her view;Respondents had-many .
chances-over a-long pefiod-of time to re-evaluate, communicatewith-the prescriber,
talk to the patients about their drug therapies, and doclimentthe: commuinicationsfor
best patient care. However, she found no evidence that Respondents had done.this.

“Similarly; Bayley-found no “documentation: of aiy. comminications:bétween

Respondénts and Dr. Bamdad about any patient.After.Bayley began-her investigation, .
Respondent Daher indicated that he had stopped dispensing prescriptions for the -
types of pain medications thatiDr. Bass Had ‘prescribed“However,:on April 16, 2008,
Respondent Dafier wrote Bayley & letter indicating that he 'was-experiencing a “slow
down of our business” and he was “having fo choose how many and which employees .
to lay on because of the s}ow down of our busmess ! (State 8. Ex 13)

Bemard N, Bass‘ l\ﬁ D and N'lassoud Bamdad M D

‘IO Comp\alnant focused her case on the plescrxptlons tesued by two
physiciang; Berfiard N. Bass,; M.D. (Bass), 'and; fo a lésser-extent;. Massoud Bamdad,

- W-D-(Bamdad)--Bass-treated-the-vastma|ority-ofthe-patients-at {ssue-here:and-issued.

the majority of their. prescnpt!ons Unrelated to the instant disciplinary. matter and at
different times; each physician admitted-to.improperly prescribing controlled- . .
substances. ‘Each physician faced medical license disciplinary action and criminal ‘
prosecution for his prescribing practices, among other things. Those actions are noted
herein 1o establish that'the prescribing practices of Bass.and-Bamdad were below the
standard of carefor physicians. Howiever, the dicense discipline and.criminal actions
against Bass'and Bamdad afe not dispositive of whether'Respondents violated.the

. standard of-cafe for- pharmams‘ns The Board did'not find. or conclude that

Responden’ts viglated any pharmacydaw or regulation based on Bass’ orBamdad’s -
Medical Board discipling of criminal prosecutions. The' prescriptions at issue were




-analyzed lndependent of Bass and Bamdad's mlsconduot as physicians and wewed
from the perspective of a reasonable and prudent pharmacist. -

11. - In March and Aprit 2008 seven patients of Bass died due to drug
overdoses. Respondent JSD dispensed prescriptions from Bass to five, of the .seven
deceased patients: A.S., L.G., AW, DL, and D.K. Bass suffered criminal proseoutlon
' and hcense discipline Wrth regard 1o his preecrlptlon actlvrty

12. On July 8, 2008 the Ventura County Superror Court ordered Bass to
cease and desist from the practice of medicine as a condition of bail or as:a condition
of release on his own recognizance during the pendency of the criminal action against
him. The court further, ordered Bass to surrender all controlied substarice prescription

forms by July 11, 2008, to the court clerk (The People of the State of California v.
Bemnard N. Bass gase no. 20080206056)

13. . .Effective February 20, 2009, the Callfomra Medrcal Board revoked Bass's
medical license, stayed the revocation, and placed-Bass's medical license on-seven
years' probation with various terms and conditions. The terms and conditions of
probatien included a 90-day actual suspension, Bass' surrendering of:his Drug
Enforcernent Administration perrnrt and prescription fortms, abstaining from.the use or .
possession of controlled substances, taking a prescribing. prac’ucee course, a medical
" record keeping course, an ethics course, a clinical training program, and submitting fo
a practice and billing monitor. The Board aiso prohibited Bass from engaging in the
solo practice of medicine (In.the Matter of the Accusation Agamst -Bemard N, Bass,
M.D., agency case no. -05-2005- 167939)

14 On May 29, 2009, followmg a guilty plea m oase number 2008026956
the Ventura County Superior Court convicted Bass of vrola’nng Penal Code section
182, subdivision (a)(1) (conspiracy to commit a crime: the fraudulent prescription of
controlled substances),-a felony. “The evidence was inconclusive regarding the court’s
sentence; it appeared that the court sentenced Bass-to two years of propation.,

15. Bass died on a date unspecified by the, evidence,. but before the insta.nt ~‘
hearing. ' ' '

. 16 At the tlme of the hearmg the Medlcal Board s webelte ehowed that Bass
- had a primary general medicine practice and a secondary practice area of “pain .
 medicine.” The Medical Board’s website did not further explain or describe his.pain

medicine practrce There was no evidence of What the Medlcal Board’s websrte
contained in 2008, 2007 and 2008

17. ~ Bamdad was prosecuted in federal court and is currenﬂy serving prrson
time. On July 29,-2010, the Central District of the United States District Court, in case
number CR 08-506-GW, following a not guilty plea, convicted Bamdad. of violating 21
U.S.C. section 841, subdivisions (a)(1), (b)(1), and (c) (distribution and dispensing of a
controlied substance, and distribution and dispensing of a conrrolled substance to




. persons’ under 21 years of age). ‘On- ‘August 2,-2010, the court sentenced-Bamdad to .
300 months in prison, barred him-from licensed - employment and ordered.him to pay

fines and Tees totalrng more than $1,000,000.

The l’\!ledica’mons at lssue

18 The medicatioris at issue here mclude ‘Norco, Xahax Valium, Vlcedrn
and Soma. These medications are referred to herein occasronally by. their brand
name although the record refers to some by thelr generlc name S

19. Norco is fthe arug’s brand name-and hydrocodone/APAP

(acetamrnophen) isthe drug g generrc name; Ncrco is a: schedule ti controlled
substance used for pain. r

20. Xanax is’th’e drug's brand name and alprazolam is the dru‘g’s generic

“nafme. Xanhax is a scheddle IV controlled substancs used for anxiety, and it is a non-

barbl’turate benzodrazeplne seda’tlve hypno’uc

24, Vallum is the drug’s brand name: and drazepam is’ ’che drug S .genenc
name: Vallurn is a schedule IV :controlled subs’cance USed for anxrety, and it is-a hon*
barbrtura’re benzodrazeplne seda’clVe hypnotlc

R2ne Sema s {he: drug S brand name:»and: cansoprodol s, ’che drug’ s generic
name: Soma’bécame a:scheddledV-controlled: substance in 2012.:Before 2042,
Soma was unscheduled; it is a muscle relaxarit; The tims atissue here involves the
fime Soma was an unscheduled subslance

23. Other drugs moted hereln 1nclude

Ambren (Brand name)/zolpldem (genenc name) schedule Y controlled
substance; used for insomnia;

Oxycontln (brand name)/oxycodone ‘(generic name) schedule Il controlled
substance used for parn

Subulex (brand name) or Suboxone (brand name)/buprenorphlne (generlc
name}, schedtiig 1 contrelled substance, commonly used te treat narcouc addiction
and less commonly used to ‘creat paln

Adipex (brand name)/phentermlne HCL (genenc name) schedule lV controlled
substance used for welght loss

Bontrll—slew release {brand: name)/phendlmetnzrne (generrc name) schedule
[\ controlled substance -used for welght joss. .

24:"  Allofthe-drugs noted in Factual Findings 18-23 are dangsrous drugs as




defined in Busmess and Professions Code sectnon 4022,

The Generahzed Prescr:ptlon Quantlty and Dosaqe Analyses

25, While there was some variation in the preecrlptlons assessed herem
generally, the vast majonty of Bass' prescriptions to his patients were as follows; 125
tablets of 10/325 mg. Norco (1 to 2 tablets every-4 hours), a 10-day supply; 60 tablets
of 2 mg. Xanax.(1 tablet every 6.hours), a 15-day supply; 15, 20, 50, ‘or 60 tablets of
350 mg. ‘Soma (1.tablet every 6 hours), a 3-day, 5-day, 12-day, or 15 day supply,
respectively; and 60 tablets of 10 mg. Vailum (1 tablet every 6 hours), a 15 -day supply.

. 26. The quan’nty and dosage of the medlca’nons Bass prescrlbed to each
patient are- generalty referred to here by their day’s supply

27. Unless other\lee mdlca’zed WIthln each pa’uent descrlp‘non that follows,
Bass- lssued prescriptions for each. pafient approxlmateiy every 12 to 15 days_ . .
‘throughotit the indicated periods-of treatment;.and Respondents filled and dlspeneed
the prescribed medications 1o each patient.every-12 to 15 days. Unless, othervwee
indicated herein, generallyyeach patient.or a person authorized by the pe’uent
consistently purchased and obtained the prescribed medications without mterruptlon of
the 12-15 day interval. Where the prescription time interval was other than 12 to 15
days, or where the-dispensing: and-purchasing time was .other than 12 fo 15 days and

where no other time interval is noted, the time mterval was glven no, welght in resolvmg
the allegations set forth in this case.. Sal

Specmc :-’atlen"c Facts

AS

28. In 2008 A S was approxmately 22 years old. Between January 5,
2007, and March 18; 2008, Bass treated A.S: and issued him prescriptions for 10/325
- mg. Norco, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350.mg: Soma. A.S. purchased the prescribed .
medications from-Respondent JSD.as well as.other pharmacies,-in Fountain Valley,
California, and Thousahd Oaks,.California. .Respondents filled and dlspensed
. appreximately-90-Bass-issued-preseriptions-io A:S;-on-and-between-January-5; 2007, -
and March 18, 2008. During this time period, Respondents dispensed 3,875 tablets of
Hydrocodone/APAP-10/325 mg. (generic for.Norco), 1,860 tablets .of;A}prazo}am 2 mg
(generic for Xanax), and.405 tablets of Carisoprodel{generic for Soma):t0,A.S.. Of
. these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 79 prescriptions, Respondent

Yamasaki dispensed 9 prescriptions, and Respondent ‘Nabhan dispensed 2
prescnptlons for this. patlent

29.  On January 1.:9,;.2007, pursuant o a Bass-issued prescription,
Respondent Daher dispensed a 10-day supply of the generic for.Norco
(Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325'mg, 125 tablets — Prescription No. 182811). This original
prescription did not-authorize any refills. Nevertheless, on January 22, 2007,




Respondent Daher dispensed andther 10-day supply of Hydrocodone/APAP.
Respondent Daher did not document a reason why he dispensed Hydrocodone/APAP
seven days early, but hetestified:that he :accepied:Bass"prescription as legitimate.
However, that prescription was not authorized to be filled on January 22, 2007. On
January 22, 2007, Respondent-Daher's dispensed more Hydrocodone/APAP (10/325
mg; 125 @ablets) under--Pres'dription' No. 183159 and without prescriber.authorization.
This prescription was dated January 30, 2007. However, the dispensing sticker on the
origirial prescription shows that the:prescription was dispensed on January-22, 2007.:
According to the evidence-and the'law applicable in this case, such:a post-dated :
prescription is not & legal prescription! Therefore, the dispensing.of this prescription is
considered an unauthorized refill of the January 19, 2007 prescription. - :
, 30. ForA.S., the evidence showed that.over a feur-day period from January .
19-22, 2007, Respondent Daher deviated from the prescribers' directions by providing
A.S:; with 250 tabléts’kof'?Hydr0coddne/APAP'--(1..01325i'mg‘.),"12-@:’cablets of Alprazolam (2
mg), and 30 Carisoprodol (350 mg) tablets. This wasenough Hydrocodone/APAP to
take B2 tabletsper day, midie-than 4 times the 12 tablets as:directed:by Dr. Bass;.
" enoligh Alprazoelam to take 30 tablets per-day; which is.7 timesas :much-as-the
maximurm affeunt of 4 tablets perday-as directediby Dr.-Bass, and enou gh-
Carisoproddl fo téke 7 téblets per day instead.of 1 perday asdirectedis:,

31, Atalltimeselevant tothis matter, AS. ivedin Thousand Oaks,
approkimatsly:43 miles*from Respondent JSD-and ‘appreximately 40 milesfrom Bass'’s
office. Respondent JSD is five miles from Bass’ offices v ¢ et o it ot "

32.  In 2007, A.S. was being treated with Subutex by a. physician:other:than, -
Bass. He received prescriptions for Subutex from Jonathan Reitman, M:D. on October
26, 2007, and November 5, 2007. The evidence did not establish whether
Respondents were aware that A.S. had been prescribed Subutex.

33, On March 20, 2008, A.S. died, at the age. of 22, from hydrocedene
intoxication: The evidence did not establish how many Hydrocodone/APAP tablets
A.S. consurned the day-he diedin Fis'bed. However, empty prescription bottles for - .
Hydrocodéng and Alprazolam, which-were prescribed by Dr.Bass-and dispensed by
Respondént Bahér-on-Marchi-18; 2008, were-found-er-the-night-stanc:next-te his bed.

347+ -On June 3, 2008, A.S.'s parents filed-a complaint with the Board alleging
that Respondents’improperly dispensed controlled substances to A.S. .. .

35, K. S7, A:Si's mother, testified. K.S. explained that:A.S..had.a-serious drug
problem. As a child, A.S. had attention deficit disorder andwas in:special.education.
He also contracted spinal meningitis on an unspecified date. By the.seventh grade,
A.8. was using cigareties, beer, other alcohol, and marijiana. -K:S. conceded that as
an adult, A.S. was addicted to drugs, including-prescription drugs. She'believes Bass'’
prescriptions and Respondent's dispensing of medications furthered A.S's.drug. -
addiction.” kS, believad A.S. had-health:insurance that covered:prescription
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‘miedication in some manner, but she understood that A.S. would obtain Bass’ -
prescribed drugs by paying cash The evidence confirmed that A.S. purchased his
Base-prescribed medications with cash. K.S. does not believe A.S was in chronic pain
when Bass prescribed his medications and when Respondents filled and dispensed
them. The evidence did not establish whether A.S. had chronic pain, but it did

establish that A.S.-was addicted to pain medications. On May 11, 2009, Respondent
Daher wrote 1o the Board regardmg the complaint, statlng

“]"did not sellfA.8.] his medlcatxon in.a dark aliey, he walked into my store We
regret his death.but ultimately he is responsible for his own actions...Were his

parents aware of hlS drug addlc‘uon’? Did they do anything about it?" (State’s Ex.
18 )

36. Complainant argued that Respoendents failed fo.evaluate A.S.'s needs to
assure that Bass' prescriptions were for a legitimate medical need. Complainant
further argued that had Respondents requested a CURES report for this patient after
December.1, 2007, they would have seen A.S.’ prescnptuons for.Subutex, and
understood that A.S.‘was being treated for opiate addiction.” As such, it would.have

" further caused Respondents to questlon the proprlety of Bass' preecnptlons for Norco

and Xanax

37. a. Respondents argued that they evaluated A.S. generally and found '
no reason torefuse to dispense Bass’ prescriptions. They further argued that -
accessing CURES data was difficult and not practical in 2007 and 2008. The parties
did not dispute that online, “real time” access 10*CURES was. Unavailable in 2007 and
2008, and instead, pharmacists would have to make requests for CURES data by. .

facsimile or regular mail. Such requests would require several weeks before

pharmacists would receive responsive data. While Respondents and their- experts
tended 1o fout or emphasize Respondents’ -excelient reoordkeepmg practices;

Respohderits also argued that the early refills, as described in Factual Finding 207,

" were the result of Respondent JSD's transxtlon to a new computer system and was a
- record keeping error.

b. .However, lnspec‘cor Bayley testlﬂed that When she started to investigate

—these allegations;-although-Respondents-{eld-her abeut-recent Cemputer -changesy;:— -~ -~ - -
Respondents never claimed a data error was responsible for causing the unauthorized - * -
- refills. -in addition, Respondents failed to persuasively explain how the transition to the

new computer system would result in sucha record keeping error or why, if the error-
did indeed oceur, they would not have corrected their records upon discovery of the
error. Additionally,-the evidence failed 1o -establish that the computer transition indeed

! CURES is the Controfled Substance Utilization Review Evaluation System. It is a database
maintained by the California Department of Justice’s Bureau of Narcotic Enforcement containing
schedule Il through [V prescription data.

% Similar arguments were made for the unauthorized dispensing of J.8.'s medications
discussed at Factual Finding 91.




~ caused a record keeping error in this circumstance. In hght of the foregoing, .

Respondents explanatnon was not credlb!e

L.G.

38: Iy 2008, L.G. was approximately 21:years old. . Bass {reated L.G. with
10/325 mg. Norco, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350 mg. Soma. ‘Respondents filled and
dispensed L.G.'s approximately 105 Bass- issued prescriptions to L.G. from September
20, 2008, to March 28, 2008. During this time period, Respondents- dispensed 4,625
tablets of Hydrocodone/APAP 101325 mg. (genefic for Norco), 2,160 tablets of
Alprazolam 2'mg (generic for Xanax), and 2,200 tablets of Cansoprodo{ {(generic for

-Soma) to L.G. Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 75 prescriptions,

Respondent Yamasaki dispensed 18 prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan
drspensed 12 prescnptrons for thrs pa’nent

© 38  OnJune2t, 2007 Respondents dlspensed a 10- day supply of Norco

and a 15-day supply-of. Xanax.: 'On:June:28, 2007, Respondents dispensed the sarne

medications in the sameé quaritity‘again, both based-onBass’ -prescriptions.
Respondents did not document areason why they-dispensed the Norco three days .

early. Respondents explained that they trusted L.G. and accepted Bass' prescnp’uon -
as Iegrtlmate ‘

4’0.: L G purchased hlS Bass prescnbed medlcatlons Wrth cash
| 41, A‘t all times- relevant te thls matter L G hved in: Srmx Valiey, Cahfornra

approxxmarely 27 miles from Respondent JSD and approxrmarely 31 mrles from Bass”
office. '~

t

42; L G. died on-April 13, 2008 from: oxyoodone and me’rhamphe‘camrne
mtoxrca‘uon ‘however, Responden’cs never: dtspensed oxycodone or methamphetamme

to L.G.

43, Complainant argued that even if Réspondents did not drspense the drugs
that caused L.G"s death; Respéndents stilihad a corresponding responsrbllrty to
assure-that-theydispensed:prescriptions-that were fora-legitimate-medical-purpeses-
and-by digperising the large quantities of controlied- substanoes preseribed by Bass,
Respotidents: furthered each: patientls drug-addiction.? .Complainant-argued that Bass
prescriptions for A.S., L.G.,and all of the patients discussed herein were not for a
legitimiate medical® purpose because each-patient-was addicted.topain medications

and sought the prescribed medications to feed his or-her addiction or. for recreational
purposes.

* A pharmacist shares a corresponding responsibility, or liability, with the physician prescriber to
ensure thé prescription i's, ‘among other things; legitimate.
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AW.

44, !n 2008, A.W. was approxrmately 31 years old Bass treated her wrth

.10/325 mg. Norco, 10 mg. Valium, and 350 mg. Soma. Respondent filled and

dispensed approximately 12 Bass-issued prescriptions to AW. from February 6, 2008,
to March 25, 2008, During this 48-day period, Respondents dispensed 500 tablets of
Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 mg. (generic for Norco), 300 tablets of Diazepam
(Valium),10 mg., and 240 tablets of Carisoprodol 350 mg. (generic.for Soma) to AW,

Of these prescnptlons Respondent. Daher dispensed 9 prescriptions, and Respondent.
Yamasakt dispensed 3 presonptrons for thls patrent '

= 45, At all times relevant to. thxs matter AW lived in Srml Valley, Caln‘ornra

approximately 28 miles from ‘Respondent JSD and approx1mately 31 miles- from Bass'
office. : :

46, . AW.died at the age of. 31.on Aprii 11, 2008, due to morphlne

‘hydrocodone and drazepam rntoxrcatlon

47 According to the Ventura County Coroners death- report AW. had

' attempted suuolde by drug overdose three ‘times before her death. .

48, Respondents never. dlspensed morphlne to AW

49. ' The ev1dence drd not establrsh how many Norco and Vahum tablets AW. .
consumed the day of her death.. However, on March 25, 2008, AW.'s last -

prescriptions fi filied by Respondent Yamasakl moluded Hydrooodone/APAP and _
Drazepam ' PR

D.L.

50. . ln 2008, D.L. was approxrmately 25 years old. Bass treated hrm wrth

10/325 mg. Norco, 10 mg. Valium, 10 mg. Ambien, and 350 mg. Soma. Respondents
 filled and dispensed approximately 30.prescriptions to D,L. from May.2, 2007, to March
24, '2008. During this time period, Respondents dispensed 2,375 {ablets of '

- HydrocedensfAPAP-10/325-mg -(gensric-for-Neree); 20 tablets ofAVahurn-‘tO mg ~_520._

tablets of‘Carisoprodol (generic for Soma); and 90 tablets of Ambien to D.L. Of these
prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed. 23 prescriptions, Respondent Yamasaki

dispensed 4 prescnptrons and Respondent Nabhan drspensed 3 presonptlons to this
patrent .

51. In September and Ootober 2007 D L was also prescrlbed Suboxone by
another physician in ‘San Fernando, California. Suboxone is an opioid antagonist that
is commonly used to treat opiate addrcts Taking Suboxone and an opioid at the same

- time-usually causes 'a negative effect in mostindividuals. However, Suboxone is also
used as.a pam medication, although rts use for. parn is not common. Respondents did
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not document knowledge of D.L.'s Suboxone prescription history. Respondents did
. not take any ac’uon o dISCUSS D.L's Subo,\one presonpnon hlSIOl’y thh Bass or D.L.

52. At ali ttmee relevant to ’Chls matter D L hved in Newbury Park, Cahfornxa

approylmately 47 mlles from Respondent JSD and. approxnmate\y 40 miles from Bass'
office. : -

53. D.L. died at the age- of 25 0nh Aprli 10, 2008 The cause of death was'
cocaine, Valium, Ambien, and Soma ’cox;ony :

54. The evidenceé did not estabhsh how many Vahum Amblen or Soma
tablets D.L. consumed theday of his‘death. However, D:L..s last prescription filled by
Respondent Daher on March 24;°2008 included 80 tablets of Carisoprodol 350 mg
(generic for Soma), 30 tablets of Ambien 10 mg, and 60 tablets of Vahum 10 mg..

55, Gomp“la'mant' argued that had Respondents reviewed D.L.'s.medical and
preeorlptlon history, they would have uncovered-the fact thatD.1: had:been prescribed
Suboxone in the past. Complalnant explained that a prudent pharmacist would have
uncovered D.L.'&'Stiboxarie prescnptlon ‘history and Respondents:would have-
concluded or at least Buspected that D 1. was an' opiate-addict :and :then iquestioned: -
Bass' prescriptions. Complainant argued that Respondents should have contacted
Bass to express such a concern and perhaps refusedio dispense Bass' prescriptions
until recetvmg more mformatlon from Bass at the least

58, Through their- expert Wltnesses dlscuesed hereaﬁer Respondents
argued that occasionally, physicians prescribe Suboxone as.apain medication. .-
Respondents argued that had they had knowledge of a Suboxone prescription- hlstory,
and given the drug’s use for pain, it would not have been appropriate for them to
presume the patient was being freated for opiate addiction. Furthermore, it is within

the discretion of the prescriber to dlspense the’ combma’non of medloa‘uons he or she
deems medically approprlate ' .

57.- The ewdence estabhshed that Suboxone can be used as a pain
" medicatiory: Theevidence further -established thatits use for:pain is uncommorn and

- “%hat*erprudent—pharmaclst Who-wassaware-okSuboxene-or-Subutex- presonp’nons-. —

would, at the I8ast, suspectitatthepatient had-an opiate addlc‘non issue and confirm
the patient's trea’tment hlstory With the prescnblng phyelcxan

58. Reepondents did not document any knowledge that D.L.. was prescnbed
Suboxone. They did not contact Bass or any other of D.L.'s physicians.

DK -

- In 2008, DK Was-ep~p-roximately~ 32 years old. vBaes .trea-:ted ~.n'lm ‘Withf
10/325 mg. Norco, 10'mg. Valium, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350 mg: Soma. Respondents
filled and dispensed 61 prescriptions to D.K. . between December 7, 2006, and March
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11, 2008; 47 of those prescriptions were for the generic drugs for Norco, Xanax and
Soma . During this time period, Respondents dispensed 3,000 tablets of
Hydrooodone/APAP 10/325 mg. (generic for Norco), 1,200 tablets -of Alprazolam 2 mg -
(generic for Xanax), and, 90:tablets of Carisoprodol (generic for Soma} to D.K.. Of
these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 33 prescriptions, Respondent.
Yamasaki dispensed 6 prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan dtspensed -8

. prescrlptlons for this patient. :

60. D.K. lived in Newbury Park approxxmatety 42 mltes from Respondent JSD
and approxnmately 37 miles from Bass' office.

61. D.K died, at the age of 32, on March 14 2008 The cause of death was
_Lobar Pneumonia.

62. DX had asthma. There was no.evidence that Responden‘ts questioned
whether Dr..Bass’ prescribed drug combination, which the experts testified was known

to cause respiratory depress;on was safe for someone with D.K.'s respiratory
condition.

B.G:

'63. In 2008, B.G. was. approx;matety 27 years old., Bass treated hlm w1th
10/325 mg. Norco, 10-mg. Valium; 2./mg. Xanax, and 350 mg. ‘Soma. Respondents
filled and dispensed 103 Bass-issued prescriptions (generic versions) 4o B.G. on and
between October 30, 2008, and March 31, 2008, Of these prescriptions, Respondent
- Daher-dispensed 82 prescriptions, Respondent Yamasaki d:spensed 15 presonptlons
and Respondent Nabhan dispensed 6 prescriptions to this patient....

- 64, B.G. fived in Thousand Oaks, 41 miles from Respondent JS‘D. L
85. B.G.was addicted to hydrocodone.

66. On January 10, 2008, B.G.'s mother called Respondents and told them
to stop filling Bass'’ prescriptlons She alleged that Bass “owned” Respondent JSD.
- -Respondent Daher-teld-B:G:'s-mother-that he-could-net-discuss -B-G: s-presonptlons - —
with her because B.G. was an adult. On that same day, Respondent Daher noted in
Respondent JSD's records that Respondents would no longer. ﬂtt B.G's presonptlons

67. However, onJanuary 18, 2008, B.G.'s mother Wrote a hote to
Respondents stating that B.G. could be treated and medicated by Bass, as Bass "sees
ﬂt " Respondents kept this note with-a copy of B.G.’s driver license in their records. -

68. Respondents Daher explalned that he complied with B.G.’s mother's

requests because he presumed she had her son's best interests at heart-and he did
not want to cause B.G. any. problems.
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69. Respondent Nabhan asserted that-B.G.'s mother's communications with
Respondents did-riot t&is& a “red flag”in His.assessmentof B.G. as'a phagmasy . .
patient. As opined by Complainant's experts; discussed \ater, those communications

should ‘have rézsonably raised a srgnlﬂcant concern regarding theipropriety.of B.G.'s -

‘prescriptions: -and the-strong-suspicion that'B.G. suffered from drug addiction.

C.G. ~

~70.  In 2008, C.G. was approximately.25-years old. :Bass treated her with . .
10/325 mg. Norco, 10 mg. Valium, and 2 mg. Xanax. Respondents filled and
dispensed 72 Bass-issued prescriptions fo C.G. from-October. 30,2006 to April 9,
2008, all for Hydrocodone/APAP (generic for Norco) and Alprazolam (generic for
Xanax). Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 52 prescriptions and
Respondent Yamasakr drspensed 2@ presonptrons to thls pa’uent

71 - GG and B.G.,, drscussed in- Factual Fmdlngs 63 69, are:siblings.

72.  The Norco and Xanax prescri'ptions for C.G. and B.G. were idenﬁcal, On .
seven different occasions, C.G.'s and B.G.'s prescriptions were presented together-at

Respondent JSD and Respondents dispensed the prescriptions for both at the same
~ fime. “The seven:gccasions were: :Qctébér.30, 2008, November 27, 2006, December

11,2006 January 23,2007, February 8;.2007,; February 24,:2007; and March 5, 2007,
Respondents Sav no: ‘problem with two; srbhngs presen‘nng srmllar presonp’clons a’t the-
same fimefrom the samég: prescnber C .G s 'and B:@. s fandem’ prescnp’uons should
have: réasonably raised a-sighificantconcém' regarding the:prapriety of B.G.'s and
C.G.'s prescriptions ‘andthe sffong suspicien thét B G.-and-C.G. were seeking
prescripfions for an rllegr’nma’re purpose '

73. ‘ C.G.and B.G. aiways paid cash for ali of their Bass—rsSUed prescnpttons

-at Respondent JSD.

74, C.G:fivedin Thousand Oaks, 40 miles from Bass' ofﬂce and 41 miles

. from Respondent JSD

TR -

s

75. - In 2008, T.P. was approximately 40 years old. T.P. was Bass' secretary.
T.P. was marfied to7K.Ps, discussed inFactual Findings 79-80.- Respondents filled and

- disperised prescriptions to T.P., K.P, and:8.P., #he adult daughter.of-T.P. and K.P.

From November1;2006 through Apnl 2008, Respondents drspensed approxnmately
9,000 Norco or HydrocodonelAPAP 1,960 OxyContin, 1,230 Alprazolam, 480
drazepam and-2 765 Carisoprodol: tO"[hlS family.. ‘Bass: treated LR awith 10/325 mg.
Norco 'and-Somid. -From"November 1; 2006, to April 7,22008, Respondents filled and
dispensed 84 prescriptions to T.P.; 77 of those prescriptions were for -
Hydrocodone/APAP (generic for Norco) Norco and Carisoprodol (generic for Soma)
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Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed-65 prescnptlons and Respondent
vamasaki dispensed 12 prescriptions to this patient.

76.  According to Respondents, T.P. and K. P were divorced, did not live

together, and pald separately tor their reSpeCt'Ve prescriptions. The evidence did not
establlsh these tacts :

77 Complalnant alleged that, in Bass ol"flce T. P would accept cash.
payments from patients in exchange for a prescription for controlied substances
without Bass’ examlnatlon The evidence did not establlsh this fact.

78, T.P: lived in .Sunland, California, nine miles from Resp.on'dent JSD.
KPR

‘ ' - 79, ln 2008, K P. was approxrmately 45 years old K.P. was marrred to T.P,
dlscussed in- Factual Findings 75-78, Bass treated him.with 80 mg. .xycontln 10/325
-mg. Norco, 2 mg.-Xanax; 10 mg. Valium, and 350 mg.-Soma. From November 3
. 2008, through April-4; 2008, Respondents filled and dispensed 134 prescriptions to
K.P.: 106 of those were Bass-issued jprescriptions for Hydrocodone/APAPR, .
Alprazolam ‘Carisoprodol, Didzepam and OxyContin. Of these presorlptions
Respondent Daher dispensed 76 prescriptions,:Respondent.Yamasaki dlspensed 24
prescrlptlons ancl Respondent Nabhan dlspensed 6 to thls patlent

80. = K. P llved in‘Los Angeles 13. mlles from Respondent JSD
S.P.

- 81, ln 2008 S P was approx1mately 20 years old S P is LLle daughter of
K.P. andT.P. (Faotual Flndlngs 75 80.) Bass treated S.P..with 10/325 mg. Norco and’
dlspensed 53 presonptlons to S. P 25 of those prescnptlons dlspensed we—re for
Hydrocodone/APAP (generic. for Norco), Diazepam (generic:for. Xanax) and
' Carisoprodol (genericfor Soma). Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher

e e ~—-dlspensed*22~prescr1ptrons -and- Respenelent Nabhan dlspensed 3-presorlptlons tothis ...t ...

patient.

AN

82.- Corn;'slalnant argued that Respondents failed to review the T.P,, K.P.;
and S.P, family drug history and failed to verify the legltlmaoy of the prescrlptlons
taking into consideration’ that T.P., K.P., and S.P. were related, had similar

prescrlptlons of dangerous controlled substances -and.were all-prescribed by.Bass.

83. Respondents argued that they deferred to. Bass discretion and.did not
presume the familial relationship was evidence that the prescriptions were illegitimate.
Respondent’s position was not credible. Three family members seeking similar
prescriptions, whiile not definitive of illegitimate prescriptions, should have caused
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N.V.-

Respondents concern and raised their suspicions that the prescrlptlons were not for
. proper medlcal purposes for all three patients.

84. ln 2008, N.V. was approxmately 36 years old Bass treated her wnth
10/325 mg. Hydrocodone/APAP. From January 18, 2007, through April 4, 2008,
Respondents fllled and dlspensed 38 Bass lssued prescnpnons to N \.

85. N V. lived-in Tujunga Caln‘ornta nine. mlles trom Respondent JSD..

86. “Respondents filled-and dispensed-a 10-day. supply of
Hydrocodone/APAP (generic for Norco) to N.V. on the foliowing dates: March 21, and
29, 2007, two days early; May 22, and May 29, 2007 (Respondent Nabhan), three
days early; June 21, and June 26, 2007 (Respondent Yamasaki), five days early;
February 4, and 12, 2008, two days early {Respondent-Daher); March-4, and 13, 2008
(Respondent Daher), one day early;:and March .27, and April 4, 2008 (Respondent
Daher); two days early Respoendents didnot-document the reasoris why they -
disperised the-generic for Norce to N:Viearly: Complainant further: alleged that had
Respondents Yamiasaki arid Nabhan consulted patient profiles prior.io dispensing™
Hydrocodone/ARAP or May 29, 2007-and June 26;2007;;then the early refills, would
not have:occurred.” At hearing,” nelther Respondent Yamasaki.nor- Nabhan could recall .
this patient or these prescripfiofs:: Though:they assetted.that thay generally: did .
nothing wrong:in their dispensing practices, there was no credible evidence presented

that Respondents Yamasaki and"Nabhan:consulted patient profiles on these occastons .
prior to dlspensmg

87. Complainant calculated a 14- day supply of Norco for N.V. on the dates
nofed in. Factual Finding 86; and aliéged that those,same early refills were six, seven,
fing; thrée six; andfive days early; respectively” Complainant's.14-daysupply .
calculatlons were lnaccurate As noted prewously they were 10- day supplies.

88 Complalnant also alleged that Respondents fllllng and dlspensmg of
Norco to'NV. onOctober 15,-2007; constituted & three-day early refill. Itwas a 10-day
—-supply~Respende~nt—s—f1lled ;and- dtspensed~the—same prescription-te-N.M..on-Ocicber.4,
2007, Therefore, the Ootober 15, 2007 dispensing was not early.

89. On yarious occasions, N V. confirmed in writing to Respondents that she
" required early refills for apparently legltlmate reasons: -On4hose-occasions, on August
10, 2007, November 17,2007, 'and September 13, 2008, ‘Respondents filed Bass’,
prescnptnons for N.V. early, based on herwritten reasons that-Respondents accepted
as true. Given Respondents’ documentation of N. V s reasons for needlng the early

refllls these three early reﬂlls were approprlate
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90.  In2008, J.S. was approximately 23 years old. Bass treated him with

. 10/325 mg. Norco, 2 tg. Xanax, and 350 mg. Soma. Respondents . dispensed 36

Bass-issued prescriptions to J.S. from. October 31, 2008 through April 5, 2007. .During
this time, Respondents dispensed 1,875 tablets of Hydrocodone/APAP (lnctudmg ane
incident of Hydrocodone/APAP 10/500 mg.), 800 tablets of Alprazolam (geneno for
Xanax) 2 mg., and a 110 tablets of Carisoprodol (generic for Soma) to J.S. Of these
prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 22 prescriptions and Respondent
Yamasakl drspensed 14 prescriptions to this patrent

91 . Respondent Yamasaki dispensed a 10 ~day supply of Noroo 10 4. S on
January 15, 2007. Respondent Daher dispensed 10-day supplies of Norco o J.S. on
January 19.and 22, 2007. The evidence contained only one written prescription from
Bass for the January 19, 2007 dispensing. Having received a 10-day supply of Norco: .
on January 15, 2007, the January 19, 2007 dispensing constituted an early refill by six
days. The dispensing on January.22, 2007 constituted an early. refill by seven days.
Because there-was no-evidence of Bass’ prescriptions for the January 19.and 22, 2007
filling-and dispensing of Norco to 4.8, . Respondent.Daher’s drspensrng constltuted the

' drspensmg of oontrolled substances Wrthout physician autharization.

- 92, Respondent Daher fllled and drspensed a ’!5 day supply of Xanax to J.S."
on January 18::and 24, 2007. Thus, Respondents filled and dispensed Xanax to J. S
10 days early onr January 24, 2007. Respondent-Daher did not document a.reason for

_ the early refills; he argued that he deferred to Bass' discretion.

- 93, - Accordlng to Respondents J.S. attempted to tmproperty obtaln earty
reﬂ\ls after January 2007, and on April 5, 2007, Respondent Daher- refused to serve.

" J.S. further

' 94. ' Cemplalnant al!eged that Respondents had frHed a Norco presonptlon SiX
days early, on January 30, 2007, without consulting :Bass.. However the evidence did

-not establish that Respondents. drspensed any Norco 10.J.S. on January 24, or 30
2007.

95 J S woutd alternate between payrng oash and usrng hrs insurance. J S
paid cash for Norco on five occasions on'January 19 and 24, 2007, and February 12,

'2007, and he paid cash for Xanax on February16 and 20, 2007 Complainant argued

that Respondents should have determined that J.8." use of cash was due toJ.S.’
health insurance refusing to cover the presonptlons due to the amount of drugs and the
frequency of the prescriptions. Nothing in the evidence, however, established that -

~J S heatth msurance had rejeoted coverage-as Complalnant atteged

96. .J.S. lived in Thousand Oaks, 39 mlles from Respondent JSD and 35
miles from Bass oﬁ ce. .
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A.C.

© 97.  In'20087-AIC. Was approXimately 23 years old. Bamdadireated him with
40 mg. Oxycontin and 2 . Xanax; he prescribed an approximately 30-day supply of
‘both medications! Respondents filled and dispensed eight:Bamdad-issued : : -
medications fo' A C.from Décember 11, 2007, 10 April 48;.2008.. During this period,

Respondent Dahst drspensed 270 tablets of Oxycodone and 240 ‘cable’cs of: Xanax 2
mg.to this patrent

98. A.C. paid cash for all'of hrs Bamdad rssued prescnp’crons from
Respondent JSD. The evidence showed that Bamdad was a family medicine doctor.
There was no’ e\/rdenoe tha‘r Bamdad had any decla’re'd 'specraity m pain management

99 ARG would present and: purchase hls Bamdad rssued prescrrp’rrons at
Respondent JSD on an approxrma’rely monthiy basrs ;o

100, Respondents did no’r maintain any wntten records supportrng .
consultatlons with Barndad’ regardrng X €:'s:diagnoses. -Respondents argued that
nothrng in Bamdad’s prescnbmg pa’rtern fo.r-A.C requrred any such consuttatlons

101. A.C. lrved in Thousand Oaks 43 mrles from Respondent JSD and 36
miles from-Bardad's ‘office. The-evidence showed thatA:C:rwould buy. OxyContin one
day and return the" next day'to’ ik {ip the Xanax portion &f: hrs prescnp’non from Jay
Scot‘r Drugs THig Was' an approxrmate 86-mrle round trrp . ot

e

102. A.C. died onApril 13, 2008, in an rn—pa‘rren‘r rehabrhtatron center in :
‘Pasaden?a,‘Califorhia; whére he had been admitted for. opiate addrotron A.C. dred from
muttigle drugeffects; moludrng srgnlrrcan’dy high Oxycodone levéls..

| 103. Complainant argued that Bamdad's Oxycontin and Xanax presoriptiOns
contribted to A:C.'s death: The evidence did notiestablish- how many:Oxycontin or.
Xanax tablets A.C. consumed the day df his death.. Hoever, A.C's-last-prescription

drspensed by Respondent Daher on April 110, 2008 included 80 tablets of Oxycodone
30 mg

104 A C S fa’rher R C testmed' R C fried a oomplarnt wr’ch the Board R C
assertedthat A.C. had ne- ma]or sports injuries..(Seealso Factual Finding~136.) R.C.
became aware of A.C.’ 'S drug Llis&in 20086, Whrle A C was a oollege student R.C.
xdescnbed A C as addrcted 10 drugs E L

S.R and FR.

105. In 20"08 S.R. was approxrmate!y 31 years old Bass treated him with
10/850 mg. Lorcet: (Hydrooodone Bitartrate and’ Ace’ramrnophen) Soma 350 mg. and 2
mg. Xanax . '
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' ~106. Complainant alleged that Respondents dispensed 125 tablets of Lorcet
and 60 tablets of Xanax, six days early on four occasions: October 10, and 24, 2007,
November:7,-2007, and December 19, 2007 (Respondents dispensed Lorcet and
Xanax on November 21, 2007 also). However, this allegation presumed that the
quantity and dosage instructions on each medication equated to .a 20-day supply, that
is, 1 tablet every 4 hours for Lorcet, and 1 tablet every 6 hours for Xanax. Only the
October 24, 2007 written prescription was in-evidence and that prescription showed a
. dosage that equated to a 20-day supply. With no other Bass-issued prescription in
evidence, and given that, from Januarythrough April 2008, Bass had directed the
dosage of Lorcet for S.R. to be 1-2 tablets every four hours (a 10-day supply), the
evidence cotld not establish that the.remaining prescriptions were a 20-day supply.
Further, the CURES report for S.R., on-each.of the dates in question,.including .
October 24, 2007, described the quantities prescribed as 14-day supplies.. Thus, the -
svidence was insufficient to establish early refills for any-day other than October 24,
2007. ' ' ‘ ' '

107+ Erom October 10, 2007 to April 9,.2008, S8.R. and F.R., who shared the

same last'name, paid cash for their Bass-issued prescriptions. During this time period,
Respondents dispensed a total of 78 prescriptions for Hydrocodone/APAP: 125 tablets, .’

~ Alprazolam2 mg 60 tablets, and Carisoprodol 350 mg 60 tablets for both-S.R. and .
F.R. (39 prescriptions-each): Of these prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 66

- prescriptions and Respondent Yamasaki dispensed 12 prescriptions fo these patients.
S.R. and F.R. would frequently present their prescriptions for controlled substances
together at Respondent JSD, even though they lived in different cities. Therewas no
evidence of their relationship, if any.. As opined by-Complainant's-expert, discussed
later, Respondents should have questioned Bass about why S.R. and F.R. were
getting prescriptions together with the same doses and directions. There was no -
evidence that Respondents discussed medical conditions or the drug therapy for these

“two patients with Dr. Bass priof to dispensing. :..: ' :

= - 108. S:R:lived in Ventura, Cal'ifom’la‘,.éz.-.miles from Respondent JSD.
CG.C il | | B |

o e - 409: —-20084-G: G —was.-—.appr-e'xim-a-‘ié!y-~32-yeé-r-s -old-.--BassQtr»e,.a?[éd_.him_vvﬂlth-.. e

10/325 mg.-Norco, 2 mg. Xanax, and 350 mg.-Soma.. Respondents dispensed 39.
Bass-prescribed generic-drugs for these medications to. G.C. i} from October 10, 2007
to April 9, 2008, Of these medications, Respondent Daher dispensed 33 prescriptions
and Respondent-Yamasaki dispensed 6 prescriptions to this patient.

110. Respondent Daher filled and dispensed 150 tablets of Alprazolam..
(generic for Xanax) to G.C. Il on November 21, 2007, a 37-day supply, and 28 days
later, Respondents-filled and -dispensed 75 tablets of the same-drug.on-December 19,
2007. The refill:'was nine days early. .On.each of 11 dates between October 24,.2007,

~and March 28, 2008, Respondent Daher dispensed Alprazolam to G.:C. Il four days
early. Respondent did not document the reasons for these early refills.
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1141. G.C..III'was the son of G.C.Jr! (father)-and N.C.(mother). Between '
October 25,2006; @nd April7; 2008; Bass also treated ‘G.Cudf.; a6 T-year-old-man, .
with Norco, Valium; Adipex, Bontril, and Soma.and N.C. with \/rcodln ES, Valium,
Adipex, and Bontril: Respondents dispensed préscriptions'to G.Gand N.C. from -
October 10, 2007 to April 7, 2008~ During that time, Respondents filled :prescriptions ..
for G.C. that included Bontril 105°mg- 30 capsules, Hydrocodone/APAP 10/650-125
tablets, Carioprodol 350 mg 30 -tablets, and Diazepam 10 rig-50 tablets. Of these
presonptlons ‘Responhdent’ Daher dispensed 30 prescriptions @nd Respondent -
Yamasaki dispensed 7 prescriptions to G:C. ‘During that time, Respondents alsg ﬂtled '
prescriptions for N:C- for, among dthers, ‘Hydrocodone/APAP (7.5/750) 125 tablets,
and Bontril 105 mg 3@ 'c:aps’ules -Phendimetrazine 375:mg 60 tablets; and Diazepam-~
10 mg 50 tablets: Ofthese prescnptrons Respondent Daher dlspensed 20 -
prescriptions to"'N.C.and Respondent Yamasaki dlspensed 5 prescriptions to N. C..

112. G.C. Jr. and N.C. had the same address listed in their patient profiles.
They would-corig-info-Respondent JSD:together {0 purchase:thieir Bass-issued
prescnptlons Complamant argued thait this fact was Anothented-flag that- should have
raised Respondents susprcrons ‘Through theirexpert opinions;:discussed:later, :
Respondents argued that it was.logical forthesmaried: couple ta.pt esent themselves
together at'Respondenit-dSD: “Respondents”argumentivas . unpersuasive.. G.C. Jr,
ahd N.C.'s presentafiofis should have, dtthe very least, raised: Respondents
susprcrons thatthe patnents prescnptlons had to be venfred by—Bass S

"b

113 G‘C ﬂl hved m Ventura 62 mltes from Respondent JSD
J.C. o

1140 - 1n 2008 J. C. was 24 years old Bass treated b C Wrth 10/325 ‘mg. Norcoﬂ, -
between October 30, 2008, and October 9; 2007; and with 2 mg. Xanax between'

January 23, 2007, to October 9, 2007. The distance between Dr. Bass' office and Jay
Scoft’ Drugs was approximately 17 miles.

115 During the time J. C was purchasing his presorlptlon medication from

g -Respondernits;--G=was? usrng~three—d ifferent-physicians-and-three-different-pharmacies
for prescription medicaifion: Complainant argtied that- Respondents would have

. uncoverédisiich faots had they aooessed a: CURES report for.d.C.

1186. Respondents argued® that aocesstng CURES would notihave given them
timely evidence of the multiple doctors and pharmacies, and that even with that
informafioti, such‘infermation’ would notmeanthat the. prescriptions were for an
illegitimate purpose. Respondents further. argued that while physician shopping.is a
red flag for-abuse and diversion, it is-also & common:circumstance for: patients:dealing

with the under—treatment ‘of pain. There was no evrdence that J C had pain Lhat was
being madequate\y treated
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Other Pat:enf Issues

117 +J.C., S.R,, G.C.llIl, and-G.C. Jr were all members of the Hells Angels
motorcycle gang: Complamant implicitly argued that this information shouid have

' raised Respondents’ suspicions ahout the legitimacy of each of these patients’ -

prescriptions. However, there was .no-evidence to establish that membership in the
motorcycle gang, in and of itself, would warrant such a presumption. To beginto. -
identify those types of factors as reasons to suspect lllegltlmate prescriptions would
lead to improper and inaccurate presumpt;ons

118. Comptalnant argued that the followmg patients had lllogxoal drug

combinations of non-barbiturate sedative. hypnotics, benzodiazepines, and

nonbenzodiazepines. Valium, Xanax and Halcion are benzodlazeplnes Amblen is a
non- barb:turate sedative hypnofic..- :

3 D.L:»"Amblen and Valium-
DK Xanax; Ambien, and V:aiium
: KP Xanax and Valium o
'-B G Xanax and Vahum
D S Xanax Amblen and Vallum

- L G Xanax and Vahum

- Complainant failed to sufﬂcnenﬁy expiam why a reasonably prudent pharmacrs’[ would

find these drug combinations “lllogical.”. Complainant alleged that the combinations
were duplicative in the First Amended Accusation, but failed to- put on e\ndence asio
why such combinations were sufficient to raise inquiry to the prescriber by
Respondents Consequently, this allega’uon was not supported by the evidence.

Respondents

Respondenf Daher

| 119. - Respondent Daher came to the United States from Lebanon in.1978. He

‘attended the Oregon State University. (OSU), School of Pharmacy and graduated in

1983, He worked -as a pharmacist for Kaiser Permanente and CVS before opening his
first phamiacy in Glendale in 1987 'Respondent Daher purchased Respondent JSD in
1995; Fie'was and is the P.I.C. Respondent Nabhan started with-Respondent JSD in
1987 and Yamasaki, in 1991. Respondent Daher is married and has four-children. He
keeps ‘close fiss with OSU. He has set up afamily scholarship foundation at the OSU
pharmacy program, providing internship opportunities for its studeénts. Respondent
Daher has acted -as preceptor for students for the last five years.
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120 Respondent Daher explained that one reason Reepondents got so much
pain-medication business-was their prices. *Hé-stated that:he sells 125 tablets of -
10/325 mg. Norco for-approximately $40, while large chain pharmacies, like CVS,
charge more than $90 for the:same medication. The evidence was.unclear-whether
these prices were the prices-when-Respondent . JSD-first opened or curfently.

Respondent JSD was a larger, independent pharmacy Wlth a great volume of busnness .
~for medlcatlons and-durable medical equxpment

121. In his deposition in another case, dated May 5, 2011 Respondent Daher_
agreed Respondent JSD-had 600 patients® from Bass and appro)umatety 80 of those, .
patients resided in Veritura-County. He disputed:that most.of-the patients were young,
asserting that from.his accounting of the. 90 patients from Ventura Gounty, 30 patignts
were under 26 years of age, 30 patients were between.26 and 30 years-old, and 30
patients were over 30 years old. There was no independent evidence to establish
Raspondent Daher's age descriptions, but there was also insufficient evidence to
conclude that any sizeable population of Respondent JSD was under. 30. While the
- evidence established that some of the patients atissue.in this matter were under 30 .

vyears of age, of the 17 patients discussed herein (with the exception of N.C., who was
likely well over 30), nine patients were under 30 years of age. - -

122. Respondent Daher did not feel that the patxents exhibited evidence of
being drug addicts improperly seeking pain 'medications. Respondent Daher did not
agree that the fact that several patients were members.of a.motorcycle gang should
have prompted concern in and of itself. He believed that those paying cash were
simply part of the many individuals in the community whoe .are uninsured.

- 423, According to Respondent: Daher;Respondents were conscious that the
oattent demand increased in. 2007 and 2008 and.developed palicies to ensure they
practiced pharmiacy within the law and-did-not contribute to miedication.abuse. | :
Complainant argued that Respendents:developed these policies after the Board began .
to investigate:the instant matter. - The-evidence did not establish when Respondents .
developed the policies or when they came into effect.

- 124.- Respendents’-undated, written policy-forfilling pain management - .
prescriptions was signed by each Respondent, but undated. The-policy. included the .
following requirements, among others: 1) check prescriptions with physicians; 2). check
physician licenses; 3): patnents must be preeent and must sign for their own .
prescriptions unlessthey sign a release in'the presence of the: patlent and authonzed
' person; 4) educate: patlents on the dangers:of medications;-4) require patients to read
and sign the auxiliary warning labels; 5):use:professional judgment when patients use
" multiple pain.doctors and call each doctor-and disclose that fact; 6)-no early refills
unless the patient is going to-surgery, leaving town (documented); and 7) prescrlptlons
‘mustbe ntled in-order and recorded daily into-a book and numbered for retrleval

* Respondent Daher agreed that this amotrited 10 an estimated $1 7 million dollars that Respondent
JSD fllted for Dr. Bass’ patients over a two-year period.
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125. "Respondents had additional policies.. They kept Pain Management
Prescriptions Policy and Procedures guidelines for receiving schedule Il drugs,
schedule HI-IV drugs, recording .of receivables, inventory, prescription filling, .

: presorlp’ﬂon pick-up, and early refills. With regard fo prescription filling, the poticy had )
various requirements, including that: 1) Respondents should ask all out-of-area ..

" patients why they are filling their prescriptions at Respondent JSD 2) Respondents
should check patient identification with their fraud detection unit;® -3) Respondents. . .
_should contact the physician office on all schedule 1l through V prescnp‘uons 4) If the -
dose is out of the ordinary, contact the physician and request a diagnosis; and 5) If.a

" different person'is fo pick-up a prescription, both persons must be present the first time .
and.Respondent must photocopy and keep & copy of the patient's-and desxgnated
mdwldual S ldentfﬂoa’uons with slgnatures and an explanation.

126.. Asto early refli\s Respondents policies provnded that prescrlpttons could
generally be refiled two days ahead of the prescription’s finish date. Respondents

argued that the early reﬂlis descnbed hereln were dlspensed using their professlonal
dlscretlon in-each case. e

127. As o physlcxan hcense vern‘lca’clon Respondent Daher assened tha’t ali
physician licenses were to-be checked monthly and printed. If they found that the .
California Medical Board had placed a prescribing physician’s license. on probation,
they were to stop filling the prescription regardless of reason for probation. All
physicians were o be telephoned and questioned about their practice. Responden’cs

were to stop filling presorlp’uons from any physlolan suspected of any pattern of -
wrongful aotwnty - W .

_.__,'-'...-..--\ - o ey e

_ 128 Despl’te the computer error: alleged by Respondents in thxs case, in’
- Jan wary 2007, Respondent Daher asserted that he did “not spare any expense on.
" making -sure that my records are kept up-to-date.” Respondent Daher also testlfxed .
" that, with regard to patient prescription-history records showing-his inifials:!AD" as the .
dispensing pharmiacist, it “could have been me” or-he speculated that Respondent
© JSD'sstaff may have used his initials because he was “there every day” asthe . .© |
pharmacist-in-charge. Respondent Daher-did not explain why those tecords would not -

e = ~-pakept “up-o-date’-or-accurate-as-he-asserted in other-testimony—INese -—-———: = - e

inconsistencies and lack of explanation cast doubt on Respondent Daher’s. credlbmty
Generally, Respondent Daher. asserted that he and the other Respondents did nothing
wrong. He and Respondent Nabhan each spoke with Bass after Respondent Nabhan
iritially contacted Bass with his concern about the high doses of narcotic medication. -
‘Respondent Daher also spoke to Bass after B.G’s mother wrote him a note saying
“Don't fill my son’s prescription:” Bass convinced Respondents that he was a .

- legitimate pain physician treating ‘chronic pain-sufferers and that his prescriptions were,
therefore, legitimate. Respondent Daher did not feel he could or should impose his
own concerns regarding the medication COmbma’uons or quantmes on the physloxan

Respondents purchased and used a machine at the pharmacy that verified identification cards
and driver licenses. :
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He trusted Bass based on Bass’ representations and did not believe the amounts of
medications.Respondents digspensed were-so great as:to require:him to stop. -
dispensing. Responderit Daher asserted that all Respondenits counseled patients :
regularly asto the dangers-of the medications and to-complying strictly. with the dosage
instructions: ‘He did not:observe any actions or words from the patients that made him
believe the patients were addicted to narcotics or other drugs, e.g., the patients were
incoherent. He'did not-observe any actions or-words by the patients that made him
believe the patients were improperly obtaining the presorlptlons for illegitimate
purposes. ‘Respondent Daher explained that his criteria for refusing 1o fill a .
prescription included 'suspicious ‘behavior like the patient claiming he or she-was. .
“Shorted” or lost tablets, or patients coming fo the pharmacy with multiple prescriptions
from rnultiple doctors. Respondent Daher:explained how-Respondents kept the
auxiliary-warning labels from each prescription; placed them on:paper,-and had each

patient sign next to each label, memorializing Respondents’ counseling. Respondents
offered nimmerous such: documents mto evxdence

429, " Respondents’ mltsal behef that Basswas.a pain: spectahst may have been
reasonable if no other “red flag” indicators were present. However, :as-explained later,
a physician’s self-described pain management specialty does not relieve Respondents
from further réasonable inquiry into the prescriberwhen ‘red flags®,:including

consisteritly high volumes of. addtc’nve medloatlons and questionable prescnblng
pattems emenge L S R e ‘

LU e

130." Respondents presented nurherous. prescrlptlons and other documente on
which they doctimented:communications with various physmnans other than Bass and

. Bamdad, where Respondents were verifying diagnoses, confirming drug choices, or-

otherwise clarifying prescriptions. For example, Respondent Nabhan documented his
own verifications and:clarifications:on Ociober.26; 2007; for Vicodin:E:8., on June 26,
2008; for 10/325 ing. ‘Norca;-ondune 10, 2008, tor duphoate presorlpttons for 10/650
Lotcet: and 2 mg:rXanax, ‘and‘othér simitar: communlcatlons with physicians other than .

. Bass-or-Bamdad on Nay 9, 2008 (diagnosis verification for MS Contin),-May 14; 2008

(diagnesis verification for Oxyoontm Xanax;-andCymbalta), May22;2008. (dtagnosxs
verification for Norco and:Motrin), June 1.3, 2008 (diagnosis verification for;@xycontm)
Septembeér 30, 2008 (prescription clarmoanon for MS.Contin and.Lortab), and.« -
November{i-—:’Z@BB -(diagnosis-verificationfor-Oxycontin-and- Acth)—However htﬂe—- .
welght was given to this information:as supportive of Respondents’. claims, since there
wasne: ev1denco that such.communications with-prescribers happened.for the-
patlents in this-case. This.information:only demonstrates-that Respondents:were -
aware that stich communications were an lmporiant part.of pharmiacy-practice- .andthat
they were'able to:document such’ commiunications for some.of their patients, but falled
to prowde any evxdence that they dld :go-for these: patlents in thls case:-

S Other than the instance mentioned in Factual Finding 128 above, Respondents have either failed to

provide any other examples of specific inquiry-prior-to-dispensing medications or admitted that they did
not inquire because they deferred to Bass' expertise.
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131, Generally, Respondent Daher asserted that.he and the other
Respondents regularly reviewed the patients’ drug therapies, their. medroa‘uon records,
and their patient profiles, as-kept by Respondents at Respondent JSD before
dispensing the prescribed medications to each. Respondent-Daher’s assertion was
similar to Respondent Nabhan's assertions. (Factual Finding 137.) The patient
profiles that Respondent kept showed the patients’ prescription history, including
medication quantities, estimated day's supply, dates of filling/dispensing, payment
method, prescriber and patient identification among other things. However,
Respondents’ self-serving, bare assertions that the reviews were conducted accordmg
to their alleged usual and customary practice are msuthlent to. prove that they were
done in this case. -

132. Respondent Daher presented oharacter w1tnesees who testrfred that he is
known in his community as a generous, truthiul, caring and trustworthy person.and
pharmacist. He is a practicing and faithful Roman Catholic. Respondents were

cooperative with the Board's rnvestrgatlon

Respondent Nabhan

433. Respondent Nabhan was a shepherd in Jordan before comlng to the
United States. In the U.S., he became a licensed resplratory theraprst He eventually .
entered and graduated from the University of Southern Califgrnia, Schoot of Pharmacy :

‘He worked as a pharmaorst for a oounty -entity for 36 years

134. Respondent Nabhan did agree that. whenever the records showed hls '
initials “AN?, that he had filled that prescription. Upon questioning, however
Respondent:Nabhan had.no memory of the patients’ names. and the preeonptlons in

. this case. He did testify. that his documentation of communications with the preeonher
_were typically “case-by case” or if | feel | have to document it. " He general]y consulted -

presorlbers whenever he needed clarification, including when a. presonptlon was

" missing things or exceeded the recommended dosing. Although he had. no specrtnc’:ﬁ

recollection of these patients or the prescriptions, he nevertheless asserted that'he
and-the other Respondents.did nothing wrong with regard to dispensing Bass’
prescriptions to the indicated- patients. He asserted.that.he received no financial .

- --incentive-to-fil-more-preseriptions—Respendent- Nabhan—dld-agree—that generalty AAY i -

presonptron that was “post—dated” was not a legal prescnptron and that he.would .not fill

135. Ear\y on in the prescription flow from Bass®, Respondent Nabhan
testlﬂed that he talked with Bass to discuss his concern about the high doses of pain
medication. Bass explained to him that he was a pain physician and was aware of the
combination of drugs he was prescribing. Bass told Respondent Nabhan that he was

7 See Factual Finding 29

8 The record is unclear and Respondent did not testify as to ttie date when this conversation allegedly
occurred.
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‘obtaining good: results from his’ drug treatméfits andthét there was no ceiling dose for
Norco andthatthe dosage was’leftto thé physician’s' discretion. : Bass eventually

" came to Respondent JSDand’ showed Respondent Nabhan his- {Basspain -

: management society certificates.” Respondents offeréd photographs-of Bass’
certificates from the American ‘Academy of Paifi Managerhent, American Academy of
Pain Medicing, American Pain Society, the Americari’Society of Pain Educators, and
" the Western-Pain’ Sootety The evidefice failed 16 establish the veradity; ‘ot substance .
of these certificates’ Respondents accepted- Bass assertlons and-did. not turther ’
lnvestlgate Bass quahﬂcatlons ' Co

138. According to Respondent Nabhan Respondents dtscussed thetr contact
with Bass and decided o continue fo fill Bass’ prescriptions. Based on representatlons
from pattents and Bass, Respondent Nabhan Believed that many of:the"younger
patlents ‘had’ sports mjurles ‘orwiorked fof the: Burbarik studios bundtng ‘muotion picture

sets. Thére was ho évidence estabhshlng ‘the'patients”. sports lnjunes or that any of -
them worked for the Burbank movie studios.” ™

137. Respondent Nabhan reiteratéd Respondent Daher's descriptions’ of
maintaining constant communication with-patients and with phystoians as needed,
havxng patients:sign-the warfiing-labels, and' being ‘conscious of:‘abuse-signs suchas -
lost or aootdentatty Wasted brescriptions, and congistently‘early refills; He conceded. :
that he did notdiscuss’ spedific ‘patients with Bass ‘because he was.convinced that
‘Bass was a pain-management-expert afid Bass “Kiew What he'was doing.” Despite’
this admitfed deference to Bass' expertise in presonblng pain medications,
Respondent Nabhan nevertheless claimed that h& and the other Respondents
regularly reviewed thépatiéhts’ dfug-therapiesithieir medication-records; ahd their: '
pattent proﬂles as: kept by Respondents at: Respondent JSD-before: dtspensmg the
prescnbed médicdiions 1o each: "Adcording*to ‘Réspohident Nabhan, once S
Respondents learned of the-patient deaths;: Respondents stopped. dispensing paln

- medication forpain ranagement: physw:tans The evidence was: unolear whether
Respondents lndeed stopped

138" Respondents oontacted Basg™office {o conﬂrm presonptlons diaghoses,
and/or dosages on prescnptlons o patients other than ithe patients at.issue in this
: “mattenon numerous~dates~|notudmg Qeiober34-2006-(Sendta-and-Ambien)-January-
8, 2007 (Norco'and Xariax), March 17,72008- (Oxyoontm Valium, Soma), March 17,
2008 (Norco), March 26, 2008 (Lortab), March 31, 2008 (Norco, Xanax, Soma, and -
Motrin), April 2, 2008 (Norco) April 2, 2008 (Loroet Xanax, and Soma), and April 8,
2007 (Norco) "However,‘in tHié casé and iWith these patients, Respondent Nabhan

admiitted that: he did not consult Bass regardmg each pattent pnor to dlspensmg the
medlcatlons at lssue ’ : _

Respondenf Jun Yamasakf

139. On July 19, 2006, the Board recogntzed and commended Responderit -
Yamasak| for 50 years of: service as'a-Tegistered pharmaolst Respondent Yamasaki
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Addmonai Assemons by Respondents

asserted generally that he did nothing wrong by dispensing Bass’ prescriptions io the
indicated patients. The ALJ:found that Respondent Yamasaki-answered the ques‘nons
posed during his examination, but at times during the questioning.from each counsel,
he appeared somewhat unclear in his ‘understanding and he required repetition and
additional explanations. The evidence did not establish whether this was due 1o his
age, being hard of hearing, or other factors. At hearing, Respondent Yamasaki .. ,
acknowledged that whenever the pharmacy’s records showed a “Y” initial, that meant
that he had approved the prescription and filled it. However, he ‘admitted that he cousd
not specifically recall any patient or prescription in this case.. Therefore whenr
queshoned about specific patients or any circumstances surroundmg the filling and ~ h
dispensing of the prescriptions for these patients, Respondent Yamasaki could not
explain why prescriptions he filled may have been dispensed early or whether he
exercised his corresponding résponsibility appropriately in each case prror’to
disperising. He did,; however, testify that it would only be reasonable for Resporuents

_tofilla prescrrptron eafly “if we had documentation.” He also festified that if he.

observed that a patient regularly obtained Hydrocodone and. then the pa’uent also .

obtarned Suboxane that he Would “thrnk they were an addict.”

- A - .
LT BT

'\40 Overall Respondents argued that their ac‘nons were reasonable grven
their du’nes as pharmacists and not.knowing the extent of.Bass. and Bamdad‘
improper actions as physicians. They pointed 1o an inspection report, dated July 2
2008, by-Bayley. By this date, they argued, Bayley had reviewed the same evidence

~and data as was presented in the-instant matter. However in that report after.,

inspecting Respondents Bayley. found “[t}here was. msuﬁrcrent evrdence whether _
[Respondent3SD] was in-violation.of pharmacy law.” Responden’cs argument is no’ted

. but Inspector Bayley’s conclusions on‘one report did-not preclude a drﬁeren’t

- conclusion thereafter.

'The Oprmons of Darlene Funmoto

141 Dariene Fu;rmoto tes’clfred on behalf of Complamant Srnce August 2009

" Fujimoto has been the Assistant. Chief.of Pharmacy Regulatory/Comphance and :
-~ Accreditation-forthe-University-of Cahferma—a’rSan-Drego Health-Systems Medical., e
“Center: "She has held positions in the pharmacy industry since July 1986, .including a

~board member of the:Galifornia Board of Pharmacy (July 1992 to 2001) She holds a

Doctor -of Pharmacy. degree from the University of Southern Cahfomla School of
Pharmacy.: Since February 2007, Fujimoto has been an Assistant Clinical Professor at -
the University of 'San Diege, Skaggs School of Pharmacy.. Fujlmoto has. held Assistant
Clinical Professorships atthe University of California at irvine, School of Medicine

{1987-2003), and the University of California at San Francisco, School of Pharmacy
(September 1985- 1999) .

® See Factual Findings 50-58 regarding dispensing dangerous drugs to D.L., who had also been
prescnbed Suboxone.




"142;* "Fujimoto set forth the applicable standard:of care.analysis: whata .
reasonable prudent pharmacrst would do in the same situation... £ ujimoto:opined that .
Bass' prescriptions were “fed flags” that Respondents:should-‘have noticed: Fujimoto.
rdentn‘ted ‘the red ﬂags as; drug addicts.commonly seek the same-drug: comibinations -
as Bass' prescrrptlons hrgh doses whether‘the prescription was-the patient's frrst or
last; ’rhe same drug combmatrons in the same quantities and doses without - s
customizing them for the patients; a great geographic distance between pa‘uen’r and
presonber and between patrent and pharmaoy, the patients* age (she described -

anyone 30.years old or younger as "young ", paymg Cash for the medrcatrons ’rha’r s,
they drd not | use health lnsuranoe e 4

143 Furrmoto agreed wrth Respondents that pharmaorsts must evaluate .
prescnp’crons using their clinical expertise’to determinedif-each prescription is proper..
However, accordrng to’ Fujrmoto thé guantity ofcontrolled :substances within Bass'
presonp‘nons was excessive and, using their clinical expertise, Respondents should.
have béen ‘aware of the potential dangers of drspensmg these combinations of
medications to patients with the red flags nmiéntioned:previousty.- Respondents-.
accepted the prescriptions with no consistent periodic evaluation of the patients’

. treatment histories. Respondents’ early refillsidispensed additional; highly addictive..

drugs to patierits who displayed several red flags of addiction. Fujimoto explained that

filling prescrlp’nons éarly without.contacting the prescnber could lmpede potentrally
: 1eg rtrmate drug treafmen’cs 1no|ud1ng trtra’uon efforts

SREViE -{‘3Fuj|moto oprned tha’t Bass had O professronal quahﬂca’crons fo support
his se!f~descrrbed pain specialty. -She questroned whether the young patients truly had

_chronlc parn ‘as presumed by Basg’ presonptrons :Fujimoto opined thatthe- . .. |
"Comblna’uon &f oplords ‘benzodiazepines; and muscle rélaxants; as:prescribed by. .

Bass, wasd dangerous -combination that tould fead-to. serious medlcal prob!ems s
1noludrng resprratory depression and death.

145. Fujimoto opined that a prudent pharmacrst would be.in frequent: contac’r
with the prescriber to check the parameters of any pain contract, question the validity
of the’ prescnptron confirm the need o continug all.of the medrca’clons at the

} prescnbed dose 'and document Lhese oommunlca’uons

.....

146 ",jlnstead Fujlmoto found thiat Respondents drd not keep detailed reoords
of any such cofmunications. While Fujimoto beliéved-Respondents should have been -

. checkmg CURES reports 'she conceded that CURES was not readily available onlirie :
© between 2006 and 2008+ Nevertheless, she explained that in 2008 through 2008

pharmacrsts ‘could’ still request CURES reports by mail‘and facsimile.. Had .-
Respondents utmzed 'CURES Fujimoto reasoned, Respondents would have
uncovered the eaflier prescriptions.of Subutex, and. Suboxone for A.S. and D.L., and
the prescription trends showing the use of multiple physicians;.multiple pharmacres :
and the excessive quantities of highly addictive controlled substances.
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. 147. Fujimoto.explained that Respondents had and have an obligation not to
defer to prescribing physicians as they.did to Bass and Bamdad. They provided little
or no oversight-over the prescriptions and continued to frequently dispense consistent
- and virtually uninterrupted large quantities of dangerous combinations of controlled

substances. Iri Fujimoto's opinion, Respondents should have questioned Bass and
-Bamdad and Respondents should not have taken Bass' word for his actions in light of .
what Fujimoto .opined were highly suspect prescrlblng practices. She opined that a
reasonable pharmacist would have had. suspicions about Bass' and Bamdad's patients
and practices: Respondents did not document any suspicion.about the. combination of
drugs, the physicians’ practices; or the drug combinations. Fujimoto opined that
Respondents’ failure to contact Bass and Bamdad as to-their prescription practices .
and contlnue to dlspense the prescnptlons Constltuted unprofessional-conduct.

The’ Oplmons of Rlchard R. Abood

148. Richard R. Abood testlfled on behahc of Respondents Slnce 1991 he
has-been a Professor of Pharmacy: Practice at the-University of the Pacific, School of
,Pharmacy in Stockion, California.” From 1989.t0.1991, Abood was a Professor of .
Pharimacy Administration at the University of Wyoming, School of Pharmacy, in._
Laramie; Wyoming, and-from 198210 1989, he was an. Associate Professor of .
Pharmacy Administration at the same university: He held-another professorshlp in.
pharmacy at the University of Texas, College-of Pharmacy in Austin; Texas, from., 1983

" {01984, Abood held pharmacy positions from approximately 19872 to 1982. . He...

obtained a'Bachelor's degree in.pharmacy in 1972 and a Juris Doctorate in May 1976

both from the University of Nebraskain Lincoln. He obtained a license to practice, .. -

- pharmacy in Nebraska, lowa, and Wyoming. Since the 1980s, Abood has written-
numerous articles on the regulatory and legal issues within the pharmacy practice. He

has authered &-publication entitled ‘Pharmacy.Practice.and the. Law;” 7th Edition .

‘(October 2012); ‘with earlier editioris in 2014 -and 2010 {(6th edition), 2007 (5th edition),

2004 (4th edltlon) and s’ull earller editions wrth a co-author from 1994 fo 2000

149 " Abood oplned that Respondents ao’ced as: reasonable pharmaolsts by
dispensing Bass'-and:Bamdad's prescriptions. Abood acknowiedged that some of the -
patierits“may have been addicted to drugs; but noted that Respondent's actions-should -

~be-assessed-fromthe-perspective-of the-reasenably-prudent-pharmacistand-not-with -- -

hindsight-as to the criminal-actions of the prescribing physiciars :or.the later knowledge ,
that certain patients were addicts..Abood did notfind the typical actjons, or situations
that pharmacists find when patient-addicts are trying to obtain greater quantities of
controlled substances. Abood identified-thése actions and.situations as patients lying:
or otherwise attempting to deceive the prescriber or pharmagist (repeated assertions of
losing or accidentally wasting medications); moncompliance with directions for usg.and

_ dosages, and -evidence ’chat the patlent has sold stolen, or borrowed prescrlptlon
drugs: : e . .

150. As to some of the “red flags" highlighted by -C'omplaln'ant, Abood opined
that while some of the patients were young, young:patients also suffer.from chronic
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- pain and therefore given the other information-‘Respondents received, such as

construction industry employment;. patiert age need not have caused Respondents..
cohceri: Regarding the distancebetween Respondent JSD-and patient residences,
Abood noted that many physicians:do. not treat:chronic-pain’and thus, itis reasonable
to have ‘chrenic pain patients travel longer distances to find. avallable physicians and
pharmames Abood alsoiopined that:30 to 40 miles is not an-unreasonable distance to
travel in‘Los Angeles. Abood pointed to the great number of persons.who cannot -
afford health insurance to support his opinion:that cash.payments do not-constitute
addict behavior. Regarding the fact that:family. members received the same.drug
regxments Abood found it *hardly impassible” that family-members-could share the
same -pain problems: -and therefore share the same drig regimen. For this reason, he
found nething significant about B.G. and:C.G::obtaining-the same.prescriptions at -
same time, even if it was true that the siblings admitted they obtained the prescriptions
to support B.G.s addiction, as he believes there was no'way Respondents-could have
known that at the tlme they dlspensed the medlcattons

- 4Be Regardlng ‘the-great: quantlty :of.controlled substances dlspensed Abood
oplned that the number of prescnptlons appeared greaterthan generally expected: ‘
because Bass wroteipresciiptions for1.0to: 15-day supplies: Most: prescnbers wrofe -
prescriptions fora 30=daysupply, and: therefore, Bass's’ prescnptions would amount to
approxtmately two fimés: riore’ prescnptuons vAbood:conceded that Bass did not -

-dppearto be- hlghiy sophlstlcated 4n treatmg pain, but:Bass’ preseriptions for Norco

XanaX; and Soma, were dnd-are; in his-expérience;a common combination for treatsng

“pain that pharthacists offer.see. “Further;:it- would not be appropriate for: pharmacnsts

to refuse to fl!t the prescnptxons because they dlsagreed Wlth the medlcatlon

152 As to* earty reﬂlls Abood oplned that Respondents drd not vxotate any .
laws-or regu!atlons as they-used their professmnal judgment to-decide to dispense the
prescnbed quantifies of medications to:eachpatient. .Abood writicized -Gomplainant | for
presuming, without direct evidence, that the patlents were not following dosage
diretfions dnd were ‘abusing the. drugs resulting in; amoeng other things,
dcetaminophien toxicity: “On:this issue, Abood was accurate that there was no
evidence establtshmg the* quanmy of medlca’uon patients’consumed: Early refills,

- however-expesed-patientsto-the-risk: -and-dangerof-destaminophentoxicity - great-ﬁ .

arncunts of-addictive controlied: substances, and the potential impeding-of medication
therapy 1n this® way “the targe doses ‘were. nonetheless dangerous te-the patlents

153 Abood conceded that CURES isa valuabte tool for: pharmacxsts buthe -
noted that “réal-time” CURES data was not-available until September:2009,.and

. therefore, usifig'CURES was not the standardof care-when Respondents were

dispensing the prescnptlons atissue in this matter. .Abood further: opined that the use
of CURES by pharmacists is "not likely” the standard of care today.

154, As to Complainant's argument that.Respondents failed fo adequately
evaluate patients; Abcod opined.that, after-Respondents’ contact with:Bass, he saw. no.
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need for Respondents to assess Bass' existing patients by further contact with the
physician and the gathering of medical data supporting the prescriptions. Abood
agreed that it is the standard of practice o contact the prescriber to verify the
legitimacy of a prescription and ask about the patient's diagnosis if the pharmacist has
questions. Abood opined that the information Bass provided to Respondents
‘answered the pharmacists’ questions and concerns.such that Respondents could
thereafter reasonably dispense-his prescriptiens.- Abood believes that had
Respondents made contact with Bass again regarding concerning patients, as .
Complainant argued, Bass would have likely provided the same -or similar information
10 that which ‘he had previously provided to-the pharmacists. In such a case, Abood
believes Respondents would still have had reason fo continug dispensing Bass’
prescriptions. Aboeod further opined that the questioning and verifying of each
prescription each time is not the standard-of care and not good practice, He also
explained that, while helpful, it is not standard of care for pharmacists to obtain
physm;an d}agnoses and lab testmg, among other medical data. .

1565, Abood oplned that Respondents aotlons did not lead to the deaths of the
patients ‘at-issue in this matter and further asserted that the patient deaths were not
foreseeable from their dispensing of Bass-medications. He opined that Respondents
acted reasonably, mettheir corresponding responsibility, dispensed drug combinations -
that-werelogical and in reasonable doses and strengths, for lengths of fime that wére
not out of the“ordinary for chromic pain sufferers.. - ' ' '

156 Regardlng A.S., Abood opined that the January 22, 2007 presorlptlon
was not an early refill and was more likely a record keeping error, but.Abood's opinion
on this was not persuasive and failed to account for the fact that Respondents had just
dxspensed a.10:day supply of Norco three.days earlier. That-A:S, did not return for

more Norco until‘February 12, 2007, dsd not negate that A.S. was glven 250 tablets of
Norco within four days. - LTI :

The Oplmons of Adam Marc Kaye

.....

Professor of Pharmacy Practice at the Thomas J. Long Sohool of Pharmacy and

‘Health Sciences-at-the-University-of-the-Paeifiein-Steckten-California- sHe-has held

that position since 2012. Since 2007, Kaye has- been an Associate Clinical Professor

+ of Pharmacy Practice and Coordinater of the:Intreductory Experience Program at the
_same university. Since 1999 -and to the present, Kaye has:worked as.a Pharmacy

Manager for Walgreens Pharmacy in Stockton. Kaye received his Doctor of Pharmacy
degree in 1995 at the University of the. Pacific, School of Pharmacy. He holds
pharmacist licenses since 1995 in-California and Arizona. He is a Fellow of the
California Pharmacists Association (since 2001) and a Fellow of the American Society
of Consultant Pharmacists (since 1996) Kaye has co-written guidelines on prescribing
opioids in non-cancer pain patients for the American Society of International Pain =™
Physxmans and.numerous other articles on pain medlcme and opioid presorlbmg
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158: Kaye largely echoed Abood's opinions regarding ‘the following issues:
Bass’ younger patients: (Kaye contested thatthe majority of the patients-were young
people, relying largely on Respondent's descriptions of their patient population), the-:
seemingly-great number-of prescriptions for 15-day supplies; the distance between -
patient residence and Respondent 4SD, Bass' drug combinations, prescribing snmllarly
to farily members, the repeated and similar medications, quantities, dosage .
"directions, probabie compuiter errors for early refills and-lack of preseriber.
authorization, and the use of CURES‘between 2006 and 2008.".0On'the issue of .
CURES, Kaye implicitly agreed with Abood that it is not the current standard of care.”
Kaye asserted that ag of 2012, he wa's unaware-of any pharmacy using CURES online
consistently. After considering the opiniens -of Fujimoto, Abood, and Kaye, there was
insufficierit evidente to’conclude that, at the' relevant tlme for thts matter it was the
standard of care for pharmacnste to use CU RES

159. In his repoert, dated June 14 2012 Kaye opmed that the early refills
alleged by Complainant were not estabhshed by the CURES data because that data
only showed wheri a medication was filled; not when the patientactually obtairied the
medicafion. “Thatopinion was unperstiasive and carries no” welght beécause:the risk-of
harmo'the: patnent‘oocurs whetft a-preseription.isfilled; meaning; when the medication
is‘friade available to thepatient:Thefact that the patient could pick:it up:ata:later date
has no bearing ona pharmacist's diityto nict put patients.at risk:of-harm-by.making .

dangerous drugs available, without justification or proper documentation, earlier than
prescrlbed -

i L anrie

‘Respondents Reputatlon

160 Respondente presented character WItneeses who' teetlﬂed that they enjoy
a reputatlon as 5-good pharmacy withirza portion of thé Iocal commitinity. Nor

Respaondent has suffered any license discipline by the Board in alt of their years of -
pharmacy practice.

161. Tim Stehr (Stehr) testified on behalf of Reepondents Stehr is a former
Chief:of the Burbank Police Departmerit-and ‘spent.32 years as.a police officer, six
years as a ‘narcofics® ageht He has used Respondems as his pharmacy for many
- "years-—He~has never-seen anythmg—eut—ef the-ordinary-with:regard:to-the=over—i— — -
dispensing of medicationsy The evidence did not establish that; as a custemer/patient,

despite s 1aw enfotcement-background::that Stehr would shave noticed the excessive
furmshmg of medications: by ‘Respondents: Stehr.recalled :one time that-a-person
‘camé’in 18 RéspondentdSD with-a-forged prescriptiorizand ‘Respondents immediately .
called thé-police. He considers Respondent-JSD an upstanding pharmacy with .
upstandmg pharmaolsts. Other character witnesses corroberated Stehr's opinion.

Costs

5-.

- 182. The ALJ found that Complamant mcurred $61 541 in mvestlgattve costs
and $53,650 in prosecution costs, but reduced the award to $57,585.50. Pursuantto
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Business and Professions Code section 125.3(d), this ﬂndmg is not rewewable by the
Board fo increase the cost award.

LEGAL oowcwsnons

The Standard of F’roomc

1. Complainant must prove her case by clear and convmomg evidence to a

| _ reasonable certainty: (Ettinger v. Board of Medical Quality Assurance (1982) 135

Cal.App.3d 853,) Clear and convincing evidence means the evidence is “so clear as to
leave no substantial doubt” and is “sufficiently strong to command the unhesitating .
assent of every reasonable mind.” (Mathieu v. Norrell Corporation (2004) 115
Cal.App.4th 1174, 1190 [citing Mock v. Michigan Millers Mutual Ins. Co. (1992) 4
Cal.App.4th 308, 332-333].) : '

Apphoable Laws and Requlatlons

3

2. ) Busmess and Profess;ons Code section 4300 provndes that the Board
may suspend, revoke, or place on probation any Board-issued license, or take any
other license disciplinary action, as the Board in its discretion, may deem proper

. 3. Busmess and Profess:ons Code section 4302 prowdes that the board
may .deny, suspend, or revoke any license of a corporation where conditions exist in
relation to any person holding.10 percent-or more of the-corporate stock of the .
corporation, or where conditions exist in relation to any officer or director, of the:.
corporation that would cons’utute grounds for disciplinary action agarns‘c a l;oensee

4, Business and Profess;ons Code section 4301, SUble]SlOl’lS (d), (),.and
(0), prov;de that the Board must take disciplinary action agaxnst a licensee who.
engages in unprofessional-conduct. In subdivisions (d), (), and (0), the Legislature -,
has defined unprofessional conduct to 1nciude but not be limited #o:

{d) The oleariy excessive furmsnlng of oontroﬂed substanoes

-~ -in-violation-of-Health-and- Safeiy—Code—sectlon M’lSQ - = -

: (J) The wola‘non of any ofthe statutes of this sta‘ce of any
other state, or of the United States regulating controlied substances
and dangerous drugs. ) ‘ NN

(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or- 1nd|rectly, or
assisting in or abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any
provision or term of this chapter [Chapter 9 of Division 2 of the
Business and Professions Code] or of the applicable federal and
state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including
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regulations established by the board or by any other state or federal.
regulatory agency. ' | '

5. Business and Professions Code section 4306.5, subdivisions (b) and (c)
define unprofessional conduct to include any of the following:

(b)  Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part; the -
failure to exercise or implement his or her best professional
judgment or coffesponding responsibility with regard to.the” -
digpensirig or- furnishing of cohtrolied substances; dangerous drugs,
or dangerous devices, ot with regard to thve ;provision of services.

fc):  Actsoromissions that itwvolve, in whole or in part, the .
. failure to consult-appropriate patient,-prescription;-and other -
records pertaining to the performance of any pharmacy function.

8. Business and Professions Code section 4113, subdivision (c), provides,
that the pharmacist-in-charge of a pharmacy shall be responsible for that pharmacy's
compliance with all state and federal laws and regulatioris pertaining to’the practice of - '
phaimacy.r ™ T T T m e —

7. - Business and Professions Code section 4083 provides that no
prescfiption ot any dangerolis drug:may:beirefilled:except Upow a uthotization of the
prescriberi The althorization'may. he given:orally.or af the time ‘of -giving the-original -
prescription, and-nio-prescription for-a‘controlléd-substance may be-designated -
reﬂllab'%é"a,s peeded. e CoT LTRETRITE L AT Dot

8. Health and Safety Code section 11153; subdivision (a) expresses a
~ “corrésponding responsibility” standard of care; .and states:” o

. A prescription for a controlied. substance shalt:only be issued
for a legitimate medical purpose by.an individual practitioner acting
in the usual course of his or her professional practice. The
responsibility for the proper-prescribing and:dispensing:of:.centrolled -

_substances-is upon-thé preseribingpiactitionerbutas—————-
corresponding responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the
prescripfion. *Exceptas authorized by this division, the-following are
not egal prescriptions: (1) an:order purporting e be a prescription -
which is issued not in the usual courée of professional treatment.or
in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an addict
or habitual user of controlied substances; which-is issued not in the
course of‘professional reatnient or as part.of an authorized .
narcotic tréatment program, for the plrpeise of providing-the user
‘with controlled substances,-sufficient to-keep:him-or her
comfortable by maintaining customary-use.
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‘9. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1707,3, states:

Prior to consultation as set forth in section 1707.2, a
pharmacist shall review a patient's drug therapy and medication
record before each prescription drug is delivered. The review shall
include screenirig for severe potential drug therapy problems.

10.  Cailifornia Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1707.2, states: '

(a) A pharmacist shall provide oral consultation e his or
_her patient or the patient's agent in all care settings:

(1) . upon re’qu:est; or

(2)  whénever the pharmacist deems it warranted i the -
- exercise of hls or her professnonal judgment.

(b)('E) In addmon to the obhga’non to consulf set- for’ch i
- sUbsection {a), a pharmacist shall provide oral consultation fo his or.
her patient or the patient's agent.in any care settlng in Wthh the
pa’nent or agent is present :

co T

: A.-:(A) whenever the prescnp’uon drug. hae not
previously been.dispensed.to & patient; or

(B)  whenever a prescription drug not previously -
dispensed to a patient in the same dosage form, strength-or
with the same written dlrec‘nons is dispensed by the
pharmacy

. ;- 1M

- (c)  Whenoral consultation is provided, it shall lnclude at
least the follownng ‘

(1 - dlreo’nons for use and storage and the
lmportance of comphance with directions; and

(2) precau’clons and relevant warnlngs lncludlng
common severe side or adverse eﬁects or interactions that
may be encountered.

(d).  Whenever.a:pharmacist deems it warranted in the

- exercise of his or her professnonal judgment, oral consultation shall
“also include:
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(1)  the'name and de‘sorip’tiom-of the medication:

(2) - “the routeof admlnlstratlon ‘dosdge- form
dosage and dura‘non ofdrug therapy, =

B

.+{B) - therapeutic-contraindications, avoidance :of commorn
severe side or adverse effects or known interactions, including
serious potential interactions with-known nonprescription-
medications and therapeutic contraindications and the action
required if such side or adverse effects or interactions or
therapeutic contraindications are: present or-occur; .-

11. Cain‘orma Code of Regulatlons title 18, seo’uon 1761 states

(a) No pharmactst shall compound or dlspense any prescnptlon WhICh contains
any significant error;-omission, irregularity,"urcertainty, ambiguity.or alteration. Upon

receipt of anly §uich-prescription, the pharmacisi-shall: contact the prescnber to obtam
the information rieeded ‘co vahda’ce thezprescription.

(b) Even after conferrmg with the prescriber, a pharmacnst shall no‘c compound
- or dxspense a controlled substance-prescription where the pharmacist knows or has-

objective reason o know that sald iprescription=was -not-issued for a- ]egltlmate medical
purpase.

e

Applicable C’asé*l‘_‘aw

..,.:4

S 12 Expert tes‘umony is requxred to estabhsh the standard of care: w1th respectfo...
a professmn See, Flowers v. Torrance Memorial Hospital Medical Center (1994) 8
Cal.4th 992,"1001; Williams v. Prida (1999) 75 Cal.App.4th 14171424,

13.  Thetrier of-fact may *accept part-of the testimony of a witness and reject
another part even though the latter contradicts the part accepied.” (Stevensv. Parke,
Pavis &Co-(1973)-9 Cal:3d-54,-67-) The-trieroffact-may-alsereject-part-ef-the - - -

~testimony of a witness though-nat-directly contradicted, and combine the accepted .
‘portions with bits of testimony or inferences-from-thétestimony.of other witnesses thus
weaving a cloth of truth out of selected available material.”. (Id. at 67-68 [citing
Nevarov v, Caldwell (1958):16-Cal:App:2d:7627:767].) :Further, the fact finder may
reject the testimony of any'witness;:gven:an expert:although-uncontradicted. |
(Foreman & Cfark Corp. v. Fallon (1971) 3 Cal.3d 875,-880.) -

14.  The fact that a trier of fact:*may disbélieve the testimony of a witness
who testifiesis the negative:of.an.issue doesnet oftself furnish any .evidence in )
support of the affirmative of that issue and does not warrant a finding in the affirmative -
thereof unless there is other [supportive evidence].” (Hutchinson v. Contractors’ State
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License Board (1956) 143 Cal. App. 2d-628, 632 [cmng Marovich'v. Centra/ Callforma
Traction Co. (1923) 191 Cal. 295, 304].)

15.+ Inlicense dlsclphnary matters, one need not wait for actual injury before
imposing discipline, if there is evidence of potentially-harmful misconduct. -(In re Kelley
. (1990) 52-Cal. Sd 487, 495—496 see also In re Hickey- (1990) 50 Cal.3d 571, 579.) -

16 The hcensee if he eiects to operate his busmess through empioyees
must be responsible to the licensing authorlty for their conduct in the exercise of his
" license...By virtue of the ownership of a ...license such owner has & responsibility to -
see 1o it that the license is not used in VIOla’uon of the law.” Banks v. Board of .

" Pharmacy (1984) 161 Cal.App.3d 708, 713, citing Ford Dealers Assn. V. Deparfnvenz‘ of
Motor Veh/cles (1 982) 32 Cal.3d 347.

17 A hcensee may be dxscxphned on the-basis of ordlnary neghgence when
charged thh the “clearly excessive furnishing of controlled-substances.” .Smith.v.,
State Board of Pharmacy (1997) 37 Cal App. 4 229, 246- 247

Analysis . .

The Flrst Cause for D:scrplme

18 Complamant estabhshed by clear: and Convmcmg evndence that
Respondent Daher dispensed Hydrocodone/APAP: (geperic for Norco) to J.S. on -
January.15.and 22,2007, respectively, withoutevidence.of the prescnblng doc’cors
authorization..-Respondents’ explanations as to how or-why.this might:have- happened
_ were unpersuasive as discussed at Factual Finding 37. Asthe P.1.C., Respondent
‘Dakier was also'responsible for these violations pursuant to. Busmess and. Professmns
.Code section-41343, and Respondent JSD is responsible for all acts .of its-agents and
employees at the pharmacy. Consequently, Respondents.JSB and Daher Vlolated
Business and Professions Code section 4063, Respondents® actions constltute

_ unprofessional conduct pursuant to Busmess and Professmns Code section 4301
P s subdnnsson (o) H e =

19, ln addltlon Complainant. estabhshed by clear and convmcmg evndence
that Respondérit Daher dispensed Hydrocodone/APAP for:patient A:S. without
prescriber authorization when he filled a prescription on January 22,.2007-that was
post-dated January 30, 2007. As the P.I.C., Respondent Daher was responsible for
Respondent JSD’s comphance with all Iaws and regulations pertaining to the practice
of pharmacy pursuant to Business and Professions, Code.section-411.3, and
Respondent JSD is responsible for all acts of its agents and employees at the
' pharmacy. -Consequently, Respondents JSD and Daher violated Business and -
Professions Code section 4063. Respondent JSD's and Daher's acfions constitute .
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unprofessmnal conduct pursuant to-Business and Professrons Code seo‘non 4301,
subdivision (o).

20.. Cause exists to discipline Respondent JSD%s pharmacy license and
Respondent Daher's pharmacist license for filling prescriptions-without the prescriber's

- quthorization; pursuant 1o Businéssand Professions Code sestions 4300, 4301,

subdivision (0}, 4302, and 4113, as set forth in Factual Findings 1-5, '18 27, 29-30, 37,
90, 91, 134, 137 and’ Legal Conolus:ons 1-4, 6 7,12~ 16 18 and 19

The Second and Fourfh Causes for Drscrplme

21.  The Admrnlstratrve Law Judge found that Respondent’s pa’nent profiles,
as they maintained them, and their familiarity with them at hearing, lent credibility to
Respondent’s dssertions that they-reviewed :each patient's drug therapy and :
medication records before they dispensed the patient’s prescriptions. ' However, the -
law requires more than afamiliarity with how'records -are- malntarned to support'a
finding of compiuanoe _The law requires a pharmacist to “consult,”"* “revisw,”'®" and
“screen”’ the patient’s records before dispensing. The evidence showed that '
Respondents failed to carefully or critically evaluate or examine the patients’ records-
prior to dispensing the prescriptions at issue in-this casé. The evidence showed that
despite the high volume of highly addictive medications being dispensed at Jay Scott
Drugs over a considerable period of time for different types of patients .and despite-the
risks of dangerous drug combinations for-particular patrente Respondents deferred to
the prescriber unques‘uomngiy arid without furthier review oriexamination. Given the
fact that-Respondents are experienced.community pharmacts’cs the:Board does not;

believé thatRespondents: could:-have- possibly canstilted,; reviewed or screened the -

patient: drug’ theraby; patieritmedicationor-othet pharmaceutical recerds before
drepensmg or-dispensing medications“early’; . they had, the Board finds. that they. .-

¢
P

“sitheriwould Have refused to'fill-the prescriptionssas réquested ordocumented reasops

for dispenrising these medications after obtaining confirmation of the legitimate medloal

. purpcse forsuch treatmentfrom the prescrlber» However neither of the foregoing

occurred ln thas c;ase

7¢ Government Code section 11425. 50(b) states, in pertinent part, “If the factual basis forthe decision -
mcludes a determination based substantially on the credlblhty of a witness, the statement shall identify

_any’specific éVidende of the obseried démeahor;manfiet;or attitude:of the witness :that supports the

determinafioi;xand.on judicial.review the court:shall givegreat, weight o the determination.to the extent
the determipaition identifies the observed demeanor, manne;:or. attitude of the.witness.that, supports it”
The ALJ's findings, of credrbrhty did not contain, any .obsery 'ons of the demeanor or attxtude of

: Respondents o) the ﬂndlngs are not entlt\ed to great we@ht" “r

Y “Consul™ means ) "\ook at carerul\y, examlne. (Webster ) New World ch‘ﬂonary 3r ed (1988) atp.
297 \ e -

2 \Review” means to "examlne or mspect g (Webster‘s New World Drctronary 3 ed (1988) at .p. 1149 )

 vSereen” méans {6 “sélect, Teject; c“:on"side'r, or group by ek'am'rning systematically.” Dictionary.com.
Dictionary.com Unabridged. Random House, Inc. htip://dictionary.reference.com/browse/screen (Web:
December 11, 2013). .
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The evidence also persuasively showed that Respondents could not estab[isb personal
knowledge about-the pa’cients ot the prescriptions, the circumstances surrounding the
prescriptions at issue in this case, or that their alleged usual and customary policies
and practices regardirig the filling of prescriptions were followed in this case. The
evidence persuasively showed that Respondents' personal opinions and testimony
regarding howa presonp’tlon at issue in this case would have been handled at Jay .
Scott Drugs is speculatlve and entitled to little weight. Consequently, the Board fmds

by clear and convincing. evidence, that there was a violation of Business and - ..
Professions ‘Code section 4306.5, subdivision (c), California Code of Regulations, title
16, sections 1707.3-or 1761, and that ‘therefore, violations of Business and -
Professions Code seo‘uons 4301 subdlwsmn ( ), 4302, and 4113 were.also .
estabhshed RS |

22 Cause exnsts to dlsmphne Respondent JSD's pharmacy iloense and |
Respondent ‘Daher’s pharmacist license for failing to review drug therapy and patient
‘medication records; pursuant fo:Business and Professions Code sections 4300,-4301,

subdivision (o), 4302, and 4113;as set-forth in Factual Fmdmgs 1-5,8, 9; 18 131 134-
147, 154, 156 and:L.egal Conclusmns 1-8, 9, 11, 12 16, and 21.

23. Cause exists o dlsmp[me Respondents Nabhan s and Yamasakl S
‘pharmacist licerises for-failing to review patient profiles before dispensing ,
. prescriptions, pursuant to Business:and Professions Code sections 4300 and. 4301

subdivigion (o), as set forth in Factual. Flndlngs 1-6, 8, 9, 18- 131 134 147 and Legal
Conolusnons 1-6 9,11, 12- 16 and '1 L

The Thlrd and Fffth Causes for Drsc:pime

L

. -'24 ln Correspondlng responSIbillty cases pharmacrsts and pharmacnes must
f-"*determme Whether a-prescription for a controlled substance was issued fora legmmate
meédical purpose whenever the .surrounding circumstances lndloate that suchan..: .
inguiry-should be made-This means that Complainant was requlred to.establish. that
‘circumstances-were present that would cause a reasonable and prudent pharmacist-to
question whether.a prescription.for-& controlled substance was issued for a.legitimate

—-— -medical-purpose-and fo-show-that the Respondents-failed-te-make-the-required -inguiry .- - -

Comiplainant established by clear and-convincing -evidence that Respondents actions
in.dispensing large volumes of:controlled-substances to patients without.inquiry. fell
below the-standard ‘of care of ‘g reasonably prudent pharmacist and that Respondents
failed to meet their corresponding responsibility. During the times-at issue from 2006

. 102008, Respondent JSB, through its licensed personnel, had the duty to determine
whether certain prescnp’mons for controlled substances were issued for legitimate

. medical purposes. The evidence established that Respondents ignored, dlsmlssed or
made nothing :of many factors contained within patient records and -information that
$hould ‘have raised their concerns about the legitimacy of the patients’ prescriptions.
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25.  Bass' prescribing patterns were obvious. The prescriptions for all of the .
patients atissue were for significant quantities of generics for Norco, Xanax, and Soma
and to'a Tesser extent, Liofcet, Oxycontin,-and-Valium; when considering that Bass was
pres'cribihg themata consistent time interval (app‘roximate\y' every. 15 days) without
interruption. ‘The prescribed medications were for controlled substances that have - ..
significant addictive qualities: Res‘pondents‘iundo'tlbtédly knew that persons-with drug. -
addictiori-generally sught these kinds of controlled substances.” Respondents - ’
believed that the patients-were chronic paifi-sufferers and that Bass was apain. :
specialist: However, there was 1o evidence-to support their conclusions:

'~ Resporidents asserted that it was reasonable for them to deferto Bass' presumed . . - '
expertise and discretion, and that aftergeneral discussions with Bass ,their concerns
were adequately answered to-continuedispensing the prescriptions. - However, other.
factors, together with the significant quantity of medication, should have raised ... .-
Respondents’ suspicions that Bass' prescriptions, or at least, the patients’ intentions,
were illegitimate. Bass issued virtually the same drug regimen to each_patient over a
sighificantly long tirme. One would reasonably:expect that a pain specialistwould- . .
modify the drugs, doses;, strengths;or'quantifies within.each patient's-overall treatment . |
time and hetween different patients. * Respondents!"chdiceto ignore-these factors -~
readily ascertainable within-each patient's:prestiption.profile constituied a failure to- -
exercise their professional judgment. ' '

' 26. Respondents incorrectly dismissed the distances traveled by the.majority of
the patiénts.and thieir.cash payments that wére alsofactors that.shouid haveraised-..
Respondents’ suspicions: :Abood’s and Kaye's opinions; that the distances 0f.30 and,
more miles were not great distances to travel to plrchase the medications, bordered

~on the absurd. The distances of virtually every patient at issue here were
unreasonably long and should have raised Resporiderits:concérns..“Similarty, the. < =
majority of the patients paying with cash should have alerted Respondents fo possiblg
llegitiniate prescriptions. Lastly: dispensing similar prescriptions to.famity members,

and gt the Sarhe time, should have also raised Respondentsssuspicions:. The failure of
these factors to prompt Respondentsto suspect possibly. illegitimate prescriptions for
patients with-addictions tonstitutes Resporidents®failure fo exercise their p rofessional .
jidgment.. The opinions-of Fujimotoiasto these factors.and con clusions. were more::.
persiasive than thase of Abood -and Kayé: Theserfactors should, have prompted

~ -~ -Rggpondents-to;attheleast;co ntact-Bassand-vérify-Fis-diagneseshis-general-— - «

treatment plais;:and question him.-regarding-the guantities:and dosages. for each
patient:atissiié hére. Under these circumstances;a reasonably. prudeni pharmacist
would have made inquires to the prescriber.regarding:the drugregimen for these
patiefits‘and whéther:other treatment methods had been tried;including using or:;i3
switching 1o medications that'were ess-addictive. ‘“Respondents correctly asserted-.. -
that thé standard of care does not require them to-make.such inquiries as.to every:.:
patierit with every pain medication prescriptioni;-but the factors discussed in Legal:-

Cohfclhsiéﬁé‘?S‘and 26 provided efioughidata toalert:theprudent, Teasonable - -

pharmagist to inquire further regarding the patie nts hereinas.£ujimoto-opined: Had-

Respondents communicated with Bass, they might have elicited questionable -

responses that would have prompted them to question Bass' prescribing practices
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overall of questroned the patients’ intentioris. Had Respondents received responses
that.they-deemed adeguate to oontlnue dlspensmg, the questlon would fhen have been
whether Bass' responses were reasonable Respondents might well have fulfilled their-
professronal responsibilities by i mqurrmg and assessing Bass’ responses without
further action.. As it stands, however, Respondente chose to defer to Bass' judgment

in the face of obviously concerning prescribing patterns that could not and should not
have been ignored or dismissed as within the sole discretion of the prescrrber In this - -
way, Respondents did not engage their corresponding responsibility to ensure the
regmmaoy of the prescriptions at issue. Respondents faillures constjtute . -
unprofessional conduct and resuted in the furnishing of excessive quantrtres of hlghly'

L .addrotrve controlied substances to numergus patients. .

' .27.. The evrdence showed that srmrlar red ﬂags for Bamdad s pa’nent A C

were present 'A.C. started visiting Respondent JSD at the age of 22, always paid cash |
for OxyConUn and-Xanax, and traveled. approxmately 40 miles from his residence o

pick ‘up.his prescriptions. The evrdence showed that A.C. would buy OxyContin.one
day-and.return the next day to pick up the Xanax porthon of his prescription from Jay
Scott Drugs... This was an approximate § 86~mne round trip. Similar to.Dr. Bass’ patients, |
Respondents had .no documentation.of oonsultatlons with Bamdad’ regarding A. C's .
diagnosis; medication conditions; or. the legrtlmate medrcal purpose for the

' presonptrons

Consrstent wrth Fujimoto’s oprmon when the foregorng “ﬂags emerged Respondent
Daher should have- questloned Bamdad before drspensrng A reasonable pharmacist:
would have, had susprorons about Bamdad's patient and praotrces in light of the
foregoing and made inquiries.. Respondents failure to contact Bamdad as to. his ,
prescription practices and the-continuous drspensxng of the prescriptions fell below the-
standard:of-care-and.constituted unprofessional.conduct. ‘In light of the foregoing,

. Respondents had an obligation not. 1o defer:fo. Bamdad but the evidence showed:
" Respondent:Daher provided little or ho oversrgh’t over the presorlptrons and continued

'-responsrblhty— SR

to frequently. dispense consistent, and virtually unlnterrupted quantifies of controlled -
substances 1o A.C. Respondent Daher and.Respondent JSD's. actrons in, drspensmg
controlled substances 0. AC, therefore fell below.the standard of care'of a

reasonably. prudent pharmaorst and. Respondents farled fo. meet thelr oorrespond'rng

, 28 Cause exists to drsotplme Respondents pharmacy and pharmaorst
licenses, for falhng to-exercise their professional judgment, pursuant to Business. and
Professions.Code sections 4300, 4302,.and 4301 ‘subdivisions,(d), M, ahd( 6), Health
and Safety Code section 111583, and Calrforma Code of Regulations, title 16, Section
1761 as set forth in Factual Findings 1-161, and Legal Conclusions 1-4, 8,8, 11-17,
24-27. Additionally,-Respondent Daher,.as the Pharmacist-in-Charge, was legally

responsrble for:the violations oonsrstent with- Busmess ‘and Professions Code section
4113, ' -

k4
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'20.- Cause exists” to dlsmplme Respondents ‘Pharmacy‘and pharmiacist -
licenses. for engaging in unprofesslonal conduct, pursuant o Business and-* Professrons
Code sections 4300, 4301 -and 4302, as set forth in Factial: Fmdlngs 1-164-and Legal
Conclusmns 117, and 2427, Addlttonal\y, Respondent Daher, a8 fhe Pharmaotst—«ln- '

Charge; was legally responsible for the vrotatrons conststent wrth Busrness and
Professnons Code sectton 41’Io GLE

Facfors Cons;dereo’ for the Appropr:ate IV easure of Dlscr,oime
30. According fo the Board s Disciplinary’ Guldehnes vrotatrons are examrned
and_categorized to determine the appropriate disciplinary penalty (Category | through
Category IV) Ir this matter, the most serious violafions inclide: Category Hi violations
for vrotatrons of correspondlng responSIbmty Uindar’ Health and Safety Code section
~ 11153 In those cases, fhe Board récommends the maximuri penalty of revocation.
(See Manual of D:smpllnary Gu:delmes and Model DisGiplinary Orders at'p.15 and p.:
7§ However, a détermination’ that cause exists o revoke‘Respondents’ ‘pharmacy
: and pharmac ist licenses: does not end the® mquxry "The Board has: ‘compiled a list'of .
factors to- evaiuate whether a llcensee has been réhabilitated frorpriof mlsoonduct~" ‘
That list, fotind on page 3-of the Board's A Manhtial of Distiplinary Giidelines-and -
Mode! Disciplinary Orders (Revised 10/2007), is incorporated by reference info ’che
Board's regulatlons The criteria considered here include: actual or potential harm to
" thé’ publ\c ‘actual of potentrat harm 16 any-consumer! humber-and/or variety of curfent . -
violations; ‘nature and’ seventy of the Acts under’ conSIderatron aggravatlng eVIdenoe
mitigating svidence; tehabilitation evidenceiwhether the'coridict was neghgent or -
lntentronal and the frnancral beneﬂt to the respondent from’ the mrsconduot

¥ Actual or potentral harm to the pubhc ‘actual or potem‘ia/ harm.- to any:
consumer' Protectron of the pubhc is the Board's’ ‘highest: pnomy “Thé: Board fulﬁlls rts
'pubho ‘mandate by, among ‘other thmgs ifnposing distipling: Ak thefrecord
establishes; the drugs were: drspensed to these patients Withoutregard for: patrent
health" and safety or pubhc satety The‘evidenos established that-some. of the patierits. .
in this case (A 'S, B.Gdnd A.C) were- addicts: Respondents vielatiohs contributed to
the-addiction of these patierits and ‘plt other patients at sk of: harmiffom addiction; -

overdose or death—Further;patients-did overdose-on-medications that were*belng“*— e e

regularly filled by Respondents. Their cause of death was, in part, if not entirely,
attributableto consumlng driigs prescnbed by Bass griBamdadi:and: dlspensed by
' Respondents Respondents’ misconduoct was'a contrlbutrng fadtor in the’ overdoses

as-drug overdose was a hkely and toreseeable consequence of Respondents
mtsoonduot S _ BRI

320 partroular Respondents mrsoonduot oontnbuted to the' drug addlctton
of A.S., which'led fo his untimely death at’ ‘the ‘agedf 22 by overdosing on driigs -

drspensed by Jay Scoit Drugs (Factuat Findings 28-37.) Similatly, Respondents

* Cal. Code Regs., tit 16, § 1760.
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misconduct contributed to-the drug addiction of the four other patients who died from
drug overdoses, whether ornot: any of the drugs consumed that directly caused their
demise were dispensed by Jay Scott Drugs. If Respondents oontnbuted to the drug

addiction, they contributed to the end result: death. :

: 33.  Number and Variety of Current Violations. 1t is very tmportant that the
Board's licensees comply with the standards of pharmacy practice and applicable
pharmacy laws. The five.causes for discipline proven demonstrate that Respondents
failed to abide by those standards :and laws and acted without due regard for public
health or safety. Respondents provided large quantities of controlled. substances and
at doses and frequencies that fell below the standard of care. The public is protected
when pharmaolsts are knowledgeable about their responsibilities and act as patient”
advocates in the’ dtsoharge ‘of those duties. .

34, Nature and Severlty of the Acts. Respondents' vxoranons are senous and
demonstrate a fundamental-disregard for the public’'s health and safety. In this case,
Respondents chose not to exercise clinical judgment, o oommunloate and listen, fo
assess the patients’ drug therapies or the effect the drug was having on the patlents to
interact with the prescnbers {o understand the true nature of the prescnptlons orto
intervene when thére were‘red flags.” Instead, Respondents appeared to choose

profits over patient satety by continuously filling suspect prescnpttons w1thout question.
Thls mtsoonduct is serious” and warrants revocation.

_ As exp!alned by the Cain‘orma Court of Appeal in Vermont & 7 OO”’ Med;c:a/ Arts
Pharmaoyv Board of Pharmacy (1981) 125 Cal.App.3d 19, 25:

- “A profession is a vocatlon or oocupatlon requiring speolal and advanced
"education and-skill:predominately of an intellectual nature.. The praottce ot
e "-pharmacy, hke the practice of medicine, is a profession.

For this reason, society entrusts to persons in these professions the
responsibility tor control over a force which, when properly used, has great
benefit for manktnd but When abused is a force for evil and human destructton

It follows that sootety oannot tolerate the presence of tndtvxduals within fhese

professions-whe-abdicate-theirprofessional responsrbmty-and-permtt__,_. R

themselves to be used as a conduit by which these controlled substances reach
the illicit market and become that force of evil to which we allude.”

35.  Aggravation/Mitigation/Whether the Conduct was Negligent or
Intentional. In aggravation;the Board considered that Respondents Daher, Yamasaki
- and Nabhan were all experienced community pharmacists who,shouild have
fecognized the “red flags”.presented to them. As a board that tnotudes oommumty
pharmacists, the Board finds it inconceivable that when presented with these facts,
over and over again over many months, Respondents did not immediately contact the
prescribers, ask questions, and document those inquiries in the patients’ records.
Respondents’ own evidence showed they were capable of doing this for other
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pa’uen’rs but Respondents failed to-produce any credible evidence that they did so in

* this' case.” “In-addition, the Board considered that! Respondent Nabhan is a licensed

resprra’rory therapist, Who was well'awafe of the respiratary dangers of opiods.and -

- their use in combination with sedatives:=However; he continued fo dispense hrghiy

dangerous oprods and dangerous-drug cormibirations without further inquiry of the
,prescrrber In‘mitigation, Respondents had no- previous record.of discipline. - At best,
their viclations demdnstrate that Respondents féll below the standard of care- -of what
a reasonably prudent pharmacist’ ‘wotild do:under the same. or similar orroums’ranoes
‘However, at'worst; Responderits” mrsconduot exhrbrts a reckless drsregard for the -
pubho heal’rh and safety T TG

36.  Rehabilitation Evrdence Respendente drd not present any-rehabilitation
evidence. Respondents all consistently denied they did anything wrong in this matter.
They expressed no temorsegfor theirmisconduct: Respondent:Daher, in particular,
appeared o place blame on the patrents for'their-drug addictions and deaths. These
_‘farlures o accept any responsibility: ‘and’] mlmmrze the patients as human berngs are of
“concerm ’ro the Board: Respondent” Datier; ¥Yamasaki,-and Nabhan’s: denials, lack of
understandmg of their responsrblh’nee s pharmacrste and theirfack of remorse. -
.demonstrate tha’r Respondente are not able to practrce wrth safe’ry tothe public.

37. Fmancral Benefrt to the Respondenf from the Mrsconduct..;l,iThe evrdence
shows that Respondent JSD received-huge financial gains from dispensing controlled
substarices; par‘creulariy from Bassi-Respofidert ¢SD-was paid approximately.$1.7 -

“million doliars in cash for Bass!prescriptions! ‘Respondent Daher admitted his financial

interest in contmumg to dispense these types of prescriptions in communications’ wrth

the Bodrd’s staff.- On Aprrl 16; 2008; Respondent Daher wrote:Inspector Bayley a

letter indi¢ating thiat he was-experiencing & “stow down of our.business” and might
have to lay off employees i he'did not contintieto fill prescriptions-from doo’cors like

. Bass,

Ce e

Conclusion

38,  When considering all of the factors in Legal Conclusrone 30 37 outright

. revocatron of Respondente licenses would beithe only discipline appropriate to pro‘rec‘r
: -tbe.publromThre;ﬁn_drrrg is“based-upon: a!\—.-rndmgs -of-Fach: and.LegaLConclusrons

Costs

39. - »'Biisitiess and Professions:Codersection 1125.3 provides that “upon
reguest of the entity binging the' proceedrng, the administrative Jaw judge may direct a
licentiate found té'have committed a'violation: or violations of the ficensing act fo pay a

sUm no.fr_fro eAceed the reasonabre cos’cs of the rnves’crga’rron and enforcement of the
case! :

40, The Board must exercise rts drsore’tron fo reduce or ehmlnate cost awards
in a manner that will efsurethe.award does notdeter licensees with- poten’rrally
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. meritorious claims or. defenses from exercising their right 1o a heanng (Zuckerman v.

State Board of Chiropractic Examiners (2002) 29 Cal4th 32, 45.) *[TThe Board may
not assess the full costs of investigation and prosecution when:{o do so.will unfairly
penalize a llicensee] who has committed some misconduct, but who has used the .
hearing process to obtain dismissal of other charges or a reduction in the severity of
the drsclplrne imposed. The Board must consider the [licensee's] ‘subjective good faith
belief in the merits of his or her position’ [citation] and whether.the [hoensee] has rarsed
a 'colorable challenge' to the proposed discipline [citation].” (/bid.) .

41.  The Administrative Law Judge in this matter found it appropriate o

" reduce the costs of investigation and enforcement ($64,541.& $53:650, respec’uvely)'

each, by 40 percent. The Administrative Law Judge also found that Respondents
cooperated with the Board's investigations. Thus, the ALJ further.reduced costs, for a
total reduction in the costs of investigation and enforcement, each, by 50 percen’r
Therefore, Complainant is entitied fo $30,770.50, in investigation costs, and $26, 825
in enforcement costs. Pursuant to Business and. Professions Code- section 125. S(d),
thls de’rermina’uon is not revrewable by.the Board to increase. the cos’t award.

42. Cause exrste to order Reeponden‘ts to pay the Board s reaeonable costs
of investigation and enforcement, a total of $57,595.50, pursuant to Business and

Conclusions ’i~41

. Professions Code section 1253, as set forth in Factual Fmdrngs 1= 162 and Lega\

ORDERS -

Order Re Respondent Daher

" is revoked.-

~years-frormthe- effeotlve date-of this decrsron-- e s i

"'1. ' L.cense number RPH 391 89, issued 10 Reepondent Albert Farah Daher,

2, Respondent Daher shall relinquish his wall iioense andpocke’r renevre{
license to the board within 10 days of the effective date of this decision. Respondent
may not reapply or petition the board for reinstatement of his revoked license for three

3. Respondents Daher, Yamasakr Nabhan and. Jay Soott Druge ehall pay
the board its costs of investigation and prosecution in the:total.amount of $57,585.50
within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this decision.

Order Re Respondent Ahmad Shati Nabhan

1. -License number RPH 41754 issued to Respondent Ahmad Sha’n

‘ Nabhan is revoked
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2.5 .Reapondent Nabhan shall. relinquish his-wall license and pocket renewal
license to the board within 10 days of the effective date of this decision. Respondent .

Nabhan may.not.reapply or petition-the board for reinstatement. of hrs revoked: license--
ror three years from the etfectrve date of thrs demsron

Respondents Daher Yamasakl Nabhan and Jay Scott Drugs shall pay
the- board lts costs of investigation and prosecution:in:the total amount of $57 585.50 .
within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this decision.

Order Re Respondent Yamasakr

1. Lioense number RPH t9983 rssued to Respondent Jun Yamasakr is -
revoked.” - ‘ . 2 : ;
Sl -R’espondentYamasaki shal -re.lind:uish-h.ts-~yvall ficense and pocket

renewal license to-the board within 10 days of the effective-date.of this decision, -
Respondent Yamasaki may not reapply or petition the board for reinstatement of hls :
-revoked hcense for three years from the etfectrve date of thrs deorsron

:‘3; Respondents Daher Yamasakr Nabhan and Jay Soott Drugs shall pay
the board lts costs of investigation and prosecution in the total amount.of $57,595, 50
within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this decision.

'Order Re Respondent Jay Scott Druqs .

: 1. Pharmacy Permit number PHY 40912, rssued to Respondent Jay Soott
Drugs, is revsked (where- “Respondent Jay Scott Drugs” is:mentioned in this Order,

any and all owners of Jay Scott Drugs, its successors and assrgnees dorng busrness
as Jay Scot’r Drugs is lntended to be rnctuded)

2. Respondent owner shall by the ettectrve date of thrs -decision, arrange .
. for the:destructionof; the transfer to;:sale of or-storagen:a facility licensed by the,
‘board of all-controlled-substances-and-dangeraus-drugs-and -devices. _Respondent__-__ .
owner shall provide written proof of such disposition, submit a completed

Discontinuance of Business-form and return the wall and renewal ficense to the board
within five days of drsposrtlon - ‘

.....

3. Respondent owner shall atso by the eﬁectrve date of this decrsron
arrange for the continuation of care for ongoing patients of the pharmacy by, at
minimum, providing a written notice to-ongoing patients that specifies the-anticipated .
closing date of the pharmacy ahd that identifies one or more area pharmaoles capable
of taking up the patients' care, and by.cooperating as-may.be-necessary in the transfer
of records or prescriptions for ongoing patients. Within five days of:its provision to the
pharmacy's ongoing patients, Respondent owner shall provide a copy of the written

- 46




notice to the board. For the purposes of this provision, "ohgoing patients" means thbse
patients for whom the pharmacy has on file a prescription with one or more refills
outstanding, or for whom the pharmacy has filled a prescription within the preceding
sixty (60) days. : o : ' e

This Decision shall become effective on January 27, 2014

IT 1S SO ORDERED this 27th day of December, 2013.

" STAN C. WEISSER
Board President

.....
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Jay Scott Drugs

PIC Albert Daher

2200 N. Glenoaks

Burbank, CA. 91504

Retail Pharmacy License Number PEY
40912,

Albert Farah Daber
456 Audraine Drive

‘Il Glendale, CA 91202 ) ’ :
‘Pharmacist License Number RPH 39189,

Ahmad Shati Nabhan
3234 Henrietta Ave
La Crescenta, CA 91214

It Pharmamst_Lxcense Number R}?H 41734

and

Jun Yamasaki

511 E. Mount Curve Ave.

Altadena, CA 91001

Pharmadcist License Number RPH 19983

Tn the Matter of the First Amended Accusatlon

Respondents.

Case No. 3482
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1 Complainant alleges: }
2 | PARTIES ‘ .
3 -1 Vlrvmla K. Herold (Complainant) brings this First Amended Accusatlon solely n
. 13, her of_ﬁmal capacity as the Bxecutive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy.
5 2. On or about June 27, 1995, the Board of Pharmacy issued Retail Phannacy
6 || License Number PHY 40912 1o Jay Scott-Drugs (Resp opdent), lpcated at 220 North Glenoaks,
7 || Burbark, California. Albcrt Farah ";Dah'ex_‘ has-been the sole owner of Jay Scott Drugs and .
‘ g Pharmacis‘&in—Ch.arge of Jay Scott Drugs.from 1998 o the present. The Retail Pharmacy License
| 9 || will expire 'on. June1, 2012, unless senewed. - | . .
10 | 3. . .On.orabout March 12, 19835, the Board of Pharmacy ,issx;ed Pharrhacist License
'1 1 {| Number RPH 39189 to- Albert Farsh Daher (RespondentDaber). The Pharmacist iicensc will
12 || expire on Ianua"y 31,2013, unless renewed }
13 4 On or about Apul 20, 1988, the Board of Pharmacy- issued Pharmaclst Llcanse ‘
. 14 || Number R’PH 41754 to Ahmad Shati Nabljan (Respondent Nabhan). . The Pharmacist License \a;as
- 15 || in:full force and effec.;,t at all timej,s relevant to the ;c-,harges brought herein and will f_éxpire onMay
16 | 31, 2013 unless rencwed R 'v
17 5. On or about July 28, 1956, the Board of Pharmacy 1ssued Pharmacist ucense
.18 -Nu_mberRiEH 19983 to Jun Yamat_salq-,(Rgspondentl&’famasakl). The Bhagna.oxst.Lm_ense was in
19 |} full fprce and effect at' all timés réleyant:go;_theth.a:ge‘s_'brgught herein and will E}glpiré_ on Mardh
20 || 31,2014, unless repewed. | ’ |
21 - JURISDICTION.
;2 '—.’é.”' B “'];llgi;;;cEe;c{;izéc;;auon 15 brought befo;; the Board of Pharmacy (Board),
23 || under the authority of the following laws. All section r@fercnces are to the Business and
24 | Professions Code unless 0’therw1se indicated. ..
25 T Section 4300 of the:- Code provides, in part, that EVErY. 11csnse 1ssued by the Board
26 is subject to discipline; including sugpensmn or revocation. '
all o w B
28 I

[\
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8. Section 4302 of the Code states:

“The board may«deﬁj@’éﬁé@éhﬂ, or revoke any license of a corporation where conditions
exist in’ rélétioﬁ fo aﬁy :ﬁ.eféon"holaing 10 percent:or more of the: dorpdra’te stock of the
cérporatiom or where conditions exist in relation to any officer or director of the corporation that
wonld constitute. grounds for discipliriary action against 2 licensee.” '

, 9. Section 4113 ofthe-Code states; in part:

"(b) The pharmasist-in-charge:shall be responsible for a-pharmacy's compliance with all
staté and federal 1aws-and regulations perfaining to the practice of pharmacy.”

10. Sectio:n‘ 118, subdivisioii (b), ofth& Code p‘rovidés that the suspension, expiration,
surrender, or cancellation of a license shall ot deprive the Board of jurisdiction to proceed with a

Z:éisbip]in":éry Action diring the périod_ﬁ'itﬁiﬂ“s'ﬁfﬁch the ticense may’bé tenewed, restored, ;:gissued

or reinstated. . LT e

\

A5 a1 Sedtiond301-ofthe Code statel: ¢ v

+¥ e bigatd shall takeé aetion agatast anyholder-of alicthse WH!is-guilty of

a %ihi:rdfeééiéﬁéi condudt? ++ Unprofessional:conduct shall incliide; but+is mot-limited te, any of the

following:

. (d) The clearly excessive furnishing of controlled subéteinces in violation of subdivision

" (a) of Sestion 11153 of the Health and Safety Code.

""(j) The viclation of any of the stautes of this state, or any other state, or of the United

* States regulating corifrolled substances-and dangerous druigs.

(o) Violating or attempting td 'vi'olats;=direct1y-o1"indirci:tly, or assisting in or-abetting the
Yiolation of or conspiringto viqfaté' any provision or'term of this chapter or of the applicable

federal and state laws and regulations governing phearmacy, including regulations established by

|l the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.”

YU

w
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-the dispensing or furnishing of controlled substances, dangerous drugs, .or dangerous devices, or

Sfunetion cs Lz L T

i +18:-57Section 4063.0f the Gode..stat«.as:;...i-_'-;. oo

{|“snthorization of the prescriber. The authorization may be-given orally o at the time of giving the {

- .A~12'. - .Section 4306.5 of the Code states:

“Unprofessional conduct for.a pharmacist may include any of the followmé: »

"(4) Acts or omissions that involve; in whole or in part, the inappropriate éxercise of his
or her education, fraining, or experience as.é'phamlaciét, thtﬁer or not the act or .(.Jmission arises
in the course of the'practice of pharmacy or the ownership, management, admmxstratlon or
operation of a pharmaoy or other enmty Jicensed by theé board.

. "(b) Acts-or omissions that ‘involve, in whole or in part, 'che failure to exercise or .

implement his or her best professional judgment or correspo_ndmg responsibility Wlth regard to

with regard torthe:provision of services. - | RAET e o
#.+ ey Acts.or omissions that imvolve, in whole or in partsthe failure to ;q’t__msiélt. appropriate ‘
petient, prescription, and other recofds pertaining to the performance bf;;any, phglfﬁggy‘ﬁmcﬁom
~(@) Acts or oﬁﬁ‘ssions ‘that involve, in whole or inpazt, the failureto fully: ‘maintain and -

rétain‘ai:prépriate patient-specific information pertaining to the performance of any Qpharmacy

b dd " S~

"No prescription for any dangerous drug or dangerous device may be g:eﬁ;ljled-except upon

oncmal prescnptlon No prescription.for any dangerous drug that is a controlled substance may

be: deswnated reﬁllable as needed,".~.::

14.  Health and, Safety Code: sectlon 11153 states

1| ‘purpose by an‘individual practitioner acting in the usual course of his or her professmnal practlce.

*%(a) A prescriptionfor-a controlled substance- shall only be issued for a 1eg1t1mate medlcal

The responsibility for the proper prescribing and dispensing of controlled substances is upon the

plescnbmv practitionet, but a correspondmg responsibility rests with the pharmacist Who fills the

prescnptxon Except as authorized by th‘lS d1v131on, the following are not legal prescriptions: (1)

an order purporting io be a prescription which is issued not in the usnal course of professional

treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an addict or habitual user of -

4
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"4l Business'and Professions Code." » . .-

controlled substances, which is issued not-in the course of professional treatment or as part of an

authorized narcotic treatment progrars, forithe purpose of providing the user with cémtrolled
. .

| substances, sufficient tokeep him orhet cornfortable by maintaining customary use.”

- REGULATORY PROVISIONS . .-

15, California Code of Regulations; tifle 16, section 1707 3 states: -

“Prior to constltation as set forth in section 1707.2, a-pharmacist shall'-reviéw A pétient‘ |
drug thetrapy and medication'zecard beforeeach. prescription drug is delivered. The Teview shall
include screefiing for severe potentxal drugtherapy problems.” _

: 16, California¢Code-»of Regulations, tifle .16, section 1716 s’catés, in'pa:r't:

"Pharmacists shall not deviate from therequirements of a prescr'ipﬁon.-exoeptsupon the

prior consent of the prescriber or to select the drug product in accordance with Section 4073 of

P 7. ‘Califomia Code of Regulations; title: 16; section 1761 states:

+ %(3) No-pharmacist-shall compound ior dispense any pr.es:czription;;vvhich-cor:fcg;iﬁs any
significant error, omission, irregularity, unce;;tainfy, a1hbiguity or alteration. .Upoti receipt of any
such prescription, the pharmacist shall contact the «prescribér to jobtain the iﬁfqnna.tiqn needed to
validate the presoription:. /. | .

“(b) Bven -after conferringwith the prescriber, 2 pharmacist shall not:compound or
; P P ~OIDOU

. dispense 2 controlled substance prescription where.the pharmacist knows or has objective reason

‘to kuow that said preseription was pot issued for a legitimate medical purpose.”

21

COST REOOVERY

18. Sec’aon 125 3 of the Cod° prov1des n part, that the B@ard may request ’the

admiinistrative law judge to: divect a licentiate found to have committed a vmlatl,o;l or violations of

~the Ticensingact to paya:sum not torexcéed thereasonable costs of the investigation and

- enforcerent of the-case. * -

i
i
ST

W
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19. DRUG CLAS SIFICATIONS

R S

6

1
2 WBrand GenericName " Dangerous Scheduled- Indications For
g |l Name(s) : Drug Per Drug per Use
Bus. & Prof, Health & -
4 . . Code § 4022 Safety Code
5 Adipex Phentermine HCL ° Yes ' Schedule IV .~ | Weight Loss .
l Ambien Zolpidem. | Yes Schedile TV | Tnsomnia
6 (non-barbiturate, non- ' : B
benzodiazepine sedative |.
7 hypnotic) . . : .
Bontril Slow Phendimefrizine Yes Schedule Il | Weight Loss
& || Release L . IR :
9" Desyrel Trazodone Yes Not scheduled Depression
B o . - -l and anxiety
10 .|l Halcion Triazolam. (non-. Yes Schedule IV . |- Short-term
barbiturate, - L o treatient of -
11 benzodiazepine.sedative | insomniza
19 hypnotic) ‘ . : : :
= |l Heroin | Opium derivative” Not prescribed | ScheduleT | no currently
.13 : ' acoepted
7 | medical use’
14 || Lorest Hydrocodone/ . .. . . |Yes Schedule Il | Moderate to
) ‘ '| Acetaminophen (APAP) Severe Pain
- 15 {Moreo? Hydfocodone/ =~ | Yes | Scheddls T | Moderate to
a6 W Acetaminophen (APAP) : ., Severe Pain
OxyContin Oxycodone . . Yes Schedule I . | Moderate to
17 e e ... ......| Severepain
- ||l Soma® - Carisoprodol | Yes * not scheduled | Muscle
18 - sma o o -t oo rélaxant
19 -||| Subutex, Buprgnprphine.' . Yes Schedgle'IEL | Natceotic
. " | Suboxone o Co s R Addiction
20 |l Valium Diazepam Yes Schedule TV . |.Anxiety
! (non-barbiturate, ' '
A N | benzodiazepine sedative | _
’~22 Irypootic) - , .
Vicodin, Hydrocodone/Acetamino, | Yes Schedule IIT Pain- -
- 23 il Vicodin ES phen ' :
-t Kenax ‘| Alprazolam Yes Schedule IV | Amdiety
24 (non-barbiturate, -
05 benzodiazepine. sedative
_" hypnotic)
Al " "Norco 10/325 mg contains 10 mg of hydrocodone and 325 mg of acetaminophen (brand
27 || neame, Tylenol). The maximum daily recommended dosage for acetamninophen is four (4) grams.
28 || 11 " *Drug abusers combine Soma with hydrocodone to produce similar effects to those of -
2 eroin. - : . :
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1 ' . BACKGROUND

| o 20. The Board mltrated investigations of Réspondents based pon e followmg
’ 3 a .. Three 3) complamts ‘against Respondents Jay Scott Drugs and Daher dileging that
| 4 the'y exeesswely d1sPensud controlled substances to pat1ents whmh resulted in the deaths of

Patlents A S and A G and the drurr addletlon of I g:

wr -

1 6 || Bass' patrents and Patient A. C. was Di. Masoud Bamdad‘s patrent

l AR o 7 b. Ventura County Sheriff Department’s oriminal mvestwatmn of Dr. Bass for his

| | 8 | mvolvement in the overdose deaths of seven of hrs patlents five of Whmh had Dr. Bass'

| 1 presouptrons ﬁlled at Respondent J ay Scott Drugs fac1hty, narnely, AS,DL,AW,LG., and

| RN "dl')'K Dr. Bass’ ot'ﬁce was locateid at 10843 Mavnoha Boulevard North Hollywood California,

\...’

114 W]:u:loh was appro},unately five rmles ftom Jay Scott. Druws famhty

e

12 e Callfom\a MedloalBoald’s mVestlgatio ":mt.”,Dr Bass’ medlcal'praotrce and

ubsequent dxscrphne whmh involyed allegations of gross negligence, excessive prescnomcr of

- one e s ot o g 98 e ¢ meiden ¢

Bl contrelled substances, and other v1olat1ons, wﬁ:h regard -t seven 7) patients* -and subsequent

d1sc1p11ne acamst Br. ‘Bass® medlcal 11oense ""Th Califofm Medrcal Board‘s Decision and Order
- 16 . l.n Inre Matter of the Accusation aaamst Ber na;d N.Bass .MD., Case No 05-2005 167939
S i 3 dated]anuary 21, 2009 provrded that Dr. Basg’ physwran hcense No G 28057 Was revoked, w1th

18- revocatlon stayed 90 days suspensmn, placed on seven (7) jears probatlon and reqmred to

19 |} . surrender his United States Drug Enforcement Admimistration (DEA) permit to prescrlbe :

! 20 || controlied substances.’

‘ ) | P S P S -
! ; 22 \r i
23 ? *
24 sy g
os || * For purpos es of patient conﬁdentlahty, all patrents are referred to by then mmals
5 ¢ A
* Thé sevén patients involved in'the Califomia Medmal Board’s investl Uatrcm regarding
26 | Dr Bass are not the same seven paﬁents involved i Ventura County Sheriff’s mvestrca’uon
g i 27 “ Toor ¢ about May 2 008 Dr. Bass’ surrenderedhrs DEA penmt to Ventura County Sheriff's
i " detectives.
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11

12
13
14
15.
e 16

L7
8

19

200
71

21, - Baseld' on the foregoing and the CURE.SS data, the Board investigator selected
twenty six (26) pafients (including deceased patients) of Dr. Bass, who recéived prescriptions
from Jay Scott Drugs, and reviewed their patiént profiles and original prescriptions.

22.  Patient A.C.'s doctor, Dr. Masou;i Bamdad, was iny.estiga’;ed and federally
ind:xcated by fhe DEA for illegal drug distribution.” On or about J uly 29, 2010, in the criminal '

procesding entitled USA v Masoud Bamdad, United States District Court, Central District of

 California (Western. Division - Los.Angeles), Case No. 2:08-cr-00506-GW-1,,Dr. Bamdad was

convicted of ten felony counts of Violatiﬁg [21 U.S.C. § 841(a)1), (®)(1)(C), and 18 U.S.C. §'

2(b)] (knowing énﬁ intentional unléwful distribution of controlled nsu_}';:s.t.gnces) and three felony

. counts.of vioIaftinng. U.8.C. § 841(a)(1), ®BY1)YC), 1n conjunction 21 U;S.C. § 859.and 18

U.8.C. § 2(b) (umtawful distribution of controlled substances fo -.pers,,oﬁs tnder age 21),-as charged | .

in the First Superseding Indictment. Dr. Bamdad was sentenced-to prison for 25 y‘;éan;s, fined in - -

excess of $1,000,000, and forfeited his real propesty. Upon release, Dr. Bamdad will be placed on
suﬁervised release for term of six years. The First Sﬁperse@ing}lggig@en{?rovide_s that Dr.
Bamdad,a physic{an licensed to practice medicine in fhe State of California, while acting and

‘intending to.act outside the usual course of professional practice and without a legitimate medical

- purpose, kmowingly and intentionally distributed and dispensed, and carsed the i:ﬂlltentional

distribution and dispénsing of, Oxycodone, a Scheditle I narcotic drug-controlled stibstancé, 10

numerous patients, - :

23, Inor about2011, the Board conducted a supplemental investigation into

22.

23
24
25
26

28

Respondents' pharmacy practice. The supplemental nvestigation revealed that Respondent Jay

Scott Drugs and Respondent Daher committed additional violations of the Pharmacy Law. '

$The Controlled Substance Utilization Review and Evaluation System or C.URE.S.isa
database maintained by the California Department of Justice, Bureau of Narcotic Enforcement,
which allows pre-registered users, including licensed healthcare prescribers eligible to prescribe
controlled substances; pharmacists authorized to dispense controlled substances, law
enforcement, and regulatory boards, to access patient controlled substance history information.

7 According to a press release by United States Attorney’s Office, dated May 6, 2009, Dr.

Bamdad has been in custody since his arrest in April 2008, by DEA special agents. The
Indictment was filed on April 29, 2008.
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FIRSTCAUSE RFOR DISCIPLINE

(Refill of prescriptions without prescriber's authorx,zatlon)
24, Responden’c Fay Scott Drugs and Respondent Daher sre subject to disclplmc
pursiuérft to Code sedtions 4300, 4301, subdivision (o), 4302, and 4113, on the grounds of-

sinprofessional conduct, in that Respcndents -1'eﬁli<§d prescriptions for controlléd substances and
dangerciis drugs, without duthorization; in viclation of Code section-4063. Speciﬁcally
.Re.sporidént]jaher refilled prescriptions thatdidnot contain authorized refills on iche original
pféséfiﬁtioﬂ as follows: L .
s ?Paﬁeﬁtﬁ.s,"-' t e | B -

a OnJarmary 15, 2007, Respondent Daher refilled Rxno. 180576 (Norco 10/325
‘mg, 125 tabléts) for J.S: Wlthout the prescnbmv doctor's authorization.

bt . Oni4 anuary 22, 2007, Respondent Daherrefilled Rx no. 182808 (Norco 10/325

g, 125 tablets) for 7.8, without: the presonbmv doctor’s authofization.

- Patient AL,

- On Tanuary 22,2007, Respondent; Daher dispensed Rx Nox 1 83159 (Norco
10/3’) 5mg; 125 tablets), RxNo: 183160 (Kanax. 7mg, 60 tablets), Rx 1 R3162: (Soma 15 tablets)

for A:S. without the presonbmcr doctoris. authorlza’mon .The presciibing doctor dated thuse

I8 prescnptmns January.30, 2007

P

- SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE .

. (Failu.re to Reviéw Drug Therapy and Patient Medication Record)

25 . Respondent Jay, Scott Drucs and Respondant Dahel are subJ ect to d15c1p11ne

pursuant to Codc sections 4300 4301, subdivision (0),4302, and 4113 on the grounds of

unprofessmnal conduct, in that Responden’cs failed to review the paﬁent’s drug therapy and

: med1cat10n record pnor to: d1spcnsmcr prescnptlons mmola’uon of. Code section 4306.5,

subdwmon (c) and Cahforma Code of Revulatlons, tlﬂe 16 sectlons 17 07.3 and 1761. The

ercumstances are as foHOWS
T / / /
1/
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Patient J.S.

1 ) .
2 2. . Respondent Daher filled prescriptions for highly addictive controlled substanees .
3 || early for I1.S., without rewewmg his patnent profile, resulting in'over dlspensmg oontrolled
4 1| -substances and/or dangerous drugs toJ. S as follows .
5 & On January 24, 2007, Respondent Daher d1spensed Rx No. 183632 (Noreo
6 || 10/325mg) and Rx No, 183633 (Xanax 2mg, 60 tablets)for I.S. six (6) days earlier than the
7 || written directions indicated. The prescribing doctor.dated the prescnptlons Ianuary 30, 2007.
| 8 b From January 15, 2007, to January 24, 2007, over a 10-day. pemod, Respondent
9-{| Daher dxspensed 500 tablets of Norco, and from Jemuary 19, 2007, through January 24, 2007,
10 || over a 6-day period, Respondent Daher dispensed 120 tablets of Xanax, t0.J 5., as set forth in the
11. || tablebelow: '
Rx# |Drug Date RPH | Direction . ' Qty
13 ' |mea | | S L
"14 180576 | Norco 10/325.§ 1/15/07 | AD | Take 1-2 tablets every 4 125 | Unauthorized
| . . hougs - * - ... | refill
15 ||l 182808 } Norco 10/325° 1/19/07 1 AD | Take 1~2 tablets every 4 125 |
o o e o hours L)
16 || 182809 - _'X'anax 2mg | 1/19/07 | AD | Take ] tablet every 6 hours 160
EC) 1828107 ‘Soma 350 mg | 1/19/07. | AD- |Take1 tablet every might- |10 | Bt
B ‘182808:_‘)‘: ,Norco 10/325 11/22/07 | AD Take 12 tablets every 4 -"1125 | Unauthorized
- 183632 tNomo 10/325 1/24/07 | AD Take 1-2 tablets every 4 125 .| Bardy fill -
19 Wi : -hours . A ' :
20 1 8363.3"': "Xjanax ng | 1/24/07 | AD | Take 1 tablet every 6 hours? - {-60 : Early fill
21 The ‘written d1rect10ns for these medmattons are Norco 10/ 325mg, take 1—2 tablets every 4 hours
2 ,(equals a.r:naxm:mm of 12 tablets per day); Xanax 2mg, take 1 every 6 hours (equals.a maximum
' -.23 (0f 4 tablets per day); and Sompa, take 1 tablet every night (1 tablet per day). Based on Respondent
o4 || Daher's over dtspens:hg, the patient was taking 20 tablets of Xanax per day and 50 tablets of
25 |l Norco 10/325m0 per day, which constitutes 16.25 grams of Tylenol PEJ. day. As a result, the
26| patlent was exposed to Tylenol toxicity.
21 n
28

I

10
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Patient A.S.

27.  Respondent Daher filled prescriptions for highly addictive controlled substances

for A.S., without reviewirig his patient profile, resulting over dispensing contrglled substances

and/or dangerous drugs to I S., as follows:

2. Onl anuary 72 2007, Responderit Daher d1Sp°nsed Rt No. 183159 Morco
10/325mg, 125ablets), R¥No. 183.1»60 -@angx 2mg, 60 tablets), Rx 183162 (S_ox'nav 15 tabléts) '
fér A.S. dight (8) days earlier than the written directions indicated. The prescribing doctor dated
the prescrlpnons Jammary 30, 2007.

b, Tnaddition, three days earher .on January 19, 2007, Respondent Daher had

' d1spensed the identical prescriptions to- A S. (Norco 10/325'mg 125 tablets, Xanex 2mg 60

’cable’cs Soma 15 tablets). As aresult, over a period of four days from January 19, 2007, through

v I anuary 22, '7007 Respondent Daher dmpensed 250 tablets of Norco 1'70 tablets of Kanax, and

:(‘J tablets of Soma to A S » 88 set forth m the table below
TRy # Date' Drug- .Kkl RPH,DlTeCﬁOII. e Qty
182811 | 1/19/97- 7 Norco 10/325* " =.1-AD. - -Talce 1~2 tablets: every4 . 1125
' S -. ' A . 'hOUIS Lt S .
| 182812 | 1/19/07- | -Kapax2mgo- =

| Take-1: tab’le{ every 6 hours. |60

182815 | 1/15/07 | Soma 350 me. Tl 1 tablet every might | 15

‘ééféé%fé"

183159 | 1/22/07 .| Norco 10/325 - {Tale-1-2 tablets every4 - 1125
- ' ~ " | hours ™ |

183160 .| 1/22/07 | Xanax 2mg. - | Take 1 tablet every 6 hours 60

183162 |1/22/07 | Soma 350 mg -Teke 1 tablet every night 115

_Based on Respondént Daher's over disperising, the patient was taking 62tablets of Noroo .~ _ |

'19/3251i1g, 30 fﬁaBlets of Xanax ng and 7 tablets of Soma per day. 62 tablets of Norco .

10/325mg constitute 20 mg of Tylanol, five (5) times the recommended daily dose. As a result,

the Pa’nent \}V;a‘?‘:.;e;’;pdsea.%ci;;Tylen'd‘l.‘.ciﬁxidi%ﬁf. ' O R

PatientNV, © .
28.  Onfhree (3) occasions Respondent Tay Scott Drugs dispensed prescriptions for

highly addictive controlled substances early f&: NV, without reviewing N.V.'s patient profile.
i '

11

First Amended Accusation




1 || By filling the prescrintions early, Respondents over dispensed control}ed substances and/ot
2 ||. dangerous drucrs toN.V., as follows - o )
3 4. OnMay 29, 2007, RespondentNabhan dls_pensed a refill of Norco 10/325mv three
4 | (3 daysearly. ' ' ' ‘
.5 - b On June'26, 2007, Respondent Yamasalq dispensed a reﬁll of Noroo 10/323mcr
6 ﬁve (5) days early ' - S ' :
7 c. :-. OnApril 4 2008 Respondent Daher dlspensed arefill of Norco 10/3’75mc three
8 (3) days early o
9 Patient S.R. : _
210 |i- . 29.. . Onfive (5) occasions Respondent Jay Scott Drugs and Respondent Albert Daher
' 1.1- ‘ dispensed plesompttons for highly. addmtlve controlled substanees early for.S R Wlﬂ:lDut
" 19 |- Teviewing SR.'s patlent proﬁle or-CURES, By filling the preseriptions. eaﬂyP Re3ponden’cs over
1 3A dispensed contrelled substances and/or-dangerous drugs to S.R;, as follo,we: : o
14 LB On-October 10, 2007, Respondent Daher :.di_s;;ensed a refill of,A,l’AP/Hydroeodone
© 15 || Bitartrate.650/10.mg five (5) days early. L S | L
16 * b.is . On-October 24, 2007 Respondent Daher chspensed a prescr1pt1on of
17 APAP/Hydrocodone Bitartrate 65 0/ 10 mg (6) days eaﬂy L
18 © e, . On'November 7, 2007, Respondent Daher chapensed a refill of
19 APAP/Hydrocodone Bitartrate 650/10 mv (6)- days early. . N
20 e = On November 21,2007, Respondent Daher d15pensed a prescr1pt10n of
"ol ‘APAP_/I_{XdIocodone B_ttartrate 650/10 mg (7) days-early: .. I
22 - OnDecember 19, 2007, Respondent Daher d1spensed a presorxphon of
231 A.PAP/Hydrocodone ‘Bitartrate 650/10 mg twelve (12) days early
: ‘2.4 30.. Based on the early fills from October 10, 2007 to January 1, 2008, 750 tablets of
- 25 Lorcet 10/65 Omg were fumlshed to S.R. for 83 days. This meant S R. was teking nine.(9) tablets |-
' zé |} of Loroet 10/65 Omc (10 mg hydrocodone and 650 mg acetammophen) daﬁy and the total amount
27 | of acetalmnophen (Tylenol) consumed by S.R. was 5.9 grams perday, wmoh was well above the
28

maximum recommended dosage of Tylencl, 4 grams.

12
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Refulations; tifls 16, section 1761, subdivision (b); Whick put their patients at risk. Respondents

" any plescuptlons that were not controlled substances except Soma, he prescr ibed the same drugs

- Patient'G.C. TIf.
30.  Respondent Jay Scott Drugs and Respondent Albert Daliet dispensed prescriptions
for highly addictive controlled substancesearty for'G.C. IIL, without reviewing his patient profile

or CURES.. By filling the prescriptions early, Respondents over dispensed controlled substances

“ahd/or dangerous drugs to G:CII on Déceniber 19,2007, by dispensing a reﬁli of Alprazolam

2mg nine C9) days early..

TBIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Exercise Professional J udvment)
31. Reépondents are subject to discipline pursuant to Code:sections 4300 and 4301,
subdmsmn (d), () and (0), on the grounds of" unptofessional conduct, in that they failed to.
exercise professmnal Judgment and failed 6 sharc 2 Okt espondmv tesponmblhty with regard to

the dlspensmg or furmshmg of controlled’ substancesl and/or: dangelous drugs; in violation of Code

section 43065, subdivision (b), Héalth and Safety:Code séotion 11153, and-California Code of

dispensed prescriptions that they knew of ‘had-an-objéctive Teasor to Khow that stid prescriptions

Were riot issued for a legitimate medical purpose, The. circumstances are as follows:

Dr. Bass’ prescribing patiern

32:. Respondents failed to adequaiely.evaluate and/or address Dr. Bass' suspect
prescribing pattern or his pafients' profiles prior to dispensing controlled substances to Dr, Bass’

patients, which presented clear indications that numerous prescriptions writtén by Dr. Bass were ..

ot issued for a legitimate mechca[ purpose Respondents failed to ev aluate the tmah’ty of the

circumstances presented by Dr. Bass’ prescribing pat‘-tem, ncluding, but 1ot limited to, the fact

that Dr. Bass Wl'o‘te anwhusually large mumber of coﬁ’tro’lle'd'subs‘cance prescriptions, wrote few if

with the same dosages, directions and-quantities Wx,thout adjustments for numerous pa’nents

including patlents in the same family, e prescribed 11100106,1 drug combinations, his pxaonce .

included an unusually large number of young patienits for pam management, who traveled 30 or

" Rirst Amended Accusation |
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40 miles to see Dr. Bass or have their presori_ptions filled at Respondent Jay Scott Drugs, and paid

for their prescriptions in cash.
Unusually larce number of controlled substance prescriptions

33,  Dr. Bass wrote an unusually large riumber of controlled substance prescriptions

From October 2006 through Apnl 2008 Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed 33,742 controlled

substance presonptlons ertten by Dr Bass, not moludmcr the apprommately 9 481 prescnpnons

for Soma Durmg 1‘hat penod the pharmacy operated apprommately 493 days Therefore
'Respondent Jay Scott Druo's d1sp ensed approx1mately 1775 controlled substance nrescmp’nons

wrrtten by Dr. Bass per month or & aver aoe of approx1mately (13 eontrolled substance

i i

dispensed per day written by Dr: Bass should have alerted Respondents to earefully monitor

panents and carefully do cument that momtormg, Wh1ch tbey'fatled to do.

13 Few 1f anv nrescrm’mons other tban controlled substances and Soma ‘
: 1'4. - 34 Respondents failed to oons1der that Dr. Bass pattents had very few 1f any
15 'presenptlons othe1 ’chan those pam med.tcatlons ghd Soima ordered by Dr. Bisé, ﬁlled at Jay Scott
16 :Druos Normally patlents have a number of chfferent types of presonp’uons d1sp ensed not Just
. 17 Tlcont:‘;o.l\lb-dmsubstam,e otesonptlons Most pat1ents rewewed éithér had 1o other ptescnpnons for
18 || other types of medlcatlons or Aabnormall ¥y few ofher types of PlGS orlptlons dtspenscd by -
1§ Resbondent Jay Scott Drugs. L v ‘
20 Same drug retrlmen ' i u
21 35.  The typical drucr re°1men that Dr Bass used and was dispensed by Respondent Jay
92 || Scott Drug was for the same druvs Nomo 10/325mg, Kanax. 21n!7 (or Valinm 10m g); and Soma,
2.3 with the same dosages, quantltles, and’ dn'ectlons> as follows:
24 i
25 "
26
3 27 .
. ’3 ® Dr. Bass' prescription history with Tay Soott Drugs was 608 pages long for the time -

period Ianuary 1, 2006, through May 8, 2009, with very few prescriptions dlspensed during 2006.
14
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Diug name Quantity*{(tablet) ~ - - | Direction - - .
Norco 10/325mg 125 Take 1-2 tablets every |
a 4 HiGhrs
Xapax 2mg 60 .. Take 1 tablet gvery 3
- L hotrs
Soma . 60 07 7 o | Tdkel tablet four
’c1mes aday

The prescnptxons were rarely vaned for a patient from the ﬁrst visit to ‘chc last or from patient to

. patlent There Were no mchcahons of any dosaoe adjusﬁnents accordmcr to ’che sevemy of the

pam Dr Bass rarely prescnbed other paln manacement dmos other than Norco 10/3') Smg.

‘ Respondcnts faﬂed to adaquately evaluate Why a pam manavement sPeclahst Dr Bass, Would

N prescnba the same drucr recfn:nen fo1 80 many of the1r pa’uents Wzthout dxfferentxatxon for age,

Wewht deoree of pain, and medwal hlstory

Blomcal druv oombmatlons '

1. 70,

3 6‘; s Responde.n’cs falled to questmn 111001ca1 dmcr combmatlons There are tTwo

subtypes of nonbarb1turate sedatwe hypnotlcs benzodmzepme and non—benzod1azepme Valium,

LTS P S &4

-1t Xanax, and Halcmn are examples—of benzodmchmes and Amblen 15 an example ofa 1noD-

AL benzod1az=pme hypno’uc Seven (7) of Dr Ba@s patlents that ﬁlled thexr prescnpuons at Jay

......

&, D L Amblen andVallUIn
b DX - Xanax, Ambien, and Vahum
e K.P. - Xanax and Valium
d  B.G -Xanax and Valium . :
TR ~X_anax~1§mlhyiei,’£ﬁ—'\7—z»llﬁrﬁ e e e e e
£ JV. - Ambien and Halc;ion

i

L G. - lanax and Valium.’

There is no documcntatlon of any inquiry of Dr. Bass by Respondcnts about the duplicate therapy
for these patients.
i

U
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Unusual Ave of Patients for Pain Management

37.

AV L. .
" Respondents did not consider the fact that most ofDr ‘Bass' pat1ents for Whom he

prescribed pain killers on a regular basis wers in their 20's or early 30's, The five deceased

individuals investigated by. Ventura County Sheriffs Department who had prescriletions filled at

|| Respondent Jay Scott Drugs ranged in age from 19 te 31. Respor_ldegts dispensed these same

controlled substances and Soma to 16 younger adults less than 25 'years old, .ptima{tily during a

19-month period from October 2006 through April 2008, in addition to other patie_nts of Dr. Bass.

.Late teens and early 20°s:is an unusual age for pain management. Most of the toems or young
“gdults were apparently healtl-ly individuals that would be expected to have occasional antibiotics
forinfections or for the females, perhaps birth control pllls These Ppatients were, rarely treated for

~common medmal problems or typical medwal care for thxs age group., They were 1evular1y on

very high dosages of pain oo:ntrol medications, benzodiazepine oontrol;led‘.substance anti-anxiety

~agents, and muscle relaxants.- ¢

.- Distances travelecl .

. 38, Respondents failed to cons1cler that many of Dr. Bags! pat1ents traveled

approximately 30 or 40 miles or more tq see Dr. Bass or have their prescnpttons ﬁlled at

Respondent J ay Scott Drugs; espemally since. Dr. Bass' patlents Were allegedlympam and had to

'retum fosee Dr. Bass every 1210 15 days to obtam anew prescrlptlon

Method of Payment:-Cash

1

39. Respondents failed to consider that numerous patients of Dr. Bass pald for thelr

3 prescnptlons only in cash: For example Respondent J ay Scott Drugs' Daily Log:: for Controlled

Substance for Schedule 111 to V, dated September 7, 2007, mdlcated that 93 -out of 132
prescriptions filled on that date were for Dr. Bass patlents: 71 out of 93 presorxptlons were paid
by cash. Tlterefore 76% of prescriptions Written by Dr. Bass and .diSpensed by R’esp ondents were
pa1cl by cash on that date. Similarly, the Daily Log on September 19,2007, for Controlled _
Substance for Schedule Tl to V indicated that 75 prescriptions out of 105 prescnpmons were for

Dr. Bass' patients. 56 out-of 75 prescriptions were pa.td by cash. Therefore, 74% of.presonp‘uons

written by Dr. Bass were paid by cash. Also, four out of five patients of both Dr. Bass and

16.
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Respondent Jay Scott Drugs who died:(A.S5 DL, A, LG and D K.)paid only in cash for
their pres’cription& Onty patient D.L. appeared to have some other method of payméﬁt‘

Familv members

" 400 Respondents did riot question the’fact that Dr. Bass Wiote the same pain killer
préséﬁl')"ﬁidﬁs “for 'famﬂjf memibers ofhis patients, with 1o differentiationi fot-age, weight or degree |
of pain. - - T

' "-‘Paﬁeﬁts'B.GL and C.G.

- la’ * "Perthe patient's piofile, B:G. and C.@, who are siblings, started to visit Dr. Bass
"and Respondent Tay Scott Drugs‘in October 2006, when B,G. was 25 -years old'and his sister,

C.G:; was 23 years old. They always paid for their presciiptions in cash: They-lived at the same

1l residence and‘the distance fiom their esidence to Dr. Bass" office of Jay Scott Drugs was

' approxﬁné{é}y-40 miles.

b. Respondents digpensed Dr. Bags' prescriptions for-the'same drugs (No‘rco

10/325mg and Xanax 2mg) to B.G. and C.G., who are brothier‘and sisterOn eight (8) ocoasions

"Résﬁﬁhd’éﬁts‘fdis'paps'é& the same Arugsonthe same day 4o B.G. 2hd C.G. for a total of 32 such

- prescriptions; :Of these 32.pr-escripﬁo'ns, Respondent Deher and Kespondent Y amasaki each

“digpensed 16 suichPrescriptioris to the siblimgs: ‘Between:Ostober 30,:2006, and March 3 1,2008, |

Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed 103 preseriptions written by Dt. Bass for.B..G;;. all for .

Noreo, Xanax, Soma or Valium, Between October 30, 2006, and Aptil 9, 2008, Respondents

dispensed 72 prescriptions, written by Dr. Bass forC.G., all for Norco or Xanax.

‘.. . Respondent Jay Soott Drugs did not have any record indicating communication

~with Dr:'Bass about the medical conditions and/or drug therapy of the siblings. ‘
4. B.G. and'C.G. later adiiittédto Ventura ;Count-y:det‘e'ctives that they had these
: prescriptions dispens ed to"support BG‘S 'éddic‘.ﬁémto the drugs. ‘B:G. also admitted that he paid
: TP,DL Base’ séoretary‘, $80 in cash:for prescriptions without seeing Dr. Bass..
i

i
H
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Pgﬁent T.P. and Fanzily

e. T.P.was the only erhployee of Respondent that worked in his office: Responderts

dispensed Dr. Bass® controlled substance prescriptions to T.P., her husband, K.P., and their 20~

-year-bh;l daughter, S.P. Per T.P.'s patient’proﬁle, betw:een November 1, 2006, aﬁd April 7, 2008;

84 prescriptions, written by Dr. Bass, were dispensed for T.P. 77 out of 84 prgscripﬁgns were for |
drugs most comﬁonl& ;)Idefed by Dr. Bass, Norco 10/325mg and Soma.. Out .of these 77
prescnpuons, R65pondent Daher d;tspensed 66 presonphons and Yamasalki dlspenscd 11
prescriptions. Per K.P.'s patient profile, between November 3, 2006, and Aprﬂ 1, 2008 134

prescriptions were dispensed for K.P., all Wntten by Dr. Bass. 104 out of 134 prescnptmns were

for drugs most commonly ordered by Dr. Bass, Norco, Xanax, Valium and Soma, and also

1l O;QIContm Out of thesc 104 prescriptions, Respondent Daher dispensed 75 presonp‘clons

Responden’c Yamasaki. d1spcnsed 23 prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan, d;tspensed 6-
prescnpnons Per S.P.'s patient proﬁle, between Scpte.mber 13, 2007 -and April 7, 2008 23
prescnptlons ertten by Dr. Bass were dlspensed for S P. for druvs most. commonly ordered by

Dr. Bass,. Notco.and. Soma. Of these 23 prescriptions, RESpondent Dazher dstcnsed 21~

‘prescnpnons and Respondent Nabhan dlspensed two prescnp’mons Erom Novembar 2006 to

April 2008 (17 Inonths) Respondents dlSpensed a total of 9 000 Noroe, L, 960 OhyConhn 1, 230
Xanax, 480 Valium and 2 765 Soma to this famﬂy ‘

f, Based on family relationship, prescnbmg the same narcotics, 'gxcgassivej furnishing and |
assooiaﬁon with Dr. Bass,. Regpondents did ‘not take propér steps to review.the family’s drug

Aistory and- faﬂed to verify if prascnptlons were for a leﬂtunate mechcal purpose or ultimately

stop dispensing these prescriptions,

Pa’ment G. C .Tr and family

s

g D1 Bass prescribed controlled substances and dangerous drucrs 0 G.C. I, G C
Jr's som, G.C. _I]I, and his daughter, N.C. @OB: 05/21/73), Who-,acoordmg 1o their pahent
proﬁlés, all shared the same phone number. G.C. Jr.and N.C. shared ;che,same residence. "].‘hcy ‘
all Tived in the,-éi’cy of Ventura. N.C. paid for a majority of her prescriptions in cash. G.C. TII

always-paid forhis prescriptions in cash.

- 18
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|| and R} Xének 2#g, Soma, and hyrdrocodorie pnoduété'@\Iogco 10/325mg or Loreet:10/650mg). |

“existing-patients'to determine if they appeared 1o be substance abusers, .dootor shoppers, utilizing

h.  G.C. Jr. and N.C. were on same médi¢ations prescribed by.Dr. Bass: Bontril Slow

.Release 105mg; A&ipe,x 37 5mg, Valiurm 10mg, and hydrocodone products (Noxco 10/325mg,

Lorcet 10/650mg; and Viéodih ES). Per their patient profiles, original prescriptions, and CURES

data, G.C. Jr. and' N.C. régularly came toéet-her and p.icked up their medications at the same time

 from Jay Scott Drugs or one of theii picked up-the ofher's préseriptions from 2006 to 2008,
~Although G.C. Tr was 28 yéars oldqrithanN.'G ., Dr. Bass treated both-patierits with highly habit
- forming cdh’chl]:ed substarices; the same medications (stimulants and relaxants), and the same

- doses regardless of gendet, medical-condition; and weight. -

i/ 7" - Dr. Bass always wrote préseriptions for the same medicé’cirjné for G.C. IIL:
hydrooodone products, Kandx; and Soma: G.C. [-always ijaid cash for his .prpscriptions.
J - "Respondent J ay'deﬁDfugs ‘did not have any -record"ind'icaﬁ.ng communication
withDr. Bas§ about the medical .cc}nditiOhs' and/or the drug therapy fot these patients.

Pationts S.8, asd FR.

et Dy Basd prederibed controlled substances anid.dengerousidriigs to S.R: and FR.

“8iR; andFR. Have the samelast naris. Per theitiprofiles; S.R.’s address was in Ventura and
FRS addfess wasin Santa Barbara, which is-aboit 90 miflesdway-fromrJay Scott Drugs. They

always paid fot alltheir presoriptions irtash. Frora December 20, 2006 to April 7, 2008, SR.

and B R. came together to Jay Soott Driigs fo pick up'ihéif prescriptions or picked up each other’s |
prescriptions. Despite the fact thit F R is 23-years older than SR., Dr. Bass always 'prescribed

the same highly addictive medications with tHe same-doses and the same directions to both S.R.

Respondents did not discuss the medication conditiens and/or the unusual drug therapy for ’chése_ .

two patients with Dr. Bass.

©rr Failed touse CURES.

" 4%+ -Respondents failed to use the C:UR.E:S. programas.a tool to evaluate new or

more than one pharacy, or if the patient was breaking their pain management contract with Dr. -

Bass, which .rcquired.tha’c all confrolled sﬁbstanceé be obtained at.the.same pharmacy.

3
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1 Patient J.C. L
2 .a. . Patient].C. started having his preéoriptiono filled by Jay Scott j)mgs on October
g It 30, 2.006, at the age of 23 years old. J.C. alwayé paid cash for his. prescriptions. The distance
4 || from the patient's residence to Dr. Bass’ oﬁmc or to Jay Scott Drugs was @PPIOXiIFlaIE:ly 17 miles.
5 || The CURES date for patient I.C. from January 1, 2006 to October 8, 2007, showsh-.that when J.C.
- 6 || had his first presoriptioﬁ_s filled at Jay Scott Drugs on 10/30/06 and then on 11/1 .O/ 06, J.C. had
7. || been.seeing three d]fre,ront doctors, Drs. Bass, Jehn Kukirka and Conchita Gomcrs for the same
8 presonptlons ‘which were being ﬁlled at three different pharmacies other than Respondent ] ay
9 || Scott Drugs in the previous seven (7) months In one mstanoe, J.C. had presonptlons for Norco
10 Whlch were written by two different doctors, filled on af.two different phammacms on the same |
11 day, March 27, 2006. Had Responden‘cs filled the first prescription and then requested
1:2 ' mformailon from the CURES system, Respondents would have seen the patlent Was seemc
v 15; : multxple dootors and using multlple pharmacies and Would have known Tot to ﬂ11 prcscnpuons
. 14 || forthis patient, as these faotors mdma’ce that the- prescnp‘nons were not fora legmmate medical
15 purpose., - ’
16 - - Failed to adequatelv evaluate patients
17 A, Desplto"ﬂle foregoing red ﬂags of excessive pxescnbm Respondénts did not have
-1g || ‘records to show Dr. Bass® pa,nems mavnosm laboratory testing; o or commumcahon with Dr. ‘Bass’
19 || regarding applopnateness of therapy or legitimate med1ca1 need or evaluation of ‘the pahents
20 || Respondents” decision to ighore these clear indications of excesswe prescribing of controlled
21 || substances by Dr. Bass and drng seeking behavmr of many of h1s patients and Respondents
70 || decision 16 not aggressively work to determine the patlents diagnosis and evaluate paments for
93 || potential drug intoxication, adverse effects, signs of addiction or adequate pain control, placed .
24 || numerous patients at risk, ino'luding, but nof limited to; Patients A.S., D.L.; AW ,L.G, DK,
25 || 1.8:, and A.C., as follows:
3
27 | S
28 "
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Patient A.S. -
43, Per AS ! patient profile; A.S. staited.to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott
‘Drugs'in January 2007, at the age of 21. A.S. dlwayspaid cash for his ‘prescriptions.” The
‘distance from the i)?,tient’s residence t6 Dr. Bass’ ofﬁc"e orto Jay Scot't.Dr‘ugs was approximately
<40 miles o

A4y 'Betweén Jamiary-5,"2007, and March: 18, 20'0. 8 (approximately 14 months),
“"Respondent Jay Sco& Drugs dispensed 89 prescriptions for A.S, all written by Dr. Bass. 88 out of
+§9 prescriptions were for Ndrcd; Xdnax, or'Soma. ‘During thisﬁmé périod, ALS.received a totai
~of 3,'8’7’5’:‘teiblie‘/cs~ of Norco 10/325mg; 1860 tablets:of Xanax 2mg, 375 tablets.of Soma, and oné
antibiotic. OFf these 88 prescriptions, Respondent Daher-dispensed 75 prescriptions, Respoﬁdent
Yamasild. dispensed nine prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan disp Enéed-' one ﬁresoripﬁon for .
this pament |

45; .7 Dr, Bass-did not. ohancre A8 drug: regunen - Dr: Bass regularly prescnbed Norco

117107325 mg anid Kanax ?.m<7 in the'same ‘quantifies wfch“the same.directions every 12-15 days, and ‘
Respondent Jay Scott Drugs was usually filling these prescriptions every 12 to- 15 days.

46. ¥ Respondcn’ts obtaineda C‘XJ,P},.E:-‘S“_: weport for A.S. after December 1; 2007, they
: :.Woil-ldhz;,vﬁ! seen that on October 26; 2007, a_nd’Nev.ember 5, 2007, the patient .Was trcatt.ad with
1 iéiibuts”x;fazdmg used to treat.opiate addictioh. Respondent Jay Scott Dfugs would have kmown ol .
inquire of Dr. Bass before dispensing further prescriptioné to an addict. Obtaiﬁ'mg a CURE.S.

|| report would also have informed Respondents that A.S. was filling his _con‘crolled substance

217 'PlBSGl'lptIOIlS at two other pharmacies; 1 Vlolatmn of his pain treatment contract w1’£h Dr. Bass

Also, Respondents permitted various other people to pick up A.8.' oontrqlled substance

prescriptions.
47. - Respondent Jay Scott Drugs did nothave,.any written records supporting
consultations with Dz, Bass regarding A.S.' existing diagnosis, medical conditions er legitimate

medical purpose of the prescriptions. Respondents failed to continually evaluate the patient's

needs and assure each prescription was written for a legitimate need, which ultimately resulted in

the patient's death.

21 -

First Amended Accusafion




10
1

19

20
21

W o = oy ot s W N R

»

48, ., A.S.dlied on March 20, 2008, at the age of 22. A.S.' Death Investigation Report
states that the cause of death was hydrocodone intoxication. Empty prescnp‘aon containers for
Norco (Hydrocodone/125 tablets) and Xanax (60 tablets), Whmh were. prescrlbed by Dr. Bass and
dispensed by Respondent:Daher on March 18, 2008, were found near his body.

Patient D.L. _ _

49.. PerDL.s patient profile, D.L. started o visit Dr. Bass and Respoﬁdent Jay Scott
Drugs in May 2007, at the age of 24. Th‘e distance from the patient's residence tokDAr.lBass‘: ofﬁee

-or to.Jay-Scott Drugs was approximately 40, n'ules

.50, . From May 2, 2007 to March 24, 2008 (10 months), Respondent Jay Scott Drugs.

_dispensed 30 controlled substances and/or dangerous drugs preseriptions for D.L. All of these -

presorip‘ciens:were for drugs most commonly ordered by Dr, Bass, Norca, Soma, .Ambienﬁ and

Valium. During this fime period, D:L..received. a total of 2,375 tabléts of No:ee 10/325mg, 120

‘tablets of Valium 10mg,-520 tablets of Soma and 90 tablets of Ambien. Accordiﬁg DL
14 |

15
‘ 16
SRR YA B
v e R

patient profile, Responden’c Daher dlspensed 23 prescnp’nons Respondent Nabhan dispensed

three:(3) prescnptlons, and Respondent Yamasaki dlspensed four (4) prescnptxons for this patient. | -

IfResponden’cs obtained a CUR E:S: ‘report for_D L. after December 1, 2007, they
would have seen that in. September ’7007 and- October 2007, the patient was treated with
Stubuxone,a drug ussd'to treat. -opiate: adchc’non Re5pondent Jay Scott Drucrs Would have lmown
to inquire 0 of Dr. Bass before d1spensmcr further prescrlptmns 1o0.an addict.

- 52, - Respondent Jay Scott Drugs did not have anyrecords to show D. L s d1a°'n0313

" medical history, any laboratory testing, commumcanon swith Dr.. Bass for pa‘aent care, evaluation |

22

24
25

- 27
28

26

of D:L.’s condition, and effectiveness of his medication regimen although D.L. was regularly on

““Norco, Soms, Valium, and Ambien,-all prescribed by Dr. Bass. Respondents failed to contimually

evaluate the patient's needs and assure each prescription was written for a legitimate need, which
ultimately resulted in the patient's death. - - o

353. . D.L. died on April 10,2008, at the'age of 25. D:L.'s Death Investigation Report.
states that the cause of death was Ambien, Soma, Valium and Cocaine toxicity. Aocordmg to the

C.URE-S. report, the last pr_escriptions filled for D.L. before his death were for Norco, Valium,

22
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--and Ambien, which were prescribed by Dr.'Bass and dispensed by Resp'bndent Jay Scott Drugs

onMarch 24, 2008,
. Patient AW,

54, " Per A.W.s patient profile, A/W. started t0 visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott
Drugs in February 2008, at the age of 31. A.W. always paid cash for her prescriptions. The

- digtance from-the patient's residence o Dr. Bass' office of to Jay Scott Drugs was approximately

28 miles. -

55,‘ Betvveen Fcbmary 6, 2008, -arid Maroh 25, 2008 (48 days), Respondent Jay Scott
Drugs dlspensed 12: controlled substanoe prescriptions. for A W. All of these prescnptlons were
for druvs most cominonly ordered by Dr. Bass, Norco;. Valium and Soma. During this time
period, A W. teceived a total-of 500 tablets-of Noreo 10/325mg, 300 tablets of Valium 10mg, 240

tablefs of Somia; OFf these 12-prescriptions, Responder_ltDaher dlsp.ensed.nme (9) prescriptions

- and Respondent Yarmiasaki dispensed three (3) prescriptions for ﬁhis:pafient;

T 56 “Respondent Jay ScottDrugs:did-not Have any-records to -show A.W.’s diagnosis,

~‘medical history;-any laboratory .testin.g,',‘fbom:rﬁirﬁ'ca’c_'idnrwith Dr.‘Bass for patient care, evaluation
1| - of A"W:’s.condition and effectiveness:af hermedicationregimen atthough A.W. was regularly on
Norco, Xanax; and-Sofna, prescribed by Dr! Bass.: Respondents-failed to continually evalnate the

|| “patient's needs and=aési1re-‘eécli prescription was written fér a 1e,gitimat;*: need,-which ultimately -

resulted in'the patient’s death.

.57, AW, died on April 11,2008, at the age of 31. A.W.'s Death Invesuca’uon Report

states that she ched ‘c‘rom an overdose of Nome 10/3'73m Vahum, and Morphine. Accordmv to .

AW ’spatient profile, A.W.‘s last pleSGIlp‘thHS filled at Respondent Jay Scott Drugs before her

- deafh were Norca, Soma and.Valium, prescribed by Dr. Bass'and dispensed by Respondent . ..
‘ A'fYamasald on March 25, 2008,

Patlent L.G.

#5800 " Per L.G.'s patient profile, L.G. started to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott

Drugs.in June 2006, at the age of 19 years old.. L.G. always paid cash for his prescriptions. The
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1 || distance from the patient's residence to Di. Bass.’ office or to Jay Scott :Dmgsbwas apigrdximately
2 || 30 miles. . | '
3' 59. Betw.een September 2 0 2006 and March 28, 2008 (1 8 months), ResPondent Jay
4 || Scott Drugs dispensed 117- presonp‘aons for L.G. Outof 117 prescrlptlons, '105 were-for drugs
5 || that were most commonly ordered by Dr. Bass, Norco, Xenax and Soma. During this time
6 || period, LG received a total of 3,500 tablets of Norco 1‘0/.3251}1g,‘ 21 60'table’cs of Xanax, 2340
'} tablets of Soma, and 240 tablets of Desyrel.” Of these 105 prescriptions, Requnddn’c‘Daher

- g || dispensed 75 prescriptions, Respondent Yamasald dispensed 18 prescriptions, and }_Respondcnt
-9 || Nabhan d:spensed 12 prescriptions. |

10 - =60, Respondent Jay Scott Drucrs did not know the reason: L G. yas takmcr the

11 "memoatlons There was no dooumen‘canon of commmnication with-Dr. Bass, docmnentation of
' 12 || -discussions With the pa’clent or revmw of CUR.E.S. data fora perscm who was exther 19 0r 20

'13°\| years old when he started receiving thése prescriptions and péid-cash for all of these» prescriptions.
14 Ras;dondents ‘failed to contin‘ually evaluate fhe patient‘s needs and assure ~eiof1 pre_dcriptionhwas
"15 || written for a legItnnate need; which ultlmately resulted-in the pat1ent‘s death.

‘16 || 61. L@ died on April 13;:2008, atthe age :0f 21: The Death InvestlgatlonReport
w17 || states that the canse of death wasan‘Oxycodone and Methamphe.tamme overdose I—I13 tomcolocry

18 '-"'1eport (blood) detected Methamphetatmne ‘Soma, benzodiazéepines, 0p1ates and oxycodone

'19 |\ 840ng/ml. Perthe C:URE:S, report; L.G:"s Jast prescription before his death waii for Norco and

20 || Xanax on March 28,2008, whmh was prescnbed by Dr Bass and dxspensed by Respondent Jay

21 {I-Secott Drugs. : .

22 : Pa’tlent]) K. : e '_ .
~.23 o 62. PerD .5 pa’uent profite, D.X. stalfted ‘o visit Dr. Bass-and Respondem Jay Scott
24 ||- Drugs in December 2006 at the age of'31. DX. always pald cash for his.pr escrlptmns 'I‘he
.25 d1stance from the pat1ent’s residence to Dr. Bass’ ofﬁce orto J ay Scott Druas was appmmmately

26 |- 40 mﬂes

27.

28

® Desyrel is an antidepressant. |
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{| Norco, Xanax; Soma, Ambien, and Valinm. During this period, D K. received a total of 2,750

Al - while dispensing highly addictive medic;ations 10 D.XK., which put this patient at risk.

-Drugs'in October 2006, at the.age 0of 21. The-distance from fhe patient's residence to Jay Scott -

‘Drugs-or.Dr: Bass':office was:approximately 40:miles:; When prescriptions.were filled too soon,

{l--orderto dispense prescnptmns wfchout consulting Dr, Bass: When anew prescnptmn for the

“same’ mbmcahon is bﬂled too soon, the prescription insurahce company.: Would immediately reject

‘the billing-claim: T.8.wvas alternaungiypes.of payment :ben:ween-hls' nsurance-and.cash because

|~ his insurance would not:pay for the amount of-drugs being prescribed and the frequency it was

637 Between December 71,2006, and March 14, 2008, the date of DXK.’s death!® (16
months), Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed appr oxnnately 60 prescnptxons for DX. Out of

the. 60:préscriptions, approximately 57 were fqr._dr.ugs-mosi comxrl_only ordered by Dr, Bass,

-taBlets of Norco, 1,200 tablets of Xanax, 240 tablets-of Valium, and 64 tablets of Ambien. Cf
these 54 presc‘rip’cions,; Resp’ondeﬁt Daher dispensed 43 prescriptions, R espondent Nabhan
dispensed 8 prescriptions, and. Respondent Yarmasald dispensed 6, prescriptions,.

.64  There was no documentation.that Respondents ever. detenn_ined the legitimate need

for these preseriptions. Respondent Jay Scott Drugs failed to share. a-corresponding responsibility

- . Patient I.S, e

: : f
" 65, + . Per'].8! patient profile, 1.S. started to visit Dr. Bass;and Respondent Jay Scoit

stpéndén-’e‘s*altemate’d paym'en’cmethéds by 1.8. between the insurance compa;ny‘:and cash in

‘being dispensed. -

. 66.  Between Oc_tober 31, 2006 and Aprll 5 2007 (app1 oximately fwe months)
~1.8., all of which were written by Dr. Bass, Durmv this period, Respondent Daher dispensed a

“of Raneix'2mg, and a total-of lZO‘tablét's of Soma, to J.8. -Of these 36 prescriptions, Respondent

Respondents d1spens ed a total of 36 confrolled subs’cance and/of dangerous drugs presonphons for
total 6fil,625 tablets of Noreo (includinig Nortab10/500 m§, ong incident); a tota'] of 780 tablets

Daher dispensed 22 prescriptions and Respondent Yamlasald‘dislaensed 14 prescriptions to J.S.

D K. died of lobar pneumonia.

1N
W
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67.  Respondents did not pro?ide; any r‘ecprds of communication with Dr; Bass -
re.garding any of I:S.! 'presoriptions; Respondents failed to skare a corres:pondiné responsibility
Whﬂe dispensing highly addictive medications to J.8., which put thls patient at risk.

68.  During this: perlod 1.8, became addlcted 1o these drugs: He became gxiremely
depressed, sulcldal and v1olent He quit school and could not hold 2 job. He was in a

rehabilitation center on severa] occasions: December 2006 Aprll 2007, ¥ uly 2007 and late 2007. -

Dr. Bambad's prescribing pattern.: -

69.  Aswith Dr, Bass, Respondents failed to evaluate and/or address D’r:. Masoud
Bamdad’s suspec;c prgscrib‘ing pattern. Dr. Bamdad's Prescriber Activity R.e.pg'r_-t for the period of
December 2006 through May 2008, provided that Respondents dispensed the following
présoriptioﬁs written by Dr. Bamdad: '. N l

2, 543 prescriptions for Schedule TI con{r.olleci substances, out of %rvliidﬁ all but eight
38y prescnpuons were written for oxycodone products o

b. 136 prescnptmns for.Schedule T controlled substances out of which all but two

@) prescriptlons were hy,drocodone. produocts, mainly Norco, -

c. . 302 prescriptic;ns._far Schedule IV controlled substances, 6ut of Wﬁich all but 13

“prescriptions were written .for-X'emaic "or Valium, mainly Xanax ng, and. oo

d. 7 -prescriptions-of, Schedule Vv oontrolled substances , _
. .70.  From Décember 2006 through May 2008, Respondent J ay Scott Drugs d1spensed a

total of 1 357-'prescriptions’ written by Dr Bamdad, out of which 980 prescnptlons were

'oontrolled substanoes and 369 were danaerous drucrs Th1s meant: that ‘73% of the prescrlptlons

written by Dr, Bamdad were for controlled substanoes, which is.a much higher percentage of

- controlled substances written by.one preseriber than normal.» Despite the -‘foreﬁoinc factors,

Respondent Jay Soott Druvs connnuously filled 1,357 pr escnptlons for Dr. Bamdad‘s patients

between Decembel 2006 and May 2008. ' '.w
mn
m
i
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‘ substances ‘o hifn, which presented clear indications that theprescnpuons written by Dr. Bamdad

-for A.C:-were -generallj not issued for:a ]ecrmmate medical purpose, Per A.C.'s patmnt profﬂe

- AC. started to visit Dr. Bamdad and Rcs;)ondent Jay -Soott Drugs in. December 2007, at the age of

- eight (8) controlled substance prgscnp’aons for-A.C.,all _of which were written by Dr. Barmdad,

| Duzing this period, Res;)ondent Daher digpensed to A.C. 270 tablets of Oxycodone énd 240

‘of the prescriptions. RespondentDaher-failedto contiriually-evaluate the'f)aticnt‘s needs and

i+ discipline‘pursuant to-Code sections 4300 and 4301; subdivision (0), on-the. cn:ounds of

‘|| unprofessional’ conduct in that Rea*.pondents Nabhan and Yamasaki failed to rev1ew NV.’s:

Patient AC,

T R’espondent fajled:to review AiC.s patient profiles prior to dispensjﬁc controlled

22. AC. always 715&'1(1. cash-for his prescriptions. The distance -from the patient's residence to Jay
Scott Drugs or Dr. Bamdad's office was approximately 40: m1les

- 72. " From December 11, 200710 April 10,2008 (5 months), Respondent Daher filled

tablets of Xanax 2mg,

w293, " RespondentTay Scott Dmcrs didnot have-any doctimentation of consultations Wl’ch

Dr. Bamdad regarding A.Cls:diagnosis ;‘-'medlca‘a 61 conditions-er the Jegitimate medical purpose

assure each prescnptuan was Wwrittenfor-a-legitimate. need;’ whloh"contrlbutad to A:C: ‘s death.

“ 74, - A Cias found:dead on April 14, 2008, at-the age of 23. A.C's Death
Investigation Report states that the cause of death was mulﬁple drug effects,.including
significantly high ‘Oxycodene levels: His last prescription was-on Anrﬂ 10, 2008, for 50 tablets of
OxyContin aud 60 tablets of Xanax, ‘written by Dr. Bamdad and d13pensed by Responderit Daher.-

' TOURTE CAUSE FOR DISCIFLINE

@f‘ahuré'to Teview 'paﬁent'proﬁles iprior o dispensinff ~prescriptions)

75. Respondents “Ahmad Nabhan and Jun Respondent “Yamasald are subject to

profiles prior to dlsl:)e:nsmfI prescriptions, in violatien.of-Code séction 4306 5, subdivision (c), and
Cahforma Code of Regulations, title 16, sections 1707.3. Specifically, Responden‘c Nabhan and

Respondent Yamasaki each filled one (1) prescription of Norco 10/35mg for N V. early without

27
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-Ieviewing N.V.'s patient proﬁle, resulting in over .dispeosiﬁg of conti‘olled substances, and/or,
dangerous drugs, as set forth in paragraph 28, above. .. - |
FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISC]PLH\IE
’ (Unprofessmnal Conduct)
76.  Respondents are sub_]eot to discipline pursuant to Code sec’mons 43 00 and 4301, in

that Respondents committed unprofessional conduct, as more fully dlseussed in paragcaphs 24
through 75, above. '
PRAYER

WI—]EKE‘,FORE Compla.mant requests thata heannc be held on the matters herein alleged,

and that followmcr ’rhe hearm ‘the Board of Pharmacy issue & decision:

1. Revoking or suspendnztcr Pharmamst L1oense Number KE’I—I 39189, Jssued Albert
Farah Respondent Daher; ;. '

2. Revoking ot suspendmg Pharmacist License Numb er R.PH 417 54, 1ssued to

Ahmad Nabhan

3. Revokir{g or suspending Pharmacist Lioensejl}]ﬁ_rfxbef RPH199 83, jssted to Jun

Respondent Yamasali;

4, Revolqng or suspendmv Retail Pharmacy Llcense Number PHY 40912 1ssued to
Jay Scott Drugs, with Albert Farah Respondent Daher.2s Pharmams,t-m:ﬂharge,
5, Ordering Jay Scott Drugs, Albert Respondent Daher Ahrna.d Nabhan, and Jun

Respondent Yamasaki to pay the Boa1d the reasonable costs of the mves’uvahon and enforcerment

|_of fhis case, pursuant to Business and Professmns Code sectlon 125 3 and

6 ~ Taking such other and further action as deemed neoessary and propet.

T

DATED: ‘ 1 : .
2 )1“'\[\2— M\/u o

V TNIA K. HEROLD
five Officer

Board of Phatmacy

State of California

‘Complainant

' 1.A2009604600
§0731069.doc
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ED\&UND G. BROWN JR.
Attorney General of California
GREGORY J. SALUTE

Supervising Deputy Attorhey General = -

NANCY A, ILAISER e

Deputy Attorney General :
State.Bar No. 192083

" 300 Se. Spring Street, Suite 1702

Los Angeles, CA 90013

- -Telephone: (213) 897-5794

Facsimile: (213) 897-2804
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AX I‘AIRS
' STATEOF CALIFORNIA S

Ty

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

"3z '1y Scoﬁ Druos

PIC Albert Daher
2200 N, Glenoaks

.Burbanlk, CA 91504

Retail Phirmacy Ticénse Number I’I—IY
40912,

Albert Farah Daher
456 Audriine Drive
Glendale, CA 91202

“Phafmadist License Number RPH 39189,
V. Ahinad Shati Nabhan

3234 Henrietta Ave

: La Crescenta, CA 91214

Phar m'tCle Lxcensc Nurnber RI’H 41754

a]‘id R v e e e e

Jun Yamasalﬁ
511 E. Mount Curve Ave,
Altadena, CA 91001

{ Pharmacxst Lxcense Number RPH 1)983 .‘

Respondents.

Case No. 3482 '

ACCUSATION
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1. * Complainant alleges:
) PARTIES
3 1, Virginia K. Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official
4 oapaotty as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy. | . _
5 2. On or about June 27, 1995, the Board of Pharmacy 1ssued Retail Pharmacy
6 Il ‘License Numbal PHY 40912 to Jay Scott Drugs (Respandcnt), located at 220 North Glenoaks,
© T .Burbank California. Albert Farah -Dahar has becn the sole-owner of J ay Sco‘tt Drugs and"
g || Phar macist-in-Charge.of Jay Scott Drugs from 1998 to the present The Retail 13ha:rmacy License
.9 || will expue on Junel; 2011, unless renewed. '
10 3. ‘Onorabout March 12, 1985, the Board of: Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License |
11 || Number RPH 39489 to. Albert Fargh Daher (Respondent Dahex) The Pharmamst Lloense will
1’ 2 exp ireonJ anuary 31,2011, unless renewed
13 4, Onor about Apn! 20, 1988 ‘the Board of Pharmacy issued Phannacls’c License
14 Numbe1 RPH 41754t Ahmad Shati Nabhan (Respondent Nabhan) The Pharmacnst License was
15 . in full foros and effect at all times relevant to the charges brou.ght—-h erein. ahd W.l” expire on May
16 || 31,2011, unlessvenewed. . . . :
17 5. On or about July 28, 1956, the Board of Phar.mac}" issued Pharma'oigt License
18 {l Number RPH 1998mto Jun Yamasaki (Respondent Yam asakl) -The Pharmacist License was in
19 || full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges b1 ought herein-and will expire on Mar ch’
26 31, 2012, unless 1enewed. '
Al e e JURKDICHON
| 22 6. . Tlus Accusation is broutrht before the Board of Pha1 macy (Board), under the
23 a'u'chority of the following laws. All sectxon,refercnces are 1o the Busmes.s and Profess_lons Code
54 unless otherwise indicated. .
257 - 7. . .Bection 4300 of the Code prov‘ides, in part, that every license. issued by the Board
26 || is subjectto diécip‘l'me, including suspension or revocation.
27 i
28 U

Accusation |-




w W »

oo~

8. Section 4302 of the Code states:

“The board may deny, suspend, or revoke any license of a corporation where conditions -

. exist in relation to any person holding. 10-percent or more of the corporate stocl: of the

carporation, or where conditions.exist in relation to any officer or director of the corporation that
would constitute grounds for disciplinary action against a licensee.”
9. Section 4113 of the Code states, in part: -

"(b). The pharmacist-in-charge shall be responsible for a pharmacy's. compliance with all

| -state:and federal laws and-vegulations pertaining to-thepractice of pharmacy.”

10,  Section 118, subdivision.(b), of the:Code pliqvides that the suspension, expiration,

1| surrender, or canceliation of a license-shall not deprive the Board of jurisdiction to proceed with a

disciplinary action during the period within which the license may be renewed, restored, reissued

or reinstaied.

11. - Section 4301 of the Code states: = .
. "The board:shalliake action against any holder-ofa hcense who s guilty of

dnprofes_slor-\al:conduct: . Unprofessional-conduet shall include, but is not timited to, any of the

fol]owihg: _

(d) The clearly excessive furnishing of controlled substances in violation of subdivision -~

(a) of Section 11153 of the Health and Safety Code.

© "(§) The violation.of any of the statutes of this staté, or any other state, or of the United

States regulating-controlled-substances and dangerous drugs.

(o) Violating or éttempting {o violate, directly or indirectly, -or-assisting in or abetting the
.vielation of or-conspiring to violate-any.provisien or term of this chapter or of the épplioab}e
federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, -inc-ludin.g regulations established by
the board or by any other state oy federal regulatory agency.”

-

w
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: with regard to the provision of services, - «

Al 130 ..:Section 4063-of the, Code .state_s:-. sl R

" authorization of the prescriber. The a.txthorizaﬁon.-inay_bc,giyen orally or at the time of giving the

| be designated refillable as needed.”" - -

.

) | o

212, .Sedtion 4306.5 of the Code states:
“Unprofessionél conduct for a. pharm.at:ist,may.include any of the foi]dwing;
- "(a):Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the inappropriate exercise of his
or her education, h‘aining, or experience as a pharmacist, whether or not the act or omission ariées
in the course of the practxce of pharmacy or the ownership, management, admmlstratlon, or

operation of a pharmacy or other entity licensed by the board.

.."(b) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in 'pal't, the failure to-exercise or
. . ,

immplement his or her best professional judgment or-corresponding responsibility with regard to

the dispensing.or furnishing of controlled substances, dangerous.drugs, or dangerous devices, or

- t:7(c) ‘Acts ot omissions that involve; in' whole of in part, the failure to c,o.n,s{ut appropriate
patient, presoriptioﬁ, and other records pertaining to the performance of any .pharmady_ﬁmotion.
(d) Acts or.omissionsthat involve, in whole ot in part, the fé_tilure to fully maintain and
retain approp Lfiate.ﬁatient-speciﬁo.informatio;n-fp.er.t,aining to'the performance of any pharmacy
funetion. 't .o - " o |

R
-

"No prescription for any dangerous drug or dangerous device may be refilled except upon
original prescription. No prescription for any dangerous drug that is a controlled substance may |

14, Health'and Safety Code section'11153 states: -

o b s e mrn e o A b Shmmimy st s

““a) A prescription fora controlled substance shall- only be jssued for a lecﬂhma‘ce medical

purpose by an individual practitioner acting in ‘the usual course of his or her pljgfessrpna] practice,
The responsibility for the proper px;escrib ing and dispensing of controlled substances is upon the
prescribing practitioner, but a corresponding responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the
prescription. Except as authorized by this division, the folléwing are not legal prescriptions: (])’.
an or_der purporting o be a prescription which is issued né)t in the usual course of professional

treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for an addict or habitual user of

4
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controlled substances which is issued-notim the course of professional treatment or as pau of an
. authol ized narcotlc treatment procrram forthe purpose of providing the user with controlled
substances, sufficient to keep. him or her comfortable by:m aintaining customary use.”

. REGULATORY PROVISIONS.

15 California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1707.3 states:

“Prior to consultation as set forth in section 1707.2, a pharmacist shall review a patient

. drug therdpy end imedication record before each’ prescription drug is delivered. The review shall

I include screening for severe potential drug therapy problems.”

16.  California Code of Regulations; title 16, section 1716 states, in part:

"Pharmacists shall net deviate from the requirements of a-.pﬁescription except upon the
prior consent of the presc;ri ber or to select-the drug prodict in accordance with Section 4073 of
the Business and-Professions Code."

“17. - Califotnia-Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1761 states:

(g No-phérmatist-shall compound or dispense-any: prescription. which contains any
significant error, omission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or alteration.. Upon receipt of any

such prescription; the pharmacist shall coritact the pr.es‘cribcr to obtain the information needed to

A validate the prescription. - .

“(b)‘Bvén after’ conferring withthe prescriber, 2 pharmacist:shall not compound or

|l dispense a controlled substance prescription where the pharmacist knows or has objective reason

to know that said prescription was not issued for a legitimate medical purpose.”

COST REC OVERY

' 18 Sectlon 123 3 of the Code 'plOVldES in part, that ‘che Board ma.y '1;;1;&-&3
adm'rﬁi‘stfaﬁve law judge to direct a licentiate.found to have committed a violation or violations of
- the li‘ceﬁs'ing-act-tlo'.pay'a:'sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of:the investigation and
enforcement of the case.
s
-

-
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1 19. DRUG CLASSIFICATIONS .
2 “Generic Name Dangerous Scheduled Indications For |
aEu! Name(s) . Drug Per Drug per Use
! Bus. & Prof. Health &
4 | .. Code § 4022 - Safety Code
5 A.mbien Zolpidem . 4 Yes Schedule TV | Insomnia
(non-barbiturate, non- ‘ ’ RS I
6 benzodiazepine sedative
A hypnotic) ’ .
T | Desyrel | Trazodone - - - 7 " | Yes Not scheduled | Depression
. , ) ' 1 and anxiety.
8 \Malion Triazolam (non- Yes - Schedule TV Short-term
9 ' barbiturate, RS treatment of
, | benzodiazepine sedative insomnia
10 1 hypnotic) SRR P R
| Heroin Opiurn derivative - Not prescribed | Schedule I no currently
'11 d L R T :~. it . o X cacoepted
12 : e .. medical use
7 IMNreo', | Hydrocodone/ Yes ‘| Schedule III | Moderate to
"13 | Vicodin Acetaminophien:(APAPDY .| -. S ... . ) Severe Pain
. |l OxyContin - | Oxycodone .| Yes Schedule II Moderate to
L B ) : <o L | Severepain
15 || Soma® | Carisoprodol- .., | Yes | not scheduled | Muscle
1 7 e | relaxant
" 16 ||| Subutex, Buprenotphine .- x| Yes Schedule JII. | Narcotic
~ . |l Suboxone ' _ ' .| Addiction -
17 W Valium I Diazepami ~ - 7°  |Yes | ScheduleIV -] Anxiety
180l (non-barbiturate, .. . | ' Co
o benzodiazepiné sedative | -
" 19 - ~ hypnotic) - R E . L -
- Vicodin Hydrocodone/Acetamino | Yes Schedule TII | Pain
20 - | phen - . o
||| Xanax, .| Alprazolam o Yes Schedule IV Anxiety
AR {(nonsbarbiturate, ... L F
o) benzodiazepine sedative. | ,
, ' hypnotic) - , e : L
23 ) '
24 ' : o
m o : i
25 ’
i
26 ;
' Norco 10/325 mg contains 10 mg of hydrocodane and 325 mg of acetarmninophen (brand
27 \| name, Tylenol). The maximum dailyrecommended dosage for acetaminophen is 4 grams.
ZDrug abusers.combine Soma with hydrocodone to produce similar effects to those of
28 \ ‘Heroin. o
6
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BACKGROUND:

200 ThéBé)’éi‘&"‘iiﬁfiﬁted'in’vé%tica’cioﬁs of Respondents based upon the following:
a. Tlu oo (3) complamts zwamst Respondents Jay Scott Drugs and Daher aueo"ng that

they ewesswaly dlspensed oomrolled substances ’Lo patlcnts which resulteo in the deaths of

Pahents A, S and AC. and the drug ac\dlctxon of I S Patxents Al S and J S were Dr. Bernard
Bass patients and Patient A.C. was Dr. Masoud Bamdad s pa‘nent

i B: .+ Ventura County Shertff D_epartmum’sl criminal 1§1vesti gation of Dr. Bass for his
involve'ment in the overdose deaths of seven-of his patients five of Which had Dr. Bass'.
pleSOl iptions filled at Respondeni Jay Scott Drucrs facility, namely AS., D. L A W L.G., and
D 1K, Dr. Bass office was Ioc'ued at 10843 Magnoha Bouievard North Hol]ywood Cahfomxa

which was apm ommately five ml]es ﬁom Jay Scott Dr ufrs f aclhty

[ Calu:orma Medical- Boaxd“s mvustwatxon mto Dr, Bass’ medxcal practice and

e

W subsequent d1s<nplme which mvolved ‘allegations of} xgross nechcence axcesswe prescribing of

Al contl olled substandcs, and other VIO\athTlS, w1th regard £ ‘seven (7) patients* and subsequent

f .- dxsclplm agamst Dr. Bass medical hcense The Cahfomla Medwal Board‘s Decision and Order

" in Inre Maﬂer ‘0f the Accusation against Bernard N, Bass, M.D:; Case No 05-2005-167939,

' da‘ced Janyary, 21 2009 provided that Dr. Bass’ physmxan hcense No. G 28037 was revoked, with

1

revocation stayed, 90 chys suspersion,- plac d on sevc—m (7) ycals probatxon,. and reqmred fo .

5

surrender. his Umted States Drug Enfor cemcnt Adm mxstra’non (DEA) permit to p1 esoribe

. . oomlo\led substances

. 21. " PBased on the forecromcr and the C.U RE S data, the Board mveshvator selected

o e e e - eebimen

S e e ety bttt i pp o = rere—-

? For pur poses of patient conﬂdentnhty, Al patients are le'r”eu ed to by thelr in mals Upon '
a proper request for discovery, all patient records will be made ayailable to ReSpondents

4 The seven patients involved in the California Medical Board’s mvest\rranon regarding
Dr, Bass are not the same seven patients involved iin Ventura County Sheriff’s mv=~st\cramn

> In or about May 2008 Dr. Bass surr emde) ed his DEA permit to Ventura County Sheriff's
detectwcs

* " “6The Contiolled Substance Utilization Review and EvaluationSystem or CURE.S. is 2
dafabast maintained by the California Department of Justice, Bureau of Narcotic Enforcement, .
“‘which allows pre-registered usess, incliding licensed healthcare prescribers eligible to prescribe

controlled substances, pharmacists authorized to dispense controlled substanc=s law

(continued...)
7 ;
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twenty six (26). patients:(including deceased patients) of Dr. Baés, who received presc;iptidns

from Jay Scott Drugs, and reviewed their patient profiles and original prescriptions,

22.  Patient A.C.'s doctor, Dr. Bamdad, was investigated and federaily indicated by the

- DEA for illegal drug distribution ! According to the indictments and a press release by United

States Attorney’s Office, dated May 6,2009, in the criminal proceeding ?Dt_iﬂ?d.USA v: Masoud
- Bamdad; United States District Cou;t_, Central District of California (Western Division - Los
. Angeles), Case No, 2:08-0r-00506-GW-1, Dr. Bamdad was convicted of 13 felony C'Qm,;ts'of
federal narcotics c}w.argess for writing prescriptions for Oxycodone fm-' .people hé did ho‘g e;;amiﬁe .

in exchange for as much as $300 in cash. Three of the charges upon which Bamdad was

| convicted concern prescriptions that were written for-people ﬁnde}' the age of 21, .

.. .~ FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

@eﬁll of prescriptions without pi*es.crib‘er‘.s;..‘z:tytgngfgzgﬁion}'
23. Resmn’dentJay Scott-Drugs and Respondent Daher are subject to dié;;ipiine
putsu;ant'to ~Cod_é sections 4300, 4301, subdivision (o), 4302, and-4113, on '-th,e;:grptmds 'of
unprofessiondl conduet, in-’that:l{equﬁdents.reﬁlled prescriptions for. pqptr,ol,lgd ,su\%:.st'anoes and

dangerous drugs, Qv'xthout'-authorization, in violation of Cade section 4063. Speciﬁ{ial_ly,

{| Respondent Daher refilled prescriptions,which did not contain authotized refills on the original

15 'pras:g:ripﬁoﬁ'as follows!- - - &
19 Patient J.§. o s
' 20 a'. Onl anuigry 15, 2007, Respondent Dahér refilled Rx no. 180576 mordo 10/325
21 || mg, 125 tablets) for J S without the preéofibing'dootor"s authorizatioﬁ'. . L
2 b, On Janudry 22, 2007, Respondent Deher refilled Rx nio, 182808 (Norco. 10/325
23' mg, 125 tablets) for J.S. withput:the prescribing doctor’s authorization.” - o ‘
24 enforcement, and regulatory boa&ds, to access‘patient'oontrplh_ad 5{“}? stance history ilﬂ"o.‘rmation7
25 7 According a press release by United States Attorney’s Offi C'G;:d?’@éq_'méy 6,.2009, Dr.
¢ Bamdad has been in custody since his arrest in April 2008, by DEA special agents. ~
R $ The jury found Dr. Bamdad guilty.of ten felony counts of violating 21 U.S.C. §
27 || 841(2)(1), (B)(1)(C) (knowing and intentional unlawfu) distribution of controlled.substances) and
|| three felony counts of violating 217U.S;C. § 859 (unlawful distribution ef-controlled substances.to
28 ’ : | : _

persons under age 21).
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N R ' SECOND CAUSE FOR. DISCIPLINE.
§ ) S a‘alhn e to Rewew Dr ug Therapy and Patient Medication Record)

Respondent Iay Scott Drugs and Respondent Daher are subject to discipline

4 || pursnant to Code sections-4300, 4301, subdivision (o), 4302, and 4113, on the grounds of

wy

“unprofessiorial conduet, i that Responderits failed 0 Teview thie patient's-drug th erapy and
6 1l me di’bdtidﬁ ‘tecord prior t6 dispensing prescriptions, in violation of Code section 4-306. xS
} ' i subdivision (), and .Ca_l‘l.-forniazcodsiof Regulatic;ns,”ti‘ﬂe 16, sections 1707.3. The ciroumsfanoes |
" S Ty || are as follows:
| : 9 c ""]?:éatieh’t J.8.
i 10 25,

Respondent Daher filled prescriptions for highly addictive controlled substances
11 |t early for I. S5 wi’c‘ﬁéuﬁévicx’win his patient profile, resulting in over dispensing CGntrollcd

12 || stbstance & and/or ‘dangerous drugs to I.5:, as i'olloWs

13 |l a7 On fanitary24; 2007, Respondent Daher dispensed Rx No. 183632 (Norco
14' | lb]EﬁSrﬁg} and Rx No. 183633 (Reanat-2ing, 60 tablets) for 1.8. sin(6) days earlier than.the

A “Shritten Hirections indicated “The prescribing doctor:dated the preseriptions.J ar{uary 30, 2007.
6" bt From January 15, 2007, to Jannary 24, 2007, over a,10-day period, Respondent -
171 Daﬁé}"disﬁ;éﬁsed 500 tablets 'of Norco, and from January-19, 2007, through January 24, 2007,

18 | overa6-day period, Respondent Daher dispensed 120 tablets of Kanax, to J.S., as set forth in the |- '
19 || table below: ‘
Rx# Drug - Date. | RPH .Dzrec’non _ Qty |.
21 -‘- - : e .
! e e e B W\ flled | SR I S '
55, |ll 180576 | Norco 10/325 1/15/07. -} AD | Take 1-2 tablets evcry 4 125 -| Unauthorized | -
; L hours : refill |~
f ) 23 (il 182808 | Norco 10/325 |:1/19/07." | AD | Talée -2 tablets.every 4 1125
S | R “t -+ - |hours-. : Ll
‘ 247182800 Kanax 2mg" 111/19/07 AD - | Takel mmet every 6 hours. | 60
25 182810:.| Soma 350 mg |. 1/19/07-. | AD . | Take 1 tablet every night 10 :
== 1-182808+{-Norco 10/325 "1/22/07' AD .".Talce”]-Ziablets every4 | 125 { Unauthorized
26 I~ : ' {  |hours L refill
i1 8363_'?_," Norco 101325 1/24/07 4 AD:- | Take: 1—2 tablets evely 4. 125 | Early fil)
2T W I I ; | t-1 hours: . _ :
2% 183633 | Xanax 2mg 1/74/07" FAD | Take 1“tablet every 6 hoursf 60 | Early fill
9
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16

11
12
13

14

15

17
18
19
20
23
22

24

25

26

.27 |

“Naorco 10/325mg per day, w

G Y« U U S, S

“Tanuary 22, 2007, Respondent Daher dispensed 250 tabiets of prco; 120 fablets of‘-}@anax,-and
30 tablets of Somato A.S., as set forth in the able belov(/:

The written directions for these medications are Norco'1 0/325m,g,. take 1-2 tablets every 4 hours
(equals a maximum of 12 tablets per day); Xanax 2mg, take 1 every 6,ho1'1rs (equals & maximum
of 4 tablets per day); and Soma, take 1-tablet every night (1 tablet per day). Based on Respondent

Daher's over dispensing, the pafient was taking 20 tablets of Xanax per day and 50 tablets of

hich constitutes 16.25 grams of Tylenol per day. As atesult, the
patient was e,i:posa& to'Tyf]enol foxicity. ‘
Patient A.S.

26. Respondent Dalher filled prescriptions for hwhly adchctwe oontrolled substanoes

for A.S., without reviewing his patlent profile, resulting over dispensing controlled substances
and/or dangerous drugs £0.1.8; as follows: |

a. On J anuary 22, 2007, R.esponclent Daher dispensed Rx No, 183159 (Norco
10/325mg, 125 tablets),-I{qu.. 183160- (Kanax 2~m,3,_,60 tablets)J Rx 183162 (Soma, 15 tablets) |
for A‘.S‘ eight (8) days earlier than the written directions ich']icatgd..._.Th_e" p_xj@sc_t_i:bjng dO(:'.‘f[Qr dated
the prescriptions.J: anvary 30; 2007, l ' . |

b. " In addlthh, three days earlier, on January 19, 2007, ‘Respondent 1 Daher had
dispensed the identical prescriptions to A.8. (Noreo 10/325 mg 125 tablets, Xanah;mg 60

tablets, Soma 15 tablets). As aresult, over a period of four days, from J gn,i{gry,l9,.2007, through

Rx# |Date . Dx ug . FPH ‘Direction - ' Qty
Moo ffilled o . R :
182811 1/19/07, Norca 10/325 P\D, Take 1-2 tablets every 4 125 R
L - | hours ‘ :
1 182812 | 1/19/07 - .Xanax"lmg s AD | Take 1 tablet every 6 lours |60
182813 | 1/19/07 | Soma 350 mg AD | Take 1 tablet every night 15
183159 | 1/22/07 | Norco10/325 AD | Take1-2 tableis every 4 125
o hours '
183160 | 1/22/07 | Xanax2mg _ ['’AD | Take 1 tablet every 6 hours | 60
183162 | 1/22/07- 4 Soma 350 mg AD | Take 1 tablet every night 15

Based on Respondent Dahei's over 'dispénsing, the patient was tak'mg 6.2 tablets of Norco
10/325mg, 30 tablets of Xanax 2mg, and 7 tablets of Soma per day. 62 tablets of Norco

10
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" highly addictive controlled substances early for N.V., without reviewing N.V.'s patient profile

| subdivision (d), Q).an'd (o),‘omhe grovnds-of-unprofessional conduct, in that they failed to

thedispensing or furnishing of controlled substances and/or dangerous drugs, in violation of Code

- sectior4306.5, subdivision (b), Health and Safety Codé section 11153, and California Code of

10/325mg ooﬁ.éﬁmte‘zo img of Tylenol, five (5) times the recommended daily 'dosé. As a result,
the patient was exposed to Tylenol toxicity. .- .
Patient N.V. .
: i7. On seven (7) occasions Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed prescriﬁtions for

By filling the prescriptions early, Respondents over dispensed controlled substances and/or

dangerous drugs to N.V., as follows:

‘ a. On March 29, 2007, Respondent Daher 'dispenséd arefill of Norco 10/325mg six
6) da)'§ early. ‘ '
V b. ‘OnMay 29, 2007 Reséondent Nabhan-dispensed a refill-of Norco 10/325mg seven
(7) days early. Coe
e Onl une 26;2007. Respondent Yamasaki dispensed a refill of Norco 10/325mg .
" nine’ (9) days carly, .
d, On October ’IS 2007, Responde.nt Daher dispensed a refill.of Norco 10/323mv
Cfive (5) day§early; :
) e, On Pebmaly 12, 2008, Respondent Dafer dispensed a refill of Norco 10/325ch
- six (6) days early. .
£ On Warch 13, 2008; Respondent'Daher dispensed a-refill OmeCO 10/325mg ftv
(5) days early. |
' .g. On April 4, 2008,'Respond§mt Daher dispensed a refill of Norco 10/325mg six (6)
fomppomty, - R
| ' THIRD CAUSEFOR DISCIPLINE '
(Taﬂu] ‘e to Txercise. Pl ofessional J ndgment)-
s,

Res;;ondents e subjcct to dksmplme pm suan’cio,Code -sections-4300 and 4301,

exercise-professional judgment and fafled to shére.a corresponding responsibility with regard to

1]

{

Accusation {




UL ————

0

T B W

] paments in'the same, fam iy,

=
S

Regulations, title 16, section 1761, subdivision (b), which put their patients at risk. R:espondents
dispensed prescr-lpt_ions that they knew or had an objective reason to know that said prescriptions
were not issiied for-a legitimate medical purpose. The circumstances are as follows:

Dr. Bass® prescribing pattern

29, . Respondents failed to adequately evaluaie and/or address Dr. Bass_'.sujspeot pfescrllning ‘

| pattern or his patients' profiles prior to dispensing controlled substances to Dr. Bass’ patients,

which presented clear indications that numerous prescriptions written by Dr, Bass were not issued
for a legitimate medical purpose. Respondents failed to gya.luate the totality of the circumstances

presented by D Bass’ presoribing pattern, including, but not limnited to, the fact that Dr. Bass

! wrote an unusually large number of'controlléd substance prescriptions, wrote.few if any

prascriptlons that were.net controlled substances except Soma, he-prescribed the same drugs with

‘the same dosages dlrections and quantities W1thout ad;ustmen’ts for numerous patlents including

.he prescribed 1lloclcal drug: combmatxons lus pr aotwe moluded an

unusually. la1 ge numbel of. young patients for pain manavement who traveled 30 or 40 miles to

see Dr, Bass or have theu prescl iptions filled at Respondent I ay Scott Drugs -and pald for their

prescr 1ptlons m cash

Unusuallual g€ numbel of controlled substanoe mescrlphons o

30,

Dr. Bass wrote an unusuaily large number of controlled aubstanoe presmpuons
From October 2006 through April 2008, Respondent Jay Scoft Drugs dlSpenged 33,742 controlled

substance presgriptions written by Dr. Bass, n‘ot including the approx'lm ately 9,481 prescriptions

' for Soma,” Dux ing that. per iod the phaumacy oper aled app1 omma‘cely 493 days Thel efore,

Respondent Jay Scotl DlU‘TS cllspensed approxim ately 1775 controlled substanoe prescnptlons
written by Dr. Bass per month or an aver age of ; appr ommately 68 con’molled substance

| plescl iptions per day for 19 months. The lal ge number of controlled substancc plBSGI iptions
dxspensed per.day written by Dr. Bass should have alerted Responden‘cs 1o car efully monitor

patients and carefully cl_og:ument that monitoring, Wl‘llCh they fallad to do. .

® Dr. Bass' p1 escnptlon history with Jay Scott Druvs was 608 paﬁes jong for lhe time
period-January+1, 2006, through May 8, 2009, with very few prescriptions dlSpGl‘lSGd during 2006.

12
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Few if any prescriptions other thari conirolled substances and Soma

31,

Respondents failed to consider that Dr. Bass:pati-enté‘ha.d'verb; fewif any’
préseriptions other than those pain medications and Soma ordered by Dr, Bass, filled at Jay Scott
Dmas. Normal'ly' patients have & number of different types of prescriptions dispensed, notjust
con’nolled ‘substance” prescriptions. Most patients reviewed either. had no other prescnptions for

other types of medications or abnormally few other types of* prescnptlons dispensed by

Respond ent Jay Scott Drugs.

Saime'drug regimen

32. 'Thé'tyﬁica\ drug regimen that Dr. Bass used and.was dispensed by Respondent Jay

Scott Drug was for the same drugs, Norco 10/325mg, Kanax 2mg (or Valium 10mg), and Soma,
with the sameé dosages, quantities, and direstions, as follows:

e s 6.

.- {Drug name -, ] Quantity (tablef) . | Direction .
N01 % 10/_3’7 1257 | Take1-2 tabletsevery | -
e der nv T i LA hours re
ana\ ng 60 Take 1 tab]et every 6
) CORTR: TP 207 e et i v .hOUIS Cmme e v
Soma : 60 Take 1 tablet four

times a.day’

The prescriptions wete rarely varied for a patient from ‘the first visit to the last or from patient to

: pa’éien’c’." There were no indications of any dosage adjustments a‘oco{'dingfto the severity of the

pain. Dr. Bass rarely prescribed other pain management drugs other than Norco 10/325mg
Respondents failed to adequately evaluate why a-pain management spccialist Dr. Baés' would

p1 CSGl 1be the same dluo 1ev1mcn fon so’ many of theu patlems Wlthout dlﬁexenhauon fcn age,

“tweight, degrse of pam, and medical hxs‘tory.

Tllogical drug combinations -

" 33, Respontents failed to question illogical diug combinations. There are two
subtypes of nonbarbiturate sedative hypnotics, behzddi'azeﬁiﬁc’aﬁd non-benzodiazepine. Valium,

Xanax, and Haloxon are examp\es of benzodxazepmus and Ambién is an exampie of a non-

| bemodmzepme hypnotlc Snven (7) of Dr. Bass® patlents that ﬁlled their pTCaC’L‘lpthﬂS at Jay

Scott Dmo‘s WEIS presonbed more than one non-balbmuate sedatwe hypno‘clc as follows _

13
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a. ‘D.L. - A111bi611 and Valiom
. b DK -Xanax, Ambien, and Valium
c. K.P:- Xanax and Valium |
- d -B.G.-.-..Xanax and Valium
Coer DS~ Xanax, A"mb'xen, and Valium
) £ JV 2 Amb'ie:n and Halcion
g. - - L.G. - Xanax-and Valium.

There is no.documentation of any inquiry of Dr. Bass by Respondents aboujc”the_,dUpl'icate therapy '

: foﬂhésep;ﬁenté.

. Unugsnal Age of Patients for Pain Management . .

ap’

oo 34 'Respondents did not consider the fact that most.of Dr. Bass' patients for whom he

- rescribed pam *illers on a regular basis were in their 20;s orearly 3 0. s. _The five deceased
' individuals invest igated by Ventura County Sheriff's Department who had prescnp‘mons filled at
- Respondent ] ay-Scoft Dtugs ranged in age from 19 to 3;;1.._.;,Respgndents dispensed these.same

“controlled éubstailces-dlw'd Soma to 16 younger adults less than 25 years old, ‘,primarijy during a

19-month period from October 2006 through April 2008, in addition to other __pet_iénts of Dr. Bass,

Late teens and early 20°s is an unusual age for pain management, Most of the teens or young

1 aidilts were apparently healthy individuals that would be expected to have oceasional antibiotics

Vo . - .
common uiedical problems-or typical medical cave for.this age group. They were reguiariy on

~for infections or for the females, perhaps birth control pills, These p atients were.rarely treated for |

very hwh dosaves of pam control medwa‘mons benzodlazepme com:lolled substance anti- anxlety

22.

7
24

‘- 25
267
27

28

agents, and musole T el axants.

» . =Distances traveled

35, - Respondents failed to consider that many of Dr. Bass' patients traveled
approximately 30 el' 40 miles to see Dr. Bass or have their prescriptions ﬁ}led’ at Respondent Jay

Scott Drugs, especially since Dr. Bass' patients were allegedly in pa.if} and had to retarn to see Dr. |°

‘Bass every 12 1o°15 days.to obtain a new prescription:

14
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-Substance 't;or Scliedule TII to V indicated that-75 prescriptions out of 105 prergoriptions Weré for

e

‘presériptions ‘for- family -mambcrs of his patients, withno differentiation. for:age, wetght»or degrse

" of pain,

" 10/325mg and Xanax 2mg) 6 B:G. and-C.G.. who are brother-and sister. On eight (8) occasions

Method of Payment: Cash

36.  Respondents failed to consider that numerous patients 01;' Dr. Bass paid 1”'or~ their
prescriptions only in cash: qulcxalfxple-, Respondent Jay Scott Drugs' ba.ﬂy Log for Controlled
Substance for Schedule 111 to V, dated September 7, 2007, indicated that 93 out of 132

preseriptions filled on that date were for Dr. Bass' patients. 71 out of 93. prescriptions were paid

by cash. Therefore, 76% of prescriptions wriﬁen _by:Dl‘:. Bass and dispensed by Respondents were

paid by cash on that date. Similarly, the Daily Log on September 1 Q, 2007, for Controlled |

Dr. Bass' patients. 56 out of 75 prescriptions were paid by cash. Ther-e;fore, 74% of prescriptions
Respondcnt Jay Scott Dr uvs who chad (A 8, D.L;:A W, L.G., and D.K.) paid only in cash for -
fhe\r prescriptions. Only patlent D.L. appeamd to have some other method of payment.

Family members”

37. ° Respondents did not question the fact: thet DY, Bass wrote the same pain killer

l"'

" Patients B.G.and C:G,

9 Pefthé patient’s profile, B.G.and C,G; who-are siblings, started:to visit Dr. Bass
“and Rcspondent Jay Scott Drugs in October 2006, when B.G. was 25 years old and his sister,
C. G was 23 years old. They always paid for their prescr 1ptlons in cash. They lived at the same

resnlence and the dlbtance ﬁom “thieir 1651dence to D1 Bass ofﬁce or Tay Scott Drugs was

apprommately 40 mxles.

b, Respondents dispensed Dr, Bass' prescriptions for.the same drugs (Norco
P P p P

Resp‘énaent’s-dﬁ’spdriée'c\ the'same drugs-0n the same day to B.G. and C,G.for-atotal of 32 such
prescriptions. OF 'L:iwese 32 prescriptions, Respondent ﬁaher and Respondent Yamaéalgi each
dispensed 16 such prescriptions to the'siblings: Between October 30, 2006, and March 31, 2008,
Respondent Jay Scott Drugs dispensed 103 prescriptions written by Dr. Bass for B.G., all for

15
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" 1.]| Worco, Xanax, Soma or Valium. Between.October 30, 2006, and April 9, 2008, Respondents
2 || dispensed 72 p;escri'ptions, written by Dr. Bass for C.G., all for Norco o.r Kanax.
3 c. Respondent J ajl Scott Drugs did not have any record- indicating communication
4 || with Dr, Bass about the niedical conditions and/or drug therapy of the siblings.
5 T d. B.G.-and C.G. ater admitted:to Ventura County defeﬂiw:s that they had these
¢ |l prescriptions dispensed to support B.G.'s addiction 1o the drugs. B.G. also admitted that he paid
7. | TP, Dr. Bass’ secretary, $80°in cash for presoriptions without seeing Dr, Bass.
8 - Patient T.P. and Fa_rﬁilv S
9 el T.P. was the only émployee of Respondent that worked in his ofﬁce.. Respondents
dispensed Dr. Bass’ controlléd §ubstance preseriptions.to T.P., her husband, X.P., and their 20-
11 'S'/ééz‘;élﬂ‘ daughter, S.P, Pei“T.P spatient profile; between No‘\"!ember 1, 2006, and April 7,2008,
o 12 1 84 i)réébi‘ipﬁiéns, written by D’r.'Ba'ss;'were' dispensed-for T.P., 77. 6111: of .84;pr¢scriptioﬁg were for
LS diu gs most commonly orderéd by Dr. Bass; Norco 10/3251ngr.ajﬁd Soma.. Out of .th;é,sg 77
' 14 "'f:i"fé'sioriptidns; Respondent-Daher’ dispensed 66 prescriptions and Yamasaki dism,nsed, 11 :
15 'pr.xééc}rii‘a'tion's. Per K.P.'s' p'atien‘é profile; between November 3, 2006,.and April 1, ;'2008, 134
'1'% 'pfi-éécl'ipti011s were 'disp"eﬁséd_ffor-K.‘P ., all written by.Dr. Bass. 104 out of 134 ﬁrescriptions-»vere
17 || for drugs most commonly orde;red by Dr. Bass, Norcb,-Xanax, Valium and Soma, and-also
) jg OxyContin. Qut of these 104-prescri;5tioﬁs, Respondént Daher dispensed-75 prescriptions,
T 9 f 'ﬁé‘s”pondeﬁt Yamasaki dispensed 23 ﬁi'&scripfions, and Respondent Nabhan dispe{fsed 6
" prescriptions. Per §.P.'s patiént {Jroﬁle between September 13, 2007 and April 7,'2008 23
21 || p}?gg 1p:ct?ns wrltten by Dr. Bass were dispensed for S.P. for drugs most common\y ordered by
22 || Dr. B'Lss, Norco and Soma., O% 1:}1;55 23 ;a;esc-nao’;\;m i{espondem Dahél_dlns:;e;égng o
93 || prescr 1ptxcms and Respondent Mabhan dispensed two pi escriptions. Flom Novembel 2006, to
24 || April 2008 (17 months) Respondents dispensed a total of 9,000 Norco, 1,960 OxyContin, 1,230
23 thax, 480 Valium and 2,765 Soma to fhis family. '
26 | £ Based on family relationship, prescribing the same narcotics, excessive furnishing and
© 27 || association with Dr-Bass, Respondents did not take proper steps -to review the farriily’ s drug
28 |
16
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. history and failed to verify if prescriptions were for a legitimate medical purpose, or ultimately
stop dispensing these prescriptions.

Failed o nge CURES.

)

38.  Respondents failed to usé the C.U.R.E.S, program as a tool to-evaluate new or

' existing’ patients to determine ifthey appeared o be substance.abusers, d octor shoppers, uilizing
* moré'than one pharmaﬁy, or if the patient was b\:ealc-ing their pain marnagement contract with.Dr
Bass, which required that all controlled-substances be obtained at the .same pharmacy.

Tailed to adequately evaluate patients

39, Despiteithe forégqing red flags of excessive preseribing; i&gsmndents did not hav;:
records to show Dtl. Bass' patients' diagnosis, laboratory testing,, or;qoqnmqnica‘g_iﬁn with Dr Bass,
regarding appropriateness of therapy Qr;jeg'i,tim.ate medigal need or evaluation 6_f the pe'stients.'
-Respondents’ decision to ‘ignore these clear iric_i'ip;ationé of excessive prescribing of controlled
substances by Dr.‘Bagsand dﬁlg seeking behavior of many of hié:pa’tie11ts. and Respondents’
" decisionfonot éggressivgély'work-td.éatérm.im,e th.e;.paﬁjen‘cs;..di_.a‘ggosis and; évagluatc:pétients fo}
potential drug jﬁt‘oxicatio'n,-.sadv.arse effeets, signs of ad'd!i:ct'\ori or. g@equ,afqé}_,pghx coritrol, placed
" UMETOUS patients atrisk, including but.not limited to, Patients A.S., D-.L., AW,LG,DK,
I8, 'and*A.C:, asfollows:

Paiiedt A.8.

40.  Per-A.S.' patient profile, A.S. started.to visit Dr. Bass ahd Respondent Jay Scott

Duws in January 2007 at the age of 21, A,S. always paid cash for his prescriptions. The

dlstance fi om thc pa’tlen‘c 5 rc31dencc o D1 Bass’ ofﬁce orto.J ay Scott Drugs was applommate)y

40 m\les

41, Between Jaml'cu'y 35,2007, and Mairchl& 2008 (approximately 14 months),

" Respondent Jay Scott Druos dlSanSGd 89 preseriptions for A.S, all written by Dr. Bass. 88 out of

89 prescriptions were for Norco, Xanax, or Soma. Durmo this time per 1od AS. recewed a total

of 3,875 tablets.of Norcoe 10/;231110 1860 tablets of Xanax 2mg, 373 tablets of Soma and one

antibiotic. -Of these 88:prescriptions, Respondent Dahel dispensed 75 prescriptions, Respondent
1

17
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Yamasaki dispensed nine prescriptions, and Respondent Nabhan dispensed one prescription for

this patient.

42.  Dr. Bass didviot change A.S.' drog regimen. Dr, Bass regularly prescribed Norco

10/325mg and Xanax 2mg in the same quantities with the same directiéns every 12-15 days, and
. Respondent J ay. Scott Drugs was usually filling these .pl'escriptions every 12 to 15 days.
43. " If Respondents obtained a C:U.R.E.S. report for-A.S. afier December ]
would have seen that on Ogtober 26,2007, and November 5, 2007, the patient was treated with
" Subutex, a drug used to tredt opiate addiction. Responden1 Jay-Scott Drug gs would have known o
mquue of Dr. Bass befare dlSpGﬂSan' further pr escrlptlons o an addict. Obtammg a C.URE.S.
réport would also have inf ormcd 'Respondents that A.S. was filling his controlled substance
pr escnptlons aftwo other pharmac;as in wolatlon of his pain treatment-contract with Dr Bass
' 44,  Respondent Jay Scott Drucs de not have any ertten records supporting

consultations with Dr. B_ass regarding A.S# emstmg dlagnoms, medical conditions or legitimate

1 medical putpose of the preseriptiofis: Resporidents failed to continvally evaluate the patient's

_needs and assure each prescription was written for a legifimateneed, ‘which ultimately resulted in’

the pat1 ent's death,

45: AS. died on VEroh 20 2008, at 1he age of ’72 AS! Death Investigation Report

states that the cause of death was hydrocodone mtomcataon. Emp’cy~p.1 esciiption containers for-
Norco '(I—Iydrocodone)l.’lS tablets) and Xanax (60 tabiejts.), which were prcscﬁﬁed by Dr, Bass and
' dispensed by Respondent. Daheion March 18,2008, were found near his bc;d)l. ‘
Pa‘cxent D L. ' . |

"46.  PerD. L S pahsnt ploﬁle D L. stal*ced to \/1511 Dx Bass ahd Respor?de;;t J‘a,;géott
Drugs in May 2007, at the age of 24. The distance from the patient's residence to Dr. Bass' office
or to Jay Scott Drugs was appr 0\1m’ltei}f 40 miles. _ |

47,  From May.2, 2007 1o ‘March 24, 2008 (10 months), Respondent Jay Scoﬂ Drugs -

dispensed 30 controlled subsfances-and/cr dangerpus drugs prescriptions for D.L. All of these

' prescriptions were for-drugs thost commonly ordered by Dr. Bass, Norco, Soma, Ambien, and
Valium. During this time period, D.L. received a total of 2.375 tablets of Norco 10/325mg, 120

18

,.2007, they
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ablets of Vahum 10mg, :)70 ’tablcts of Soma.and 90 tablets of Amblcn According to D.L.'s
pahent pxoule Respondent Dahel dispensed 73 preseriptions, Respondent Nabhan dispensed
three (3) prescriptions, and Respondent Yeamasaki dispensed four (4) prescriptions for this patlent

48, If Respondents obtained aCU. RE.S. report-for D.L. after December 1, 2007, they
would haye seen that in September 2007 and October 2007 the patient was freated with
SL\box011e, a-drug used to treat opiate addiction. Rsspondcnt Jay Scott Dru gs would have lcn.own
1o inguire.of Dr. Bass before dispénsing further prescriptions to an addict. - '

49, Respondent Jay Scott Drugs did not have any records to show D.L.’s d1a°rn051s, :
-medical history, any laboratory testing, communication mh Dr. Bass for patient care, evaluation
. -of-D.L."s condition; and-effectiveness of h.is medicatidn regimen although D.L. was rcgularly' on
Norco; Soma, Valium, and Ambien, all pr_esorib.cd by Dr..Bass, Respoqden_ts'fe'xiled io-continually
evaluate the patient's needs and assure each prescription.was 'w'ritten for a legitimate nped, which

ultimately resulted in the patient's-death.

- 50, " D.L.died o April 10,2008; atthe age of 25. DL Death Inyestigation Report

{l..states that thecause:of death was Ambien, Soma, Valium and Cocaine foxicity.. According to the

C.U.R.E.S. report, the last prescriptions filled for D.L. before his dpa}_th were for Norco, Valjium,

- and Ambien, which were prescribed bﬁ/_ Dr. Bass.and dispensed by Respondent Jay Scott Drugs
| on.March 24, 2008, ' '

Patient A W.

51, Per A.'W.'s patient profile, A. W, started to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott

Dr ugs in February 2008, -at the age of 31. A. W always paxd cash for hcr prescriptions. The

dlsiancc fl om m the patlenfs residence to Dr. Basg ofﬁce or to Je ay Scott Druvs was app1 ommately

2.8 miles.

52.  Between February:6, 2008,.and March 25, 2008 (48 dqyls)?_Respbndel)t 'Iay Scott .

. Drugs dispensed 12 controlled substance prescriptions for A.W. All of these prescriptions were

for drugs most commonly. ordered by Dr. Bass,.Norco?.\’ alium and Soma. Dmfmg this time

 period, A.W. received a total .of 500 tablets of Norco 10/3251110 300 tablets of Valium 10mg, 240
. . .. ' '
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tablets of Soma.-Of these 12 prescriptions, Respondent Daher dlSanSBd'nme (9) prescrl’ptlons '
and Respondent ¥ amasaki dlSpCl’lSed three (3) prescnptlons for this patient,

53.: Respondent Fay Scott Drugs did not have any records to show A W.’s dla..o'nos]s
medical history, any.laboratory testing, communication with Dr. Bass for patient care, evaluation
of AW, 's cond:xﬁoﬂ and effectiveness of her medication regimen although A.W. wag regularly on
Noxco HKanax, and Soma pwsm ibed byDr. Bass. RBSponden’cs failed to - contmually evaluaie the

patlenﬂs needs and agsure’ aach plesol iption was wrxtten for a-legitimate: nced whloh ultlmately ’

resulted'i in the patient's death. -

54 AW clled o April 11, 2008, at the age of 31, A. W s Death Investlgatlon Report |

states that she died from an ovexdose of Norco 10/325m=,, Valium, and Motphine. According to”

A W.’s patient profile, A.W.'s last presoripti_ons'ﬁlled at Respondcn’ﬁ ij,a.y,,Scétt Drugs before her

death were Norco, Soma and Valium, prescribed by Dr., Bass and dispensed by Resbondcnt '

Yamasaki on March 25§ 2008,
mec-.nt LG

55. Pel L G.'s patlent profile, L.G. started-to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott

: Dmos' in Fune 2006, at the age of 19 years old: L: G. always paid cash for.his p1escnpuons The V

' dlstancc from the" pat1ent‘s residlence to Dr. Buss” office or to Jay Scott Drugs was apprommately

30m Aes

56. ‘Between 'Septeinbel' 20, 2006 and March 28, 2008 (18 m.onthsi “Respondent Jay
Scott Drugs dIS]JGﬂSCd 117 prescriptions for L.G. Out of 117 prescnptxons 105 were: fm drugs -

that were most coimmonly ordefed by Dr. Bass Noroo szax and Soma. During ﬂus‘hme '

— T o L o U — s i

period, L. G 1eoenred a fotal ©f 3,500 tablets of Norco 10/325mg, 21 60 tablets of Xana\, 2340
tablets of Soma, and 240 tablets of Desyrel.!'” Ofthese 105 prescriptions, Respondent Daher
dis;sen;éd 75 prescriptions, RespondentYamasa.ki dispensed 18 presc}ip’tions, and Respondent
Nabhan dispehsed 12'p1‘és§|'ip’cions. '

57. - Respendent Jay Scott brugs did not know the reéson L.G. was taking:the

medications. There was no documentation of communication with Dr. Bass, documentation of

1% Desyrel is an antidepressant.
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discussions v;'lt'h.t,he patient, or.review of C.U.R.E.S. data for a person who was ejther 19 or 20
years old when he started rec@iving‘these presoriiations and paid cash for all.of these prescriptions
Respondents. failed to continually evatuate the patient's needs and assure each prescrip-tion was
written for a 1egiti1\1ate need, which vifimately resulted in the patient's death.

-58. LG died en April 13, 2008, at the age of 21. The Death Investigation Report

. states that the cause-of death was an Oxycodone and Methamphetamine -overdose,. His toxicology

- report: (blood) detected: Methamphetamine, Soma, benzodiazepines, ijates,- and oxycodone

840ng/ml. Per the C.U.RES. report, L.G.’s last prescription before his death was for Norco and-

1] Kanax on March 28, 2008, which was préscribed 'b)ll Dr. Bass and dispensed by Respondent Jay
- Scott Drugs: . ’

Patient DK, '

59.- - Per D.K.2s patient profile, D.K. started 10 visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott

Drugs in December 2006, at the ave of 31. D X always paid cash.for. hls prescriptions. The

distanc; from the patient’s residence to Dr, Bass’ office or fo J ay._Scott. Drugs was approximately

~40-miles: -

+.:60.- * Between December 7,2006,.and March 14,2008, the, date of D.K.’s death'" (16

months); Respondent Jay, Scett Drugs dispensed.approximately 60 présgriptiéns for DX, Out of

“the 60 prescriptions, approximately 57 were for drugs most commonly ordered by Dr. Bass,
|l Norco, Xanax, Soma, Ambien, and Valium. During this period, DX received a total of 2,750

Aablets of Norce, 1,200 tablets of Xanax, 240 fableté.of Valium, a{nd 64 tablets of Ambien, Of

these 54 p1esc>1 1pt1cms Respondent Daher dispensed 43 presor 1p’nons Respondem Nabhan

dmpcﬂscd 8 PluSC\ 1pt1ons and ReSpondcnt Yamasald dl’spensed 6 prescupt1011s

¢+ 6l There was no documentation that Respondents ever determined the legitimate need

|l for. these prescriptions.: Respondent Jay Scott Drugs.failed 1o shave 2 corresponding responsibility

while dispensing highly addictive medications to D.K.,.-which put.this patient at risk,
RN/
i

" D K. died of lobar pneumonia.
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Patient J.S,

62.  Perl.S. patient profile, 1.S. started to visit Dr. Bass and Respondent Jay Scott

.Drugs in October 2006, at the age of 21. The distance from the patient's residence 10 J ay Scott
Drugs or Dr. Bass' office was approximately 40 miles. When prescriptions were filled too soon
Respondents alternated payment.methods by I.S. between the i'r'lsuraﬁce company and cash in
order to dispense prescriptions without consulting Dr. Bass.: When a new prescription for the

same medication is billed too soon, the prescription insurance company ‘would immediately reject

the billingclaim.J:S. was alternating types of payment between his insurance and cash becavse

his insurance would-not pay for the amount of drugs being prescriBed and the frequency it was

being dispensed. . : - -

re-

63, Between @otobelt31,2096, and April 5,:2007 (approximately five months),
Respohdent_s--disp‘ensed atotal 0f 36 controlled substance and/ot dangerous.drugs prescriptions for
1S, ai] of which were-written by Dr:Bass, During this period, Respondent Daher dispensed a
total 0f 1,625 tablets of Norco (including Nortab 10/500 mg, one incident), a total of 780 tablets
of Xanax 2mg, and a total of 120 tablets of Soma, to .S, Of these 36 pzescnphons Respondent
Daher dispensed:22 prescriptions and Respondent Yamasalu dxspensed 14 prescnp’mons to 1.8,

64. ' Respondents did not provide any records of communi cat_lpr_\_‘\‘_\(-;th Dr. Bass

regarding any of I:S: preseriptions. Respondents failed to ghaie:s. corresponding responsibility -
while d"lspensh\g,h‘lg'hly addictive medications to J.S., which put this patient at risk.
. 65." Duringthis period, J.S. became addicted 1o these drugs. He.becafne extremely

dcplessed SLIlGldEL] and v1olent He qult sohool and oould not hold a Job Hewasina:

rebabilitation centcr on several occasions: December 2006, Apnl 2007 July 2007 and- late 200?

Dr. Bflmbad's prescribing pattern.,

66.  Aswith Dr. Bass, Rcsponden‘cs failed to evaluate and/or address Dl Masoud

Bamdad’s suspect prescribing pattern: Dr, Bamdad's Prescriber Activity Report for the per:od of

December 2006 throu‘gh May 2008, provided that Respondents dispensed the following
‘prescrip.tions written by Dr. Bamdad:
" '
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a. 543 prescriptions for Schedule 11 controlled substances; .out.of which allbut eight

(8) prescriptions-were written for oxycodone products,

b. 136, prescriptions for Schedule IIT controlled substances, out of which all but two

(2) pres’cripﬁOns were liydrocodaone products, mainly Nbrco,

"¢ 7302 preser 1phons for Sch edule TV controlled substances outof which all but 13

presciiptions were written for Xanax or \f.alru m, mainly Xanax 2mg, and

" d. . 7.prescriptions of Schedule V controlled.substances.

67.  From December 2006 through May 2008, Respondent Jay.Scott Drugs dispensed a

! total of 1,357 prescriptions written by Dr. Bamdad, out of which 980 prescriptions were

controlled substances and 369 were dangerous drugs. This meant that 73% of the prescriptions

1 written:by Dr. Bamdad were for- ctantx;ol]ad""szibstancés, which is amuch higher percentage of

 Goritrolled substances written by ene prescriber than nermal.. Despite.the foregoing factors,

Respondérnt Fas-Scott Drugs continuously-flled 1,357-prescriptions for Dr, Bamdad's patients

| etwesi Deceriber 2006 and May 2008.". -

Patient AC

68.  Respondentfailed.1o review A:C.’s-patient profiles prior o dispensing controlied

| ‘substances to hirs; which presented clear indications that the prescriptions writien by Dr. Bamdad
for A€, were g@i‘neraﬁ:y:nét‘ issued-for a legitimate m'edig-al purpose.. Per-A.C/'s patient profile,

| A.C. started to visit Dr, Bamdad and Respondent Jay Scott Drugs in December 2007, at the age of
22, A.C. always paidicash for his prescljiptions, The distance from the patient's residence to Jay

Scott D1 ugs or D1 Bamdad‘s office was app1 ommatcly 40 miles.

69. ‘From Dt—:ccmbm 11,2007 to April 10, 2008 (3 months), Res};'oﬁdén% Daher filled |
eight (8) controlled substance‘px escriptions for A:C,, all of which were written. by Dr. Bamdad,
‘Dirring this period, Respondent Dahet disﬁensedto A.C, 270 tablets of Oxyéoéone and 240 '
tablets of Xanax 2mg. | '

70. - -RespondentAJay Scott Drugs did.not have any documentation éf consultations with
Dr. Bamdad regarding A.C.‘,s diagnosis, niedica'icion cc;_nditions or the legitimate medical purpose
of the prescr'tpﬁoﬁs. Respondent Daher failed to continually evaluate the patient's needs and '

23
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Ahmad Nabhan; -

71, A.C.was found dead_‘on Apul ]4~, .,008, at the age,qf 23. AC s Death
Invcstiga’tion Report states that the cause of death was multipl_(: dru'g effeotg, 'mcluding. |
significantly high Oxycodone levels. _.I-'Iis_ last prescription was on April 10.,'.2008,;for 90 tablets of
OxyCoritin and 60 tablets of Xanax, written by Dr, Bamdad anci QiSpenSed by Réépond;nt Daher.

: ‘ .. FOURTH.CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

: .-(Fai_lune to reyiew patient profiles prior to dignﬁ}psi_ng p;escriygtions) |
.72..-- . Respondents Ahma’é ‘Nabhan and. iun Respondent Yamasaki are subje;ct to |
dlsoxplme pmsuam to Code sections 4300 and 4301, subdmsmn (0), on the grounds of‘
u npl ofessnonal conduct in that RCSpondents Nebhan and Yamasalu failed to review N, V s

ploﬁ&es pl for to dtspensmv p1 GSCI iptions, in violation of Code sactlon 4306.5, subchwsmn (c), and

Cahfonua Code of Remlatlons title 16, sections 1707.3, Specifically, Respondent Nabhan filled
one (1) prescription and ReSpondent Yamasakx filled one (1) prescription for N.V. carly, namely
Noreo, without reviewing N.V.'s patlent profile, resulting in over dxspensmg of contnol]ed

substances, and/or, dangerous drugs, as set forth in parag1 aph 25, above,

I‘IT‘TH CAUSE FOR DISCELINE

CUnprofessmnal Conduct)

73. " Respondents are subject to discipline pursuant to Code sections 4300 and 4301, 1n |

that Respondents committed unprofessional conduct, as more fully discussed in paragraphs 23
through 72, above.
PRAYER

WHEREFORE Comp\amant requests that a hearmg be held on ’che matters herem alleved

and that foﬂowuw the hearing, the Board of Phannacy issue a dEClSlOIl

1 Revoking or su'spenchw7 Pham'laclsi License Nurmnber RPH 39] 80, issued Albert

Far ah Respondent Daher;

2. Revoking or suspcnding Pharmacist License Number RPH 41754, issued to
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3.*  Revoking or suspending Pharraoist License Number RPH 19983, issued to Jua

Respondent Yamasakd;

4, " Revoking or sugpending Retail Phalmacy ‘License Number PEY 40912, issiied to

"Tay Scott Drugs, with Albert Farah Respondent Daher as Pharmacist-in-Charge;

5._ Ordering Jay Scott Drugs, Albert Respondent Daher, Ahmad Nabhan, and Jun

‘Respoudent Yamasalcl 16 pay the Board the reascnable-costs of the mvostlgahon and enfm cement |.

of this casé, puf Sugint fo Busmyss and Professions Code section 125.3

. and,
6.  Taking such other-and further actiyn as deemed-neoessary angl propet.
DATED: )
2 /llo L
“ VIR INTA K. HEROLD
{Exgdutive Officer-
dard of Pharmacy
Statebf-California
Complainani
. LA2009604600
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